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PART |
Item 1. Business

Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier) g fargest communications company providing sesvigeedominantly to rural areas i
small and medium-sized towns and cities in the Wi®ntier and its subsidiaries are referred tohes “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”
throughout this report. Frontier was incorpordtethe state of Delaware in 1935, originally unttexr name of Citizens Utilities Company, .
was known as Citizens Communications Company fréG02until July 31, 2008.

Our mission is to be the leader in providing comioations services to residential and business meste in our markets. We are committe
delivering innovative and reliable products andusohs with an emphasis on convenience, service customer satisfaction. We offe
variety of voice, data, and television services @noducts, some that are available & la carte,adhdrs that are available as bundle
packaged solutions. We believe that our local gagent structure, 100% U.®ased workforce and innovative product positionimit
continue to differentiate us from our competitaréhie markets in which we compete.

In 2012, we completed the integration of our JUML@ acquisition of properties from Verizon Commuaticns Inc. (Verizon), an acquisiti
that tripled the size of the Company and is descrin more detail below. Additionally, we undeikabe following significant steps in 2012
position the Company for the future:

. Broadband Expansio

During 2012, we expanded our broadband availabitit318,000 new households, bringing our total efvravailable households
973,000 since the July 2010 acquisition. As of démber 31, 2012, we are able to offer broadband wver &.2 millior
households. During 2012 and early 2013, Frongeeived $66.0 million and $5.9 million, respectivedr a total of $71.9 milliol
from the Connect America Fund (CAF) to support dimend deployment in unserved higbst areas. As of December 31, 2012
had broadband in excess of 1 Mbps available to 88%e households in our territory, in excess di3ps available to 83% of t
households in our territory, in excess of 6 Mbpailable to 74% of the households in our territ@yd in excess of 20 Mbps availe
to 40% of the households in our territory.

« Systems Conversion
In March 2012, the Company successfully complebteddonversion of all of its network and systemsnfrime July 2010 acquisitir
onto one platform, ten months ahead of schedule cbmpletion of the conversions enhanced the Coypability to manage tl
business and further reduce costs. Following tmpietion of the conversions, the Company is foduse simplifying its processt
eliminating redundancies and further reducing @st structure while continuing to improve its custy service capabilities.

- Improved Residential Customer Metr
During 2012, our rate of residential customer lmsproved to 7.0% for the full year of 2012 as congglato 9.9% for 2011. V
believe that these improvements in customer reterdre principally due to our investments in outwmek, our local engageme
strategy, improved customer service and the inttda of our stand alone Simply Broadband prodastyell as customer recognit
of the value of our products, services and bundigtions, fewer residential moves out of territoigywer moves by businesses
competitors and our ability to compete with calelephony in a maturing market place.

» Cost Reductions
We have fully achieved our acquisition cost saviagsergy target of $650 million as of the end 0120 The cost savings in 2C
from our targeted initiatives list (which includdsyt is not limited to, cancellation or reductiohwendor services, network c
savings, contractor reductions, benefit changesraallestate savings) was approximately $25 milbona quarterly basis, or $1
million on an annualized basis, and combined whth $avings achieved in 2011 and 2010, equates &m@aumalized cost savings |
rate of $653 million as of the end of 2012.
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« Strengthened Balance Sheet and Financial Profile

Effective February 16, 2012, our Board of Directses the annual cash dividend at $0.40 per shEme.Board reduced the divide
from $0.75 per share to $0.40 per share in ordstrémgthen our balance sheet and improve opeedtéonl financial flexibility.

During 2012, we raised $1.4 billion in three regiel debt offerings. We used part of the procdedsetire and repurchase
aggregate principal amount of $757.0 million of ddbring the year. As a result, we have excessgats from those offerings t
are included in cash and cash equivalents as adrttieof the year, which will be used to repurchaiseetire existing indebtedness
for general corporate purposes. Additionally, anubry 15, 2013, we retired $502.7 million of o34 Senior Notes due 2013 v
cash on hand.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, we genatedue of $5.0 billion, including customer revenfi&4.4 billion and regulato
revenue of $0.6 billion, and net cash provided fiaerating activities of $1.6 billion. We have allabalanced debt maturity schec
and we have available liquidity of over $2.1 biflias of December 31, 2012, comprised of cash amdahie credit on our $7!
million revolving credit facility.

Our average monthly total revenue per customerOit2Zmproved by $5.44, or 4%, to $127.32, as coeppao the prior year. Residen
customer monthly churn was further reduced in 2@12.62% from 1.69% in 2011. We added 60,900 tibecadcast satellite (DBS) vid
subscribers during 2012 with our video product @ffethrough DISH Network (DISH). We lost 203,100daTV video subscribers in the th
quarter of 2012 when Frontier chose to not off@ebTV as part of its bundled packages.

We believe that our local engagement strategy erg@samustomer loyalty. On January 10, 2013, wetesfieally realigned our regior
reporting structure from six regions to four regiom addition, we decentralized certain functissig;h as sales and marketing, enabling
further strengthen our local engagement stratediictwwe believe will deepen our relationships witlistomers and ultimately imprc
customer retention and average revenue per custoieralso realigned certain corporate supporttfans in order to achieve improv
customer service. This realignment will enableloaal leaders to specifically target sales and mtamg efforts to the communities they serve.

Communications Services

We tripled the size of the Company in July 2010 wie acquired the defined assets and liabilitietheflocal exchange business and re
landline activities of Verizon in Arizona, ldahollifois, Indiana, Michigan, Nevada, North Carolin@hio, Oregon, South Carolit
Washington, West Virginia and Wisconsin and in jpmg of California bordering Arizona, Nevada ande@n (collectively, the Acquirt
Territories), including Internet access and longtatice services and broadband video provided tmrdesd customers in the Acqui
Territories (which we refer to as the Acquired Bwsis). We financed the purchase of the Acquiredir®ss (the Transaction) witt
distribution of $5.2 hillion of common stock to \Yawn shareholders (678.5 million shares) and tisaraption of $3.5 billion of debt.

As of December 31, 2012, we are the nadourth largest Incumbent Local Exchange CartieEC), with 3.2 million customers, 1.8 millic
broadband connections and 14,700 employees. Watepes an ILEC in 27 states.

We conduct business with both business and resai@nistomers, and we provide the “last mitd”telecommunications services to custor
in these markets. During 2012, our customer resemnas $4,435.4 million, including business reventi&2,317.2 million and resident
revenue of $2,118.2 million. At December 31, 2042,had 1,787,600 broadband subscribers and 346j880 customers. Our services
products include:

- data and Internet services
- wireline broadband servict
- data transmission services (e.g., DS1, DS3, Ethedrdicated Internet Protoct
- wireless broadband servic
- computer security (i.e., Frontier Secu
- commercial VolP servic

« local and long distance voice services
- local voice service
- enhanced services (e.g., voicemail, call wait
- long distance network servic
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» access services

« video services

- direct broadcast satellite utilizing DIS
- terrestrial utilizing fiber to the horr

« sales of customer premise equipment

Company Strategies
The key elements of our strategy are as follows:

Enhance customer loyalty through local engagemerOur strategy includes engaging our markets atdbal level to ensure that we hay
locally customedriven sales and service focus that differentiatesfrom our competitors. Our markets are operdgdocal manage
responsible for the customer experience, as wekhasfinancial results, in those markets. We ihvasinfrastructure improvements ¢
enhancements each year, recognizing that the edorimelihood of the communities we serve will affeopportunities to grow the busine
We therefore have a vested interest in the econdeielopment of the communities we serve. We arelnied in these communities to crea
competitive advantage through long-term customgalty. We are committed to providing bestelass service throughout our markets ani
doing so, we expect to maximize retention of curperstomers and gain new customers.

Increase revenue per customerWe continue to apply the sales and marketing prestthat we have historically employed throughau
markets, including the sale of voice, data and widervices as bundled packages and the use of fiom®@nd incentives to drive mar
share. We believe these marketing strategies yredteased revenue per customer, strong custonfeioreships and improved custor
retention. We tailor our services to the needswf business and residential customers in the rtsearke serve and continually evaluate
introduction of new and complimentary products asmivices. We are increasing broadband availabibtyour customer base throt
innovative packages and promotions, and we plampwove subscription rates for broadband servid&e. provide direct broadcast sate
services from DISH in all of our markets and filoptic video services in parts of three states. Hake implemented several growth initiatiy
including launching new products and services, saghwvireless broadband, satellite video and braadifpgoducts, Internet advertising i
“Frontier Secure’computer security and technical support. We vatitinue to focus on growing those products andisesvand plan to off
new ones in the future.

Expand broadband footprint. We are concentrating on broadband as the core amenp@f our service offering and growth. Consedjye¢
we have earmarked capital expenditures for theresipa and improvement of broadband availability apdeds in our markets and view
expansion as an opportunity to retain a greaterbeurof customers and increase average revenueuptnter. These capital expenditt
include enhancing the existing outside plant byhmgs fiber deeper into the network, enhancing tpanisand expanding the capability of
data backbone.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 88% of tbaseholds throughout the Compasyérritories had access to our wireline broad
products with speeds of at least 1 Mbps. See “Nektwrchitecture and Technologydr a table that summarizes our broadband avaiialbd
the households throughout the Companigrritories at speeds in excess of 1 Mbps, 3 Mépdbps, 6 Mbps, 12 Mbps and 20 Mbps for
total Company. In addition, we have committedaddral and state regulatory authorities to expanddband availability in certain areas
the Acquired Territories. See “—Regulatory Enviment—Regulation of our businessDuring the fourth quarter of 2012, we began selb
satellite broadband product with speed betweenktfg and 40 Mbps in selected markets.

Realize Cost SavingThe Company accelerated its final conversion ofAbquired Business systems onto one company phatfarMarct
2012, ten months ahead of the original targi¥e have achieved cost savings of approximately $6BBn as a result of the Transacti
principally by: (1) leveraging the scalability ofioexisting corporate administrative functionspimmhation technology and network system
cover certain former Acquired Business functionsl agstems; (2) in-sourcing certain functions forimegarovided by thirdparty servic
providers to the Acquired Business; and (3) achigvimproved efficiencies and more favorable ratéth whird-party vendors and t
consolidation of certain facilities. The cost s@&nn 2012 from our targeted initiatives list (whiocludes, but is not limited to, cancellatior
reduction of vendor services, network cost savirmgsitractor reductions, benefit changes and reakesavings) was approximately $
million on an annualized basis, and when combinil the savings achieved in 2011 and 2010, equatas annualized cost savings run
of approximately $653 million, which exceeds ouguval estimate of $500 million of cost savings.
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Growth through selective acquisitionsWe continue to evaluate and may pursue selecegtaacquisitions that would enhance revenue:
cash flows. We will continue to adhere to our sile criteria in any acquisition analysis.

Services

We offer a broad portfolio of highuality communications services for business asitlemtial customers in each of our markets. Thedade
services traditionally associated with local telepd companies, as well as other services suchnasdstance, Internet access, broadban
enabled services and video services. We offer theiséces both a la carte and, increasingly, aslledrpackages which are purposely desi
to simplify customer purchasing decisions and tovjgle the customer with pricing discounts. We ab$fer incentives and promotions
influence customers to purchase or retain certaimices. We also enhance customer retention bsrioff one-, two- and thregear pric
protection plans under which customers committria in exchange for predictable pricing or otlmmeintives and promotions. We are ste
locally with skilled technicians and supervisoryrgmnel, which enables us to provide efficiently aeliably an array of communicatic
services to meet our customers’ needs. Our catec®perations and field technicians are staffgd ©00% U.S.-based personnel.

Generation of Revenue

We generate revenue primarily by providing: (1)adahd Internet services and wireless data servige¢diasic local and long distance vc
wireline services to business and residential ensts in our service areas; (3) network accesstyarchange carriers for origination
termination of long distance voice and data traf{¢) sales of third party and owned video serviaasd (5) sales of customer pren
equipment.

Data and Internet servicesWe offer a wide range of wireline broadband sewid® our residential, commercial and ca
customers. Residential services include broadbaal, up Internet, portal and reail products. Commercial services include Ethg
Dedicated Internet, Multiprotocol Label SwitchinglRLS), and TDM data transport services. These sesvare all supported by a 24aelf
desk and an advanced Network Operations Centerh Saervices are generally offered on a contradstesd the service is billed on a fi
monthly recurring charge basis. Data and Intespetices are typically billed monthly in advance.

We also offer our Frontier Secure suite of prodiised at managing the personal computing expegiémicour customers and designe
provide value and simplicity to meet customers’resteanging needs. The Frontier Secure productsandces suite includes an leme, ful
installation of the Company’s broadband product tvour appointment windows for the installationrchdrive back-up services, Z4helf
desk PC support and inside wire maintenance (whedlbd).

We offer wireless broadband services (using unfiednWiFi spectrum) in select markets utilizing ratks that we own or operate. Loteyr
contracts are billed in advance on an annual oii-aemual basis. Endser subscribers are billed in advance on a momédyrring basis ai
businesses, colleges and universities are billed oronthly recurring basis for a fixed number oénss Hourly, daily and weekly casual end
users are bhilled by credit card at the time of use.

Local and long distance voice servicesWe provide basic telephone wireline services toirtess and residential customers in our se
areas. Our service areas are largely residemthbanerally less densely populated than the pyirsaivice areas of the largest ILECs. We
provide enhanced services to our customers byioffenx number of calling features, including caltwarding, conference calling, cal
identification, voicemail and call waiting. All dhese local services are billed monthly in advariaeng distance network service to and f
points outside our operating territories are predidy interconnection with the facilities of intechange carriers. Our long distance sen
are billed either as unlimited/fixed number of nt@siin advance or on a per minute-of-use basis.
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We also offer packages of communications serviddmse packages permit customers to bundle thsic belephone line service with th
choice of enhanced, long distance, video and Ieteservices for a monthly fee or usage fee depgnatinthe plan.

We are continuing our efforts to increase the gatien of our enhanced services which produce newemith higher operating margins dus
the relatively low marginal operating costs necassa offer such services. Integrating these sewiwith other services may provide
opportunity to capture an increased percentageifwstomers’ communications expenditures.

Access service: Our switched access services allow other cartersse our facilities to originate and termindteit local and long distan
voice traffic. These services are generally offeoeda month-to-month basis and the service billdcharily on a minutes-ofise basi:
Switched access charges have been based on aatessiled with the FCC for interstate services anth the respective state regulat
agency for intrastate services. On November 181201 FCC released the USF/ICC Report & Order Qhder) that, beginning in July 20
requested us to transition terminating switchedsscates over time to near zero by July 2017.(rder enables companies to recover pz
the decline through increases in subscriber lirgs feharged to some residential and business véreliice customers. While the FCC
asserted jurisdiction over these terminating accates, during the transition the charges will corg to be based on tariffs filed with both
FCC and state regulatory agencies. Monthly recgreiocess service fees are billed in advance. dditian, subsidies that are received fi
state and federal authorities based on the higbstr @f providing telephone service to certain riaedas are a part of our access ser
revenue. Beginning in July 2012, the Company begariving federal subsidies for the deployment mfalband in unserved and high «
areas.

Video services. We offer video services under an agency relatignaith DISH, which we selected as the only sé#tefprovider for Frontier i
August 2011. During the third quarter of 2012, wundled over 203,100 DirecTV customers from dlis Bnd no longer sell, manage
earn revenues from DirecTV. We receive from thpliapble satellite provider and recognize as reeemctivation fees, other residual fees
nominal management, billing and collection feesditidnally, we offer fiber optic video services anlimited basis in the states of Indie
Oregon and Washington pursuant to franchises, peramd similar authorizations issued by local fhasiag authorities utilizing fiber opi
delivery transport to the home.

Customer Premise EquipmentWe offer our small, medium and enterprise busimessomers a wide range of thipdity telecommunicatio
equipment tailored to their specific business nedetpuipment sales are most often sold in conjonatiith a variety of voice, data and Intel
services; however, equipment may also be sold etaradalone basis. We recognize revenue for these egquipsales as specified in
contracts, typically at time of installation anadt@ptance by our customers.

Our Company, like others in the industry, utilizeporting metrics focused on units. Consistent with strategy to focus on the customer
also utilize total, business and residential custometrics that, when combined with unit countsyvptes additional insight into the result:
our strategic initiatives described above.
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As of or for the year ended
December 31

2012 2011

Total Customer Metrics:
Total Customer 3,173,16! 3,413,66!

Total Customer Revenue (in ('s) $ 4435431 $ 4,623,90
Average monthly total revenue per Custo $ 127.3:  $ 121.8¢
Average monthly total Customer revenue per @ust $ 112.6¢ $ 107.5(
Business Customer Metrics
Customer: 286,10¢ 309,90(
Revenue (in 0Cs) $ 231721 $ 2,353,37
Average monthly business revenue per Custt $ 650.6: $ 601.1«
Residential Customer Metrics:
Customer: 2,887,06: 3,103,761
Revenue (in 0Cs) $ 211822, $ 2,270,52
Average monthly residential revenue per Custc® $ 58.0: $ 57.4(
Customer monthly chui 1.62% 1.6%%

@) Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular Limiteartnership.

During 2012, we lost 240,500 customers, as comptredloss of 375,400 customers in 2011. Alsojmdu012, the average monthly tc
customer revenue per customer increased $5.18ppo%er 2011. We lost 216,700 residential custemaed 23,800 business customers di
the year ended December 31, 2012, or 7% on an bbasis, as compared to 341,400 residential custard 33,900 business customers
during the year ended December 31, 2011, or 10%noannual basis. Average monthly residential reggmer customer increased $0.6
$58.03 during 2012 as compared to 2011. This @seres due to the additional monthly subscribez harges to our residential custor
which were implemented in the third quarter of 2042 permitted by the Order as well as increasedyat penetration and rationalized pric
Economic conditions and/or increasing competitionld make it more difficult to sell our bundled @ee offerings, and cause us to incre
our promotions and/or lower our prices for our prets and services, which would adversely affectreuenue, profitability and cash flows.

During 2012, we added 23,400 new broadband sulessrimet, as compared to 45,200 during 2011. Wieveethat the lower custon
activations were due to the final systems convardiaring 2012 and the delayed rolk of marketing promotions in the second half @2 A
December 31, 2012, we had 1,787,600 broadband rdodasc Throughout our properties, we offer a wiggoduct through DISH and,
addition, we offer fiber optic video services iral states. We gained 43,600 video subscribetsdureng 2012, excluding the impact
unbundling DirecTV customers from our bills. At&enber 31, 2012, we had 346,600 video customers.
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The following table sets forth total residentiaktamers in the states in which we operated as cé@eer 31, 2012.

Percentage ¢

Residentia residential

State customer: customers
West Virginie.......cocovveeiii i e 350,07( 12.1%
NEeW YOrk....ooovvioiiiiiii e, 292,75« 10.1%
INdiaNz. ... 285,57: 9.9%
HINOIS ..., 273,40¢ 9.5%
ONIC. .., 258,73( 9.0%
Michigar........cooooiii i 208,41 7.2%
Washingtol...........ocooiii 199,03« 6.9%
WIiSCONSIL. ..t e 141,47: 4.9%
Pennsylvani...........cccooeeeiinn e e, 136,37( 4.7%
L0 =0 o ) 134,79¢ 4.7%
MINNESOti. ... vieiii et 107,45¢ 3.7%
North Carolini........ccccovv i, 103,95( 3.6%
Californic.......c.ooovvviii i 78,12: 2.7%
ATZONE... .o e, 73,87( 2.6%
[0 =1 o [P 54,96( 1.9%
South Carolin..........coooeviviiiiiiiiane. 44,78 1.5%
Other Statef) .......oovvviiiiiiic i 143,30! 5.0%

Total oo 2,887,06. 100%

Total commercial custome 286,1(
Total customel 3,173,1¢

M Includes Tennessee, Nevada, lowa, Nebraska, Algddtah, Georgia, New Mexico, Montana, Mississippd &lorida.

The number of our access lines is one metric that feen used to understand our revenue and pilitiitalhccess lines, however, he
become less relevant given our strategic focusustomer retention and broadband penetration. fioadily, we lose access lines becaus
competition, economic conditions, and by the lossezond lines upon the addition of broadband serviAn additional factor was introdut
at the end of the second quarter of 2012 when,tierobegan selling Simply Broadband, which is owodalband service without any wirel
circuit switched voice capabilities. We are attireg and retaining customers with this product, d@ntlas had a positive impact on

residential customer counts and revenues. Asudtregen selling this service to acquire or retairstomers, no access lines are sold nc
they counted. Similarly, during the fourth quartér2012, Frontier began selling a satellite br@adbproduct and we are trialing an AT
Mobility product bundled with broadband servicesilected markets. In both of these cases, a méreidice capability may not be incluc
and accordingly, in that situation, an accesswilenot be counted. In addition, in our normalese of business, we proactively remove ac
lines when we upgrade business customers from priktircuit switched lines and replace them withad@acilities that can be used for vc
services via VolP. As a result of all of the abostganges in access lines are not necessarilyd&ration of a loss of revenue or customers.

Network Architecture and Technology

Our local exchange carrier networks consist of regrdffice hosts and remote sites, primarily eqegpvith digital and Internet Protor
switches. The outside plant consists of transaadtdistribution delivery networks connecting oasthcentral office with remote central offi
and ultimately with our customers. We own fibetio@nd copper cable, which have been deployedumnetworks and are the prim
transport technologies between our host and repestial offices and interconnection points withesttncumbent carriers.
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Our fiber optic and copper transport system is bbgpaf supporting increasing customer demand fgh liandwidth transport services. We
currently upgrading our network with the latestelmiet Protocol Transport and routing equipment,oRfigurable Optical ADM Add/Dra
Multiplexers (ROADM) transport systems, Very Higlit-BRate DSL (VDSL) broadband equipment, and Voice dmérnet Protocol (VolF
switches. These systems will support advancedcgesuch as Ethernet, Dedicated Internet, Multippa Label Switching (MPLS) transpc
and VolP. The network is designed with redundaamay auto-failover capability on our major circuits.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had expandiebroadband availability to the households thraughhe Company’s territories as
follows:

2012 2011
Frontier Acquired Total Total
(In excess of) Legacy Territories Company Company
1 Mbps 92% 86% 88% 83%
3 Mbps 80% 84% 83% 76%
4 Mbps 76% 78% 77% 66%
6 Mbps 66% 77% 74% 56%
12 Mbps 42% 54% 51% NA
20 Mbps 38% 41% 40% 28%

Rapid and significant changes in technology areeetqul to continue to occur in the communicationsigtry. Our success will depend, in
on our ability to anticipate and adapt to technmlalgchanges. We believe that our existing netwandhitecture will enable us to respon:
these technological changes efficiently. In additiove anticipate reducing costs through the shadhdpest practices across operati
centralization or standardization of functions @nocesses, and deployment of technologies andmnsgsteat provide for greater efficiencies
profitability.

Competition

Competition in the communications industry is irsenWe experience competition from many commurooatiservice providers, includi
cable operators offering video, data and VolP petsluwireless carriers, long distance providersypetitive local exchange carriers, Inte
providers, satellite video, satellite broadband atiter wireline carriers. We believe that as ot®uaber 31, 2012, approximately 95% of
households in our territories could receive vodata and video services from a competitive provider

Business and residential customer behavior is t&ffeby the ongoing economic uncertainty, includimgertain policy matters at the fed:
government level. The weak economic environment pragluce increased delinquencies and bankruptoi@stherefore, affect our ability
collect money owed to us by business and residentdomers.

As a result of competition and the stagnant econ@ome of our customers may discontinue our sesviddese trends may continue and
result in a continued challenging revenue enviramme

We employ a number of strategies to combat the edithye pressures and changes in customer behawimd above. Our strategies
focused on preserving and generating new reveriwesgh customer retention, upgrading andsafing services to existing customers,

customer growth, wirbacks of former customers, new product deploymemd, by managing our profitability and cash flowotgh targete
reductions in operating expenses and capital expeed.

On the commercial side of our business, we aresetwn many of the same strategies and enhancedestisbed above as well as provic
transport services to wireless cell towers in euritories and expanding the number of peoplerselind servicing our medium, enterprise
government customers with sophisticated produdissarnvices (e.g., IP PBX, E911 equipment, Ethe®I&,trunking).

We are focused on enhancing the customer experignaifferentiate us from our competition. Our aoitment to customer service
demonstrated by our 100% U.S.-based workforcegegpanded customer service hours, shorter schedwulimdpws for inhome appointment
call reminders and followsp calls for service appointments. Additionallye seek to achieve our customer retention goaldfbyirg attractive
packages of valuaeded services to our voice customers. Our burgedces include broadband, unlimited long distacedéng, enhance
telephone features and video offerings.
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We are also focused on increasing sales of exigiiegucts, including unlimited long distance mirgjtbundles of long distance minu
wireless data, Internet portal advertising, andRtantier Secure product suite. In 2012, the Reor8ecure products generated $27.3 millic
revenue. Hard drive back-up services, 24-7 hegk & support and our www.TumTiki.comebsite, that provides over-thep Internet vide«
are also available to consumers and small busisebdseughout the United States. Although we arénmogtic about the opportunities
increase revenue and reduce customer churn @€tqroer attrition) that are provided by each ob#hmitiatives, we cannot provide assur:
about their long term profitability or impact ornvemue.

We believe that offering multiple products and &=s to our customers pursuant to price protegiimgrams, billing on a single bill, dine
bill pay, providing superior customer service, dmng active in our local communities will developstomer loyalty which should help
generate new, and retain existing, customer revenue

For additional discussion of our competitive stgéte, see “Company Strategies” above.
Regulatory Environment
The majority of our operations are regulated byRB& and various state regulatory agencies, ofilaccpublic service or utility commissiol

Some of our revenue is subject to regulation by Ri&C and various state regulatory agencies. Wedaxjgderal and state lawmaker:
continue to review and revise the statutes govgrttie level and type of regulation for telecommati@ns services.

Regulation of our busines

We are subject to federal, state and local reguiatWe have various regulatory authorizationsdor regulated service offerings. At
federal level, the FCC generally exercises jurisolicover facilities and services of common cagjeuch as our company, to the extent t
facilities are used to provide, originate or terat@ interstate or international telecommunicatisesvices. State regulatory commiss
generally exercise jurisdiction over common casfidacilities and services to the extent those faesitare used to provide, originate
terminate intrastate telecommunications servicaspdrticular, state regulatory agencies have snbiataoversight over the provision
incumbent telephone companies of interconnectiod mandiscriminatory network access to competitive prevéd In addition, loc
governments often regulate the public rightsaafy necessary to install and operate networks, may require service providers to ob
licenses or franchises regulating their use of ipuiights-ofway. Municipalities and other local governmentrages also may regulate ot
limited aspects of our business, by requiring usltiin cable franchises, construction permitstarabide by building codes.

We believe that competition in our service areds aointinue to increase in the future as a restithe Telecommunications Act of 1996 (
“1996 Act” or the “Telecommunications Actgnd actions taken by the FCC and state regulattthoaties, and through increased deployr
of various types of technology, although the ultienBorm and degree of competition cannot be prediet this time. Competition may lear
loss of revenues and profitability as a resultasfsl of customers; reduced usage of our networkupycostomers who may use alterna
providers for voice and data services; and redaostip prices for our services which may be necgdsameet competition.

Under the 1996 Act, state regulatory commissiongHarisdiction to arbitrate and review interconti@t disputes and agreements betv
ILECs and competitive local exchange carriers,dooadance with rules set by the FCC. State regylatommissions also may impose fee
providers of telecommunications services withinirthespective states to support state universaiceprograms. Many of the states in wi
we operate require prior approvals or notificatifarscertain acquisitions and transfers of assetstomers, or ownership of regulated entities.

The FCC and certain state regulatory commissiangonnection with granting their approvals of therisaction, specified certain cag
expenditure and operating requirements for the XeduTerritories for specified periods of time pokising. These requirements fo
primarily on certain capital investment commitmetatexpand broadband availability to at least 83%e households throughout the Acqu
Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 meégaper second (Mbps) by the end of 2013 and 4 Mbpshe end of 2015. As
December 31, 2012 we had expanded broadband alifilabexcess of 1 Mbps to 86% of the househdtlt®ughout the Acquired Territorit
in excess of 3 Mbps to 84% of the households throug the Acquired Territories, and in excess of #pklto 78% of the househo
throughout the Acquired Territories. We are orckro satisfy our 85% requirement for 3 Mbps by ¢nel of 2013.
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To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrheammitments to three state regulatory commissiaesplaced an aggregate amount of $1
million in cash into escrow accounts and obtainddti@r of credit for $190.0 million in 2010. An@h$72.4 million of cash in an escr
account (with a cash balance of $23.9 million andassociated liability of $0.2 million as of Decesnl31, 2012) was acquired in connec
with the Transaction to be used for service qualitifatives in the state of West Virginia. As bEcember 31, 2012, $145.0 million had k
released from escrow and the Company had a resiricash balance in these escrow accounts in thegajg amount of $42.7 millic
including interest earned. In addition, as of DelsenB1, 2012, the letter of credit had been redticei0.0 million. The aggregate amour
these escrow accounts and the letter of credit auifitinue to decrease over time as Frontier makegdquired capital expenditures in
respective states.

In addition, in certain states, we are subjectgerating restrictions such as rate caps (includiaintenance of existing rates on business
residential products and wholesale prices and terfnisterconnection agreements with competitivealoexchange carriers and arrangen
with carriers that, in each case, existed as otithe of the Transaction), continuation of prodbandle offerings that we offered before
Transaction, and restrictions on how early ternimafees are calculated, restrictions on caps @yei©f broadband capacity, and ce
minimum service quality standards for a definedqukof time (the failure of which to meet may reduolpenalties, including, in one state, ¢
management limitations on certain of our subsidmin that one state). In one other state, ouridiabi®s are subject to restrictions on
amount of dividends that can be paid to the pacempany for a period ending on June 30, 2014. Yeéeatso required to report cert
financial information and adhere for a period ofi¢ito certain conditions regulating competition aodsumer protection. Although mos
these requirements are generally consistent withbasiness plans, they may restrict our flexibility operating our business during
specified periods, including our ability to raisges in a declining revenue environment and to gemash transfers from our subsidiarie
two states if we do not meet certain operatingisereriteria.

Some legislation and regulations are, or couldhi future be, the subject of judicial proceediniggislative hearings and administra
proposals or challenges which could change the eraim which the entire industry operates. Neitllee outcome of any of the
developments, nor their potential impact on us,lmapredicted at this time. Regulation can chaagélly in the communications industry, i
such changes may have an adverse effect on us:R&keFactors—Risks Related to Regulatio@hanges in federal or state regulations
reduce the switched access charge revenues weaécei

Regulation of the telecommunications industry atettiederal and state lev

At the federal level and in a number of the statewhich we operate, we are subject to price capeoentive regulation plans under wh
prices for regulated services are capped in rdturthe elimination or relaxation of earnings ovghs. The goal of these plans is to pro
incentives to improve efficiencies and increasedimpy flexibility for competitive services while saring that customers receive reasor
rates for basic services. Some of these plans laved terms and, as they expire, we may neeckteegotiate with various states. Tt
negotiations could impact rates, service quality/aninfrastructure requirements which could impagt earnings and capital expenditures
other states in which we operate, we are subjeatate of return regulation that limits levels ofrmags and returns on investme
Approximately 26% of our total access lines at Deiger 31, 2012 are in state jurisdictions underrtite of return regulatory model. 1
FCC’s National Broadband Plan, a noimding set of recommendations released in March028nd described further below, recommt
requiring all incumbent local exchange carrierdéoregulated for interstate services, if at alidemincentive regulation. On November
2011, the FCC released a Report and Order and dfukthtice of Proposed Rulemaking on the subjecthef Order. We will continue
advocate our position for no or reduced regulatidth various regulatory agencies. In some of dates, we have already been success
reducing or eliminating price regulation on endfusgrvices subject to state commission jurisdiction

The FCC's Order changed how federal subsidies al@ilated and disbursed, with these changes bdiagegin beginning in 2012. The
changes transition the Federal Universal Servightfiost Fund, which supports voice services in {tigét areas, to the CAF, which supp
broadband deployment in higlost areas. CAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, gesvfor ongoing USF support for price cap carrterde
capped at the 2011 amount. In addition, the FCCAR Phase | made available for price cap ILECsddit®mnal $300 million in increment
high cost broadband support to be used for broatidaployment to unserved areas. Frontier was didibreceive $71.9 million of the to
$300 million CAF Phase | interim support. On Jully 2012, Frontier formally notified the FCC and epiate state commissions of its in
to accept those funds and identified the unserweations to be served using the funds. The $71l®min incremental CAF Phase | suppol
expected to enable an incremental 92,877 househaldisvill be accounted for as Contributions in AfdConstruction. Frontier is requirec
implement, spend and enable these 92,877 householdister than July 24, 2015. As of December 31122 Frontier has received $6
million of the CAF Phase | support funds and hasaiy recorded these funds as increases to CashGther liabilities in the balan
sheet. The FCC is currently considering the rtdeslistribution of incremental CAF funding in 2013
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Telephone companies are subject to FCC rules gmgeprivacy of certain customer information. Amoather things, these rules oblig
carriers to implement procedures to: protect certaistomer information from inappropriate discl@suobtain customer permission to
certain information in marketing; authenticate oustérs before disclosing account information; andaualily certify compliance with the FCE’
rules.

Most states have certification requirements thquire providers of telecommunications serviceslitaim authority from the state regulat
commission prior to offering common carrier sergicéMost of the local exchange companies that peraded by us operate as incum
carriers in the states in which they operate amdcartified in those states to provide local tefecwnications services. State regula
commissions regulate some of the rates ILECs chfmmgmtrastate services, including rates for iatede access services paid by provide
intrastate long distance services. The Order, heweremoves much of the statemithority to set terminating intrastate switchedes
rates. This aspect of the Order has been challelngeertain parties in court.

Recent and potential regulatory developme

The FCC, state regulators, and federal and stgtsld¢éors are currently considering a number oppeals for changing the manner in wi
eligibility for federal and state subsidies is detmed as well as the amounts of such subsidiesir&ueductions in our subsidy or switc
access revenues may directly affect our profitgbéind cash flows as those regulatory revenuesadchave an equal level of associi
variable expenses. Switched access and subsidpues continued to decline in 2012, as compar@01d, and are expected to decline fui
in 2013.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Ordemeform the Federal Universal Service HiGbst Fund and Intercarr
Compensation. Intercarrier Compensation, whicthéspayment framework that governs how carrierspmmate each other for the exche
of interstate traffic, will transition over a nunrbaf years, with the first step implemented in JAOA 2, to a near zero rate for terminating tri
by 2017. Frontier will be able to recover a sigiaint portion of those revenues through end ustrsrand other replacement sup
mechanisms. Additionally, the Order requires Vol@viders to pay interstate terminating interconioeccharges and requires all carr
terminating traffic to provide appropriate call anfnation, thus prohibiting so-called “phantom ti@ff The Order preempts the states
regard to the regulation of intrastate terminatiegess rates. The reform of the Universal Sevioe shifts the existing HigBost portion ¢
the fund from supporting voice services to suppgrtbroadband deployment in highbst areas. The Order has been challenged byin
parties in court and certain parties have alsdipe&d the FCC to reconsider various aspects oOttaer. Accordingly, Frontier cannot pret
the long-term impact at this time but believes that Order will provide a stable regulatory framekvto facilitate Fronties ongoing focus ¢
the deployment of broadband into its rural markets.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considavimgther to make changes in its regulatory regimeegong special access servi
including whether to mandate lower rates, changadstrds for deregulation and pricing flexibility,, to require changes to other terms
conditions. When and how these proposed chandebenaddressed is unknown and, accordingly, weuaedble to predict the impact of fut
changes on our results of operations.

Certain states also have their own open proceedingddress reform to intrastate access chargestaad intercarrier compensation and ¢
universal service funds. In addition, we have bagoroached by, and/or are involved in formal spateeedings with, various carriers see
reductions in intrastate access rates in certatest Although the FCC has pepted state jurisdiction on certain access chargany state
are still considering moving forward with their peedings. We cannot predict when or how these rsait#l be decided or the effect on «
subsidy or switched access revenues.
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Regulators at both the federal and state levelsiraonto address whether VoIP services are sulijettte same or different regulatory
intercarrier compensation regimes as traditionatevdelephony. The FCC, through the Order, hasrdehed that VolRoriginated traffi
terminating on the Public Switched Telephone Nekwisrsubject to interstate access rates. The F&lingd to address other VotBlater
issues. The FCC has stated its intent to addness questions regarding the treatment of VoIP sesvin its ongoing “IF=nabled Servict
Proceeding.” Internet telephony may have an adganitathe marketplace over our traditional servitégemains less regulated.

Current and potential Internet regulatory obligatits

In connection with our Internet access offeringg @ould become subject to laws and regulationshag &re adopted or applied to
Internet. There is currently only limited regudatiapplicable to these services. As the signifieanf the Internet expands, federal, state
local governments may pass laws and adopt rulesreguaations, or apply existing laws and regulatido the Internet (including Inten
access services), and related matters are undeideoation in both federal and state legislative asgulatory bodies. We cannot pre
whether the outcome of pending or future proceeslimidj prove beneficial or detrimental to our cortifee position.

The FCC adopted orders which put wireline broadbimeinet access service, commonly delivered by DBS&fiber technology, as well
mobile wireless based broadband Internet accesgseand other forms of broadband Internet accessces on an equal regulatory fool
with cable modem service. This approach is comsistith a United States Supreme Court decisiomlaiig the FCCS classification of cab
modem services as “information servicesSt subject to mandatory common carriage regulat®pecifically, the FCC has determined
these information services are functionally intéggdawith any underlying telecommunications companand that there is no obligation
separate out and offer that transmission composahject to common carriage regulation. The FCC ihgsosed particular regulatc
obligations on broadband services. For examplda# concluded that VolP and facilitibased broadband Internet access providers
comply with the Communications Assistance for Lamfdicement Act, a decision that the United StatesrCof Appeals for the District
Columbia Circuit has upheld. The FCC has alsoiredqu/olP providers to provide enhanced 911 emargealling capabilities.

In October 2009, the FCC issued a proposed rulargdkioking at rules to “Preserve a Free and Op&ariet,”including a reconsideration
the legal classification of broadband and propassttictions on broadband network management jpetiOn December 21, 2010, the |
adopted an order imposing some regulations onrateservice providers. These regulations affeadiand mobile broadband provic
differently. These regulations became effectiveedober 20, 2011, and Frontier is in compliance whtse regulations. These regulation:
currently subject to court challenge by multipletigs, and the outcome and its effect on Fron§emknown.

Video programming. Federal, state and local governments extensivelylage the video services industry. Our fiber opiideo service
subject to, among other things, subscriber privagulations; requirements that we carry a locahtioast station or obtain consent to cal
local or distant broadcast station; rules for flase renewals and transfers; the manner in whiogram packages are marketed to subscri
and program access requirements.

We provide video programming, on a limited basis, Qregon, Washington and Indiana pursuant to frigesh permits and simil
authorizations issued by local franchising autlesitutilizing fiber optic delivery transport to thHeme. Most franchises are subjec
termination proceedings in the event of a matdwiahch. In addition, most franchises require payroéa franchise fee as a requirement t
granting of authority.

Many franchises establish comprehensive faciliiesl service requirements, as well as specific oustoservice standards and mone
penalties for nortompliance. In many cases, franchises are terd@rifithe franchisee fails to comply with signifidaprovisions set forth
the franchise agreement governing system operathfes believe that we are in compliance and meetithgstandards and requireme
Franchises are generally granted for fixed termatdéast ten years and must be periodically redev®cal franchising authorities may re
granting a renewal if either past performance erpgtospective operating proposal is considereceigaate.

For information regarding approvals by local fraisghg authorities in connection with the transatsiosee “— Regulatory Environment
Regulation of our business.”
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Environmental regulation

Like all other local telephone companies, the lomethange carrier subsidiaries we operate are dutgefederal, state and local laws
regulations governing the use, storage, disposaraf exposure to hazardous materials, the relegsellutants into the environment and
remediation of contamination. As an owner and farowner of property, we are subject to environmakelatwvs that could impose liability 1
the entire cost of cleanup at contaminated siteduding sites formerly owned by us, regardles$aaft or the lawfulness of the activity tl
resulted in contamination. We believe that ourrapens are in substantial compliance with applieanvironmental laws and regulations.

Segment Information

We currently operate in only one reportable segment

Financial Information about Foreign and Domestic Ogerations and Export Sales
We have no foreign operations.

General

Order backlog is not a significant considerationour business. We have no material contracts bcauracts that may be subjec
renegotiation of profits or termination at the ¢il@e of the federal government.

Intellectual Property
We believe that we have the trademarks, trade nametintellectual property licenses that are nergdsr the operation of our business.
Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately Bt aiiployees. Approximately 9,200 of our employaesrepresented by unions.
number of employees covered by collective barggisigreements that expired in 2012, but have betsmeéed and are still open in 2013
approximately 2,400. The number of employees /by collective bargaining agreements that exipir2013 is approximately 4,150.
consider our relations with our employees to bedgoo

Available Information

We are subject to the informational requirementsthef Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Accordinghe file periodic reports, pro:
statements and other information with the Secusritied Exchange Commission (SEC). These reponsy fatatements and other informar
may be obtained by visiting the Public ReferencerR®f the SEC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, Q@549 or by calling the SEC at 1-
800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains derhet site ((www.sec.go)that contains reports, proxy and information estagnts an
other information regarding the Company and othsueérs that file electronically.

We make available, free of charge on our websiie Amnual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd=anm 100, Current Reports on Fo
8-K and amendments to these reports filed or furmighesuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Excleafigt, as soon as practicable aftel
electronically file these documents with, or fumishem to, the SEC. These documents may be ackcdabseugh our website

www.frontier.comunder “Investor Relations.The information posted or linked on our websitendd part of this report. We also make
Annual Report available in printed form upon reduwdsio charge.

We also make available on our website, or in pdritem upon request, free of charge, our Corpd&eernance Guidelines, Code of Busil
Conduct and Ethics, and the charters for the Awitnpensation, and Nominating and Corporate Gowema@ommittees of the Board
Directors. Stockholders may request printed copf¢hese materials by writing to: 3 High Ridge Ieé&tamford, Connecticut 06905 Attenti
Corporate Secretary. Our website address is wwntifr.com.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Before you make an investment decision with respmeany of our securities, you should carefully sider all the information we have incluc
or incorporated by reference in this FormK@nd our subsequent periodic filings with the SHE particular, you should carefully consi
the risk factors described below and read the réskd uncertainties related to “forward-looking staénts” hich we do not undertake
update) as set forth in the “Management’s Discusaind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®perations” section of this Form Q-
any of which could materially adversely affect tusiness, operating results, financial conditiod #re actual outcome of matters as to w
forward{ooking statements are made in this report. Tis&srand uncertainties described below are not dhly ones facing ol
company. Additional risks and uncertainties that ot presently known to us or that we currentgrd immaterial or that are not specifi
us, such as general economic conditions, may alsersely affect our business and operations. ©Hhewing risk factors should be read
conjunction with MD&A and the consolidated finaricséatements and related notes included in thisrtep

Risks Related to Our Business

We will likely face further reductions in voice ctmmers, switched access minutes of use, long distarevenues and federal a
state subsidy revenues, which could adversely affe.

We have experienced declining voice customerschwit access minutes of use, long distance revefautsal and state subsidies
related revenues because of economic conditiomseasing competition, changing consumer behavioch(sas wireless displacement
wireline use, enail use, instant messaging and increasing uset®)ytechnology changes and regulatory constraiite will likely continue
to experience reductions in the future. The factaferred to above, among others, are likely tasezour local network service, switcl
network access, long distance and subsidy revetwesntinue to decline, and these factors may causecash generated by operation
decrease.

We face intense competition, which could adversaffigct us.

The communications industry is extremely competitithrough mergers and various service expansrategtes, service provide
are striving to provide integrated solutions botithim and across geographic markets. Our compstittclude competitive local exchatr
carriers, Internet service providers, wireless canigs, VolP providers and cable companies that prayide services competitive with 1
services that we offer or intend to introduce. W0 believe that wireless and cable telephonyigess have increased their penetratio
various services in our markets. We expect thaivilleeontinue to lose customers and that compatitivill remain robust.

We cannot predict which of the many possible futieehnologies, products or services will be impaurt order to maintain o
competitive position or what expenditures will bequired to develop and provide these technologiesducts or services. Our ability
compete successfully will depend on the succesapital expenditure investments in our territoriesaddition to our new marketing effol
our ability to anticipate and respond to varioumpetitive factors affecting the industry, includiaghanging regulatory environment that |
affect our business and that of our competitorfedéfitly, new services that may be introduced, ghann consumer preferences, demogr
trends, economic conditions and pricing strategiesompetitors. Increasing competition may redowwerevenues and increase our marke
and other costs as well as require us to increaseapital expenditures and thereby decrease @l féawvs.

Some of our competitors have superior resourcesjolimay place us at a cost and price disadvantage.

Some of our competitors have market presence, eagiry, technical, marketing and financial captibdj substantially greater tt
ours. In addition, some of these competitors die &0 raise capital at a lower cost than we are ab. Consequently, some of th
competitors may be able to develop and expand to@mmunications and network infrastructures moreldy, adapt more swiftly to new
emerging technologies and changes in customerrergants, take advantage of acquisition and othpordpnities more readily and dev
greater resources to the marketing and sale of freducts and services than we will be able tddifionally, the greater brand na
recognition of some competitors may require usrioepour services at lower levels in order to etai obtain customers. Finally, the ¢
advantages of some of these competitors may gera the ability to reduce their prices for an exeshgderiod of time if they so choose.
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We may be unable to grow our revenues and cash $la@spite the initiatives we have implemented.

We must produce adequate revenues and cash flaysathen combined with cash on hand and funds abailunder our revolvir
credit facility, will be sufficient to service owtebt, fund our capital expenditures, pay our takas] our pension and other employee be
obligations and pay dividends pursuant to our @imi policy. We have identified some potential arelopportunity and implemented sev
growth initiatives, including increasing marketipgpmotions and related expenditures and launchévg products and services with a focu:
areas that are growing such as commercial, wireladssatellite broadband, satellite video produansl the Frontier Secure suite of prodt
which includes computer technical support. We ocarassure you that these opportunities will be sssful or that these initiatives v
improve our financial position or our results ofeogtions.

Weak economic conditions may decrease demand farsmuvices or necessitate increased discounts.

We could be adversely impacted if current econoeoitditions or their effects continue. Downturngtie economy and competiti
in our markets could cause some of our customersdoce or eliminate their purchases of our basit enhanced services, broadband
video services and make it difficult for us to dbtaew customers. In addition, if current econoradnditions continue, our customers t
delay or discontinue payment for our services @ksmore competitive pricing from other service pdevs, or we may be required to o
increased discounts in order to retain our custemer

Disruption in our networks, infrastructure and infomation technology may cause us to lose customensl éancur additiona
expenses.

To attract and retain customers, we must provitlable service. Some of the risks to our netwoik&astructure and informatis
technology include physical damage, security breschapacity limitations, power surges or outagefiware defects and other disrupti
beyond our control, such as natural disasters ateldd terrorism. From time to time in the ordpaourse of business, we experience
disruptions in our service due to factors suchadecdamage, theft of our equipment, inclement hexaand service failures of our thipgity
service providers. We could experience more sicanit disruptions in the future. We could alsoefaisruptions due to capacity limitation
changes in our customergsage patterns for our broadband services resut significant increase in capacity utilizationclsuas throug
increased usage of video or peempter file sharing applications. Disruptions mayse interruptions in service or reduced capacit
customers, either of which could cause us to los¢éomers and/or incur additional expenses, anélblyerdversely affect our business, reve
and cash flows.

Our business is sensitive to the creditwonimss of our wholesale customers.

We have substantial business relationships witeradlecommunications carriers for whom we proadevice. While bankruptcies
these carriers have not had a material adverset effeour business in recent years, future ban&regpin the industry could result in the los
significant customers by us, as well as cause mce competition and increased uncollectible aot®veceivable. Such bankruptcies ma
more likely in the future if economic conditionsighate. As a result, our revenues and resultp@fations could be materially and adver
affected.

A significant portion of our workforce is represeatl by labor unions.

As of December 31, 2012, we had approximately 181 gfployees. Approximately 9,200 of these emmey®r 63% of the tol
workforce, were represented by unions and werefber subject to collective bargaining agreemen®. the unionrepresented employees
of December 31, 2012, approximately 6,600, or 72% e unionized workforce, are covered by colleetagreements that expire in 2013
approximately 1,200, or 13% of the unionized workéy are covered by collective bargaining agreesggrat expire in 2014.

We cannot predict the outcome of negotiations ef¢bllective bargaining agreements covering ourleyaes. If we arainable ti
reach new agreements or renew existing agreememployees subject to collective bargaining agreésnemy engage in strikes, wi
slowdowns or other labor actions, which could miatlyr disrupt our ability to provide services. Ndabor agreements or the renewa
existing agreements may impose significant newscostus, which could adversely affect our financ@idition and results of operations in
future.
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If we are unable to hire or retain key personnelgwnay be unable to operate our business succelgsful

Our success will depend in part upon the contiragrdices of our management. We cannot guaran&etin key personnel will n
leave or compete with us. The loss, incapacityr@vailability for any reason of key members of management team could have a mai
impact on our business. In addition, our finanoéslults and our ability to compete will suffer altbwe become unable to attract, integra
retain other qualified personnel in the future.

Regulatory authorities, in connection with their gpoval of the acquisition, imposed on us certainnzhitions relating to our capite
expenditures and business operations which may aslely affect our financial performance.

The FCC and certain state regulatory commissiangonnection with granting their approvals of tharisaction, specified certi
capital expenditure and operating requirementshferAcquired Territories for specified periods iofi¢ postelosing. These requirements fo
primarily on certain capital investment commitmetat®@xpand broadband availability to at least 8% e households throughout the acqu
Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 meagaper second (Mbps) by the end of 2013 and 4 Mbpshe end of 2015. As
December 31, 2012 we had expanded broadband alifilabexcess of 1 Mbps to 86% of the househdtld®ughout the Acquired Territorit
in excess of 3 Mbps to 84% of the households throug the Acquired Territories, and in excess of #pklto 78% of the househo
throughout the Acquired Territories.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investheammitments to three state regulatory commissiagsplaced an aggregate amc
of $115.0 million in cash into escrow accounts abtained a letter of credit for $190.0 million iI6ID. Another $72.4 million of cash in
escrow account (with a cash balance of $23.9 miland an associated liability of $0.2 million as¥cember 31, 2012) was acquire
connection with the Transaction to be used foriserguality initiatives in the state of West Vir@n As of December 31, 2012, $145.0 mil
had been released from escrow and the Company hesitricted cash balance in these escrow accounrisei aggregate amount of $4
million, including interest earned. In addition, @sDecember 31, 2012, the letter of credit hadnbesluced to $40.0 million. The aggrey
amount of these escrow accounts and the letteredlitovill continue to decrease over time as Feminakes the required capital expendit
in the respective states. The amounts held irethesrow accounts will not be released until Fesrmiakes the required capital expenditt
and we may have to spend more than the amountsntiyriheld in these escrow accounts to achievec#pital expenditure and operat
requirements.

In addition, in certain states, we are subjectyerating restrictions such as rate caps (includimagntenance of existil
rates on business and residential products andewdla prices and terms of interconnection agreesweittt competitive local exchange carr
and arrangements with carriers that, in each aadsted as of the time of the Transaction), comtiin of product bundle offerings that
offered before the Transaction, and restrictionbi@n early termination fees are calculated, retsbris on caps on usage of broadband cap
and certain minimum service quality standards fdefined period of time (the failure of which to edemay result in penalties, including in
state, cash management limitations on certain pkobsidiaries in that one state). In one oth&tesiour subsidiaries are subject to restric
on the amount of dividends that can be paid tgtrent company for a period ending on June 30, .20%4 are also required to report cer
financial information and adhere for a period aféito certain conditions regulating competition andsumer protection.

We may complete a future significant strategic tigaction that may not achieve intended results oultbincrease the number
our outstanding shares or amount of outstanding del result in a change of control.

We continuously evaluate and may in the futurereinte additional strategic transactions. Any sti@msaction could happen at .
time, could be material to our business and caaikg any number of forms, including, for example aaquisition, merger or a sale of al
substantially all of our assets.

Evaluating potential transactions and integratiojpleted ones may divert the attention of our mansnt from ordinary operati
matters. The success of these potential transectidll depend, in part, on our ability to realitee anticipated growth opportunities and
synergies through the successful integration oftth&inesses we acquire with our existing busin&s®n if we are successful in integra
acquired businesses, we cannot assure you that thtegrations will result in the realization ofetffull benefit of any anticipated grov
opportunities or cost synergies or that these litsnsfll be realized within the expected time fraandn addition, acquired businesses may
unanticipated liabilities or contingencies.

If we complete an acquisition, investment or otheategic transaction, we may require additionadrficing that could result in
increase in the number of our outstanding sharethermaggregate amount of our debt. The numbehafes of our common stock or
aggregate principal amount of our debt that we imaye may be significant. A strategic transactitay result in a change in control of
company or otherwise materially and adversely afbeic business.
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Risks Related to Liquidity, Financial Resources andCapitalization

If the lingering impact of the ongoing economic uedainty continues through 2013, it may have an iagi on our business ar
financial condition.

Disruption and uncertainty in the capital marketsd tightening of credit availability may affecetfinancial health of our custome
vendors and partners, which in turn may negatiedfgct our revenues, operating expenses and casls.flin addition, we have a $75
million revolving credit facility that is scheduled terminate on January 1, 2014 . Althowgh believe, based on information available tc
that the financial institutions syndicated under tavolving credit facility would be able to fulftheir commitments to us, this could charige
the future.

Volatility in asset values related to Frontiex’pension plan and/or changes in pension plan as@tions may require us to ma
contributions to fund pension plan liabilities.

Frontier's pension plan assets have decreased from $1,2f8dh at December 31, 2011, to $1,253.6 millidrDeecember 31, 2012
decrease of $4.4 million. This decrease is a resubenefit payments of $172.6 million, primaribffset by $139.6 million of positiy
investment returns (including additional asset ¢fars from Verizon of $13.0 million) and net cohtriions of cash of $28.6 million. T
Company expects to make contributions of approxetye®60 million in 2013. Volatility in our assetles or returns may require us to r
additional contributions in future years.

Substantial debt and debt service obligations mayexsely affect us.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness, whitlounted to $8.9 billion at December 31, 2012. J@nuary 15, 2013, $50:
million of this indebtedness matured and was rétiséth cash on hand. We have access to a $75lliOmrevolving credit facility andmay
also obtain additional lonterm debt and working capital lines of credit toanfuture financing needs, subject to certain igtgtns under th
terms of our existing indebtedness. Despite thestamtial indebtedness that we have, we are ndiilpted from incurring addition
indebtedness.

The potential significant negative consequencesoon financial condition and results of operatiohsittcould result from o
substantial debt include:

« limitations on our ability to obtain additional dedr equity financing;

« instances in which we are unable to meet the fiilmhraovenants contained in our debt agreement agenerate ca
sufficient to make required debt payments, whighwhstances have the potential of acceleratingrthgirity of some or ¢
of our outstanding indebtedne

« the allocation of a substantial portion of our célsiv from operations to service our debt, thusueidg the amount of o
cash flow available for other purposes, includingemting costs, capital expenditures and dividehds would otherwis
improve our competitive position, results of opinasg or stock price

« requiring us to sell debt or equity securitiesmsell some of our core assets, possibly on unéblerterms, to meet paym
obligations;

« compromising our flexibility to plan for, or reattt, competitive challenges in our business anccttii|emunications industr
and

« the possibility of our being put at a competitivieadivantage with competitors who do not have ashnagbt as we do, a
competitors who may be in a more favorable positibaccess additional capital resourt

In addition, our senior notes are rated below “ste@ent gradeby independent ratings agencies. This can resuitgher borrowin

costs for us. We cannot assure you that thesggratiencies will not lower our current debt ratjnfgs the rating agenciegidgment, such ¢
action is appropriate. A lowering of a rating nfagther increase our future borrowing costs andicedour access to capital.
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We cannot assure that we will be able to continusyimg dividends.

Effective February 16, 2012, our Board of Directees the annual cash dividend at $0.40 per shaegjuection from our prior dividel
level of $0.75 per share. However, the amounttanthg of future dividend payments is subject t@lggable law and will be made at -
discretion of our Board of Directors based on fexteuch as cash flow and cash requirements, capifsnditure requirements, finan
condition and other factors.

We have a significant amount of goodwill and othitangible assets on our balance sheet. If our gedll or other intangible
assets become impaired, we may be required to kaanon-cash charge to earnings and reduce our &tomders’ equity.

Under generally accepted accounting principlegngible assets are reviewed for impairment on anuanbasis or more frequer
whenever events or circumstances indicate thatatsying value may not be recoverable. The Compaoyitors relevant circumstanc
including general economic conditions, enterpriggue EBITDA multiples for rural ILEC properties, ehCompanys overall financie
performance, and the market prices for the Comgaogmmon stock, and the potential that changesdh sircumstances might have on
valuation of the Compang’intangible assets, including goodwill. If outaingible assets are determined to be impairedeifiuture, we may
required to record a non-cash charge to earningsglthe period in which the impairment is deteretn

Risks Related to Regulation
Changes in federal or state regulations may redube switched access charge revenues we receive.

A significant portion of Fronties total revenues ($257.8 million, or 5%, in 2018 derived from switched access charges pa
other carriers for services we proviiheoriginating and terminating intrastate and istate long distance traffic. As a result, Fronégpects
significant portion of the Comparg/revenues will continue to be derived from swittlaecess charges paid by these carriers for serthe
the Company will provide in originating and ternting this traffic. The amount of switched accebarge revenues that the Company
receive for these services is regulated by the BCstate regulatory agencies and is expectedctmedén 2013.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC adopted the Ordgerdarrier Compensation, which is the payment &aork that governs hc
carriers compensate each other for the exchangaesttate traffic, will transition over a numbdryears, with the first step implementec
July 2012, to a near zero rate for terminatindfizcdfy 2017. Frontier will be able to recover grsficant portion of those revenues through
user rates and other replacement support mechanisdditionally, the Order requires VolP providets pay interstate terminati
interconnection charges and requires all carremminating traffic to provide appropriate call infieation, thus prohibiting so-calleghtianton
traffic’. The Order preempts the states with regard to thelaon of intrastate terminating access ratese fieform of the Universal Serv
Fund shifts the existing High-Cost portion of thend from supporting voice services to supportingadband deployment in higlos
areas. The Order has been challenged by certdiega court and certain parties have also pet#d the FCC to reconsider various aspet
the Order. Accordingly, although we believe tha @rder will provide a stable regulatory framewtwlkfacilitate Frontiers ongoing focus ¢
the deployment of broadband into its rural markietentier cannot predict the long-term impact & time.

The FCC also has an ongoing proceeding considavimgther to make changes to its regulatory regimeigong special acce
servicesWhen and how these proposed changes will be addtéssunknown and, accordingly, Frontier cannotjotethe impact of futu
changes on the Company’s results of operations.

Certain states also have their own open proceedmgddress reform to intrastate access chargestapd intercarrier compensat
and state universal service funds. In additiomnker has been approached by, and/or is involmefibimal state proceedings with, vari
carriers seeking reductions in intrastate acce®s lia certain states. Although the FCC hasepngted state jurisdiction on certain ac
charges, many states are still considering movimgdrd with their proceedingsFrontier cannot predict when or how these mattalisbe
decided or the effect on the Company’s subsidyagtched access revenues. However, future redieiiothe Companyg subsidy or switche
access revenues may directly affect the Compapyodfitability and cash flows as those regulateyenues do not have an equal leve
associated variable expenses.
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We are reliant on support funds provided under fedeand state laws.

A significant portion of Fronties total revenues ($318.6 million in the aggregatég%, in 2012 and $300.1 million in the aggre¢
or 6%, in 2011)re derived from federal and state subsidies foal rand high cost support, commonly referred taaisersal service fur
subsidies. The FCC'’s Order changed how federalidielsswill be calculated and disbursed, with thekanges being phaséu-beginning il
2012. These changes transition the Federal Uriv&srvice High-Cost Fund, which supports voicevises in higheost areas, to the CA
which supports broadband deployment in unserveduaid@rserved high-cost are@AF Phase |, implemented in 2012, provides for amg
USF support for price cap carriers to be cappedea011 amount. In addition, the FCC in CAF PHasade available for price cap ILECs
additional $300 million in incremental high cosbadband support to be used for broadband deploytoemserved areas. Frontier was elic
to receive $71.9 million of the total $300 milli@AF Phase | interim support. On July 9, 2012, Hesrannounced that it would accept al
the funding for which it is eligible. On July 24022, Frontier formally notified the FCC and appiaf®@ state commissions of its intent to ac
those funds and identified the unserved locatiorsetserved using the funds. The $71.9 milliomorémental CAF Phase | support is expe
to enable an incremental 92,877 households and beillaccounted for as Contributions in Aid of Comstion. Frontier is required
implement, spend and enable these 92,877 householdater than July 24, 2015. As of December 31122 Frontier has received $6
million of the CAF Phase | support funds and ha®rged increases to Cash and Other liabilitiehétalance sheet. The FCC is curre
considering the rules for distribution of incremar@AF funding in 2013.

Federal subsidies representing interstate accegoruhigh cost loop support and local switchingport represented $160.7 milli
or 3%, of Frontier’s total revenues in 2012 and4@5million, or 3%, of Fronties total revenues in 2011. State subsidies repiexs&i38..
million, or 1%, of Frontiers total revenues in 2012 and $41.6 million, or 1#62011. Surcharges to customers (local, longadist an
interconnection) to recover universal service fumtribution fees which are remitted to the FCC amcdorded as an expense i@thel
operating expenses”, represented $119.7 millio2%ry of Frontier's total revenues in 2012 and $204illion, or 2%, in 2011.

Our Company and our industry will likely remain higy regulated, and we could incur substantial conigice costs that cou
constrain our ability to compete in our target maats.

As an incumbent local exchange carrier, some obémeices we offer are subject to significant ragah from federal, state and lo
authorities. This regulation could impact our dfpito change our rates, especially on our basicesservices and our access rates, and
impose substantial compliance costs on us. Regalabuld constrain our ability to compete andsame jurisdictions, may restrict our abi
to expand our service offerings. In addition, aemto the regulations that govern our businegsu@imng any implementation of the Ord
may have an adverse effect on our business by ireglttee allowable fees that we may charge, impoanhdjtional compliance costs, reduc
the amount of subsidies or otherwise changing #taera of our operations and the competition inindustry. At this time it is unknown hc
these regulations will affect Frontisroperations or ability to compete in the futufdis and other FCC rulemakings and state regul
proceedings, including those relating to intereardompensation, universal service and broadbamnices, could have a substantial adv
impact on our operations.

In addition, in connection with our Internet accefferings, we could become subject to laws andileggpns as they are adoptec
applied to the Internet. There is currently oritpited regulation applicable to these services. tes significance of the Internet expai
federal, state and local governments may pass &wsadopt rules and regulations, or apply existavgs and regulations to the Inter
(including Internet access services), and relatatters are under consideration in both federalsdat legislative and regulatory bodies.
cannot predict whether the outcome of pending turéuproceedings will prove beneficial or detrimadrid our competitive position.

We may not be able to deploy the unserved locatioith the CAF funds received.
During 2012 and early 2013, we received $71.9 arillfrom the CAF, which supports broadband deploynieiigh-cost areas.

Frontier is unable to deploy to the 92,877 unsereedtions with the CAF funds received to date dgeaadance with the FCC rules by ¢
2015, then the Company would need to incur additicapital expenditures or refund a portion of @ received in 2012 to the FCC.
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Risks Related to Technology

In the future, as competition intensifies within aumarkets, we may be unable to meet the technolafjieeds or expectations of c
customers, and may lose customers as a result.

The communications industry is subject to significghanges in technology. If we do not replaceupgrade technology a
equipment, we may be unable to compete effectibeliause we will not be able to meet the needsmeatations of our customers. Repla
or upgrading our infrastructure could result inngigant capital expenditures.

In addition, rapidly changing technology, enhancetsd¢o product offerings and the management ofdivaad speed and capa
issues may influence our customers to consider ailiice providers, like cable operators or wesleroviders. We may be unable to at
or retain new customers from cable companies dtlegio deployment of enhanced broadband and VaiRnigogy. In addition, new capac
services for wireless broadband technologies mamip@ur competitors to offer broadband data sewito our customers throughout mos
all of our service areas.

Our Internet services could be adversely affectenl ave may be subject to increased costs and clamt®nnection with Internet
and systems security and malicious Internet praesc

We use encryption and authentication technolognbed from third parties to provide secure transiomsof confidential informatio
including our business data and customer informatiye also rely on employees in our network openatcenters, data centers, call cer
and retail stores to follow our procedures whendfing such information. Any unauthorized accessnputer viruses, accidental or intentic
release of confidential information or other didiaps could result in increased costs, customesatisfaction leading to loss of customers
revenues, and fines and other liabilities.

In addition, our Company or our customers using metivork to access the Internet may become victirmalicious and abusi
Internet activities, including unsolicited mass edising (“spam”), peer-tpeer file sharing, distribution of viruses, wornmlather destructiy
or disruptive software. These activities couldexdely affect our network, result in excessive galume at our call centers and damage o
our customers’ equipment and data.

Despite security measures and business continlatyspthe Companyg’information technology networks and infrastruetaray b
vulnerable to damage, disruptions or shutdownstdwtack by hackers or breaches, employee erroratfieasance, power outages, comg
viruses, telecommunication or utility failures, ®ms failures, natural disasters or other cataBicopvents. Any such events could resu
legal claims or proceedings, liability or penaltigsler privacy laws, disruption in operations, mggapriation of sensitive data, damage tc
Company’s reputation and costly response measwtash could adversely affect the Companpusiness. There can be no assurance the
disruptions or misappropriations and the resultiegercussions will not be material to our resuftoperations, financial condition or c:
flows.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Our principal corporate offices are located in é&shpremises at 3 High Ridge Park, Stamford, Coimead6905.

Our principal operations support offices and calhter support offices are currently located in éelasr owned premises at 180 South Cli
Avenue, Rochester, New York 14646, at 100 CTE Dridallas, Pennsylvania 18612, at 805 South CeBtxptessway, Allen, Texas 75013
14450 Burnhaven Drive, Burnsville, Minnesota 553861398 South Woodland Blvd., DelLand, Florida 327& 1800 4%t Street, Everel
Washington 98203, at 1500 MacCorkle Avenue, ChamedNest Virginia 25303, at 8001 W. Jefferson Bl\Nebrt Wayne, Indiana 46804, ¢
at 1300 Columbu&andusky Road North, Marion, Ohio 43302. In additiwe lease and own additional space in our opgraharket
throughout the United States for operations supgmdtcall center support.

Our telephone properties include: connecting lihesveen customers' premises and the central offaagral office switching equipme
fiber-optic and microwave radio facilities; buildings alehd; and customer premise equipment. The commgdities, including aerial a
underground cable, conduit, poles, wires and mien@vequipment, are located on public streets agiulwzys or on privately owned land. '
have permission to use these lands pursuant tbdogarnmental consent or lease, permit, francleiasement or other agreement.

The plants and properties (owned or leased) opktate-rontier and its subsidiaries are maintaimedaod condition and are believed tc
suitable and adequate for our present needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Finaigtatements included in Part IV of this report.

We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdimdividual, class and putative class actions3iagi in the normal course of our busir
covering a wide range of matters and types of ddamoluding, but not limited to, general contrattiling disputes, rights of access, taxes
surcharges, consumer protection, trademark andipatengement, employment, regulatory, tort, olaiof competitors and disputes with o
carriers. Litigation is subject to uncertainty ah& outcome of individual matters is not preditgatHowever, we believe that the ultim
resolution of all such matters, after consideringurance coverage or other indemnities to whichaveeentitled, will not have a mate
adverse effect on our financial position, resuftsferations, or our cash flows.

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our Executive Officers as of February 15, 2013 were

Name Age Current Position and Officer
Kathleen Q. Abernath 56 Executive Vice President, External Affa
Andrew Crain 51 Senior Vice President and General Coul
Susana I'Emic 49 Senior Vice President and Control
Lois Hed¢-peth 56 Executive Vice President, Strate
John M. Jurelle 53 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Ofi-Elect
Daniel J. McCarth 48 President and Chief Operating Offic
Cecilia K. McKenney 50 Executive Vice President, Human Resources and Adtraive Service
Donald R. Shassig 57 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Melinda White 53 Executive Vice President, Revenue Developn
Mary Agnes Wilderotte 58 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

There is no family relationship between directorserecutive officers. The term of office of eadhtloe foregoing officers of Frontier w
continue until the next annual meeting of the BaarBirectors and until a successor has been @eastd qualified.

KATHLEEN Q. ABERNATHY joined Frontier's managemetgiam in March 2010, after serving as a member ofiier’s Board of Directol
from April 2006 to March 2010. She is currentlyeeutive Vice President, External Affairs. Previgushe was Chief Legal Officer a
Executive Vice President, Regulatory and Governn¥ifairs from March 2010 to June 2012. From OctoB€08 to March 2010, M
Abernathy was a partner at the law firm of WilkinsBarker Knauer, LLP. Prior to that time, she \agsartner at the law firm of Akin Gur
Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP from March 2006 to Octab@®8. From June 2001 to December 2005, she sesradCommissioner at the Fed
Communications Commission.

ANDREW CRAIN joined Frontier in June 2012 as Senfize President and General Counsel. Prior tq tléswas Scholar in Residence in
Interdisciplinary Telecommunications Program atlthréversity of Colorado Boulder from August 2011Jiene 2012, teaching communicati
law, research methods and telecommunications induahd a Senior Fellow at the Silicon Flatironsntee for Law, Technology ai
Entrepreneurship. From June 2000 to April 2011, Ghain held various Deputy General Counsel andéiate General Counsel position
Qwest Communications International, Inc. in the ®atpry, Commercial, FCC and Wholesale Groups.nFharch 1997 to June 2000,
held legal positions at US West Communicationsdpcessor to Qwest), in the Regulatory and LitigatByoups. Prior to joining Qwest,
was a Partner in the law firm of Ross & Hardies.

SUSANA D’EMIC joined Frontier in April 2011 as SemiVice President and Controller. Previously, slas with Reades Digest Associatic
from January 1998 until joining Frontier, most neity as Vice President, Corporate Controller fromcBmber 2007 until April 2011 and pi
to that as Vice President, North American Contralfem May 2003 until December 2007. Before jomiReaders Digest, she held varic
positions with Kraft Foods Corp., Colgate Palmol@empany and was an audit manager with KPMG (th&M& Peat Marwick). M
D’Emic is a certified public accountant.

LOIS HEDGPETH joined Frontier in July 2012 as Executive Vieeesident, Strategy. From September 2009 to Buyste 2010 ar
September 2011 to April 2012, she was a contragttir Frontier with the position of Executive VicedBident, Integration. From 2002
2008, Ms. Hedgeeth held various positions with Centrica, a cortipetenergy retailer, including President, U.S.e@giions; Executive Vi
President of Marketing, Director of Energy for Bfit Gas and Chief Operating Officer of North Amarifor its Direct Energy division. Prior
Centrica Ms. Hedg-peth was President, Fixed Wise@gerations, for AT&T Wireless.

JOHN M. JURELLER joined Frontier in January 2013¥agcutive Vice President and Chief Financial GffiElect. Mr. Jureller will becon
Chief Financial Officer on February 27, 2013 upom. I8hassiars resignation from that position. Mr. Jureller w&enior Vice Presidel
Finance & Operations for the Resources Group ofeGdrAtlantic LLC from April 2008 to October 2012reviously, he was Chief Financ
Officer of WestPoint International, Inc. from Mar2006 to March 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Jurelleasra member of the Corporate Turnarc
& Restructuring practice of AlixPartners, LLC froApril 2003 to February 2006. Before joining Alixfgers, LLC, Mr. Jureller was Ch
Financial Officer of Tran®kesources, Inc., Senior Vice President, Corpora@ecdpment of Gartner, Inc. and Senior Vice Predideinanc
and Corporate Development at Caribiner Internatiobma
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DANIEL J. McCARTHY has been with Frontier since Retber 1990. He is currently President and Chiedr@ging Officer. Previously, |
was Executive Vice President and Chief Operatinfic&f from January 2006 to April 2012 and Seniocé&/President, Field Operations fr
December 2004 to December 2005. Prior to thatyée Senior Vice President Broadband Operations ffanuary 2004 to December 2(
President and Chief Operating Officer of Electrightwave from January 2002 to December 2004, Peasidnd Chief Operating Offic
Public Services Sector from November 2001 to Jan@802, Vice President and Chief Operating Offi¢aublic Services Sector from Ma
2001 to November 2001 and Vice President, CitiZei=ona Energy from April 1998 to March 2001.

CECILIA K. McKENNEY has been with Frontier since ifaary 2006. She is currently Executive Vice Rfest, Human Resources
Administrative Services. Previously, she was EkgeuVice President, Human Resources and Salesafipes from May 2012 to Janui
2013, Executive Vice President, Human ResourceafldCenter Sales & Service from February 200Bl&y 2012 and Senior Vice Presidt
Human Resources from February 2006 to February .280@r to joining Frontier, she was Group Vicee$tdent, Headquarters Hun
Resources, of The Pepsi Bottling Group (PBG) frod®£2to 2005. Previously at PBG Ms. McKenney waseVPresident, Headquart
Human Resources from 2000 to 2004.

DONALD R. SHASSIAN has been with Frontier since A@006. He is currently Executive Vice Presidant Chief Financial Officer. N
Shassian has announced his intention to resigpdsion effective February 27, 2013. Previoukly,was Chief Financial Officer from Ag
2006 to February 2008. Prior to joining Frontibfy. Shassian had been an independent consultacge €801 primarily providing M&
advisory services to several organizations in t@raunications industry. In his role as independmmtsultant, Mr. Shassian also serve
Interim Chief Financial Officer of the Northeastgien of Health Net, Inc. for a short period of timend assisted in the evaluatior
acquisition, disposition and capital raising oppaoities for several companies in the communicatiodsistry, including AT&T, Consolidatt
Communications and smaller companies in the ruredll exchange business. Mr. Shassian is a cdriffiblic accountant, and served f
years as the Senior Vice President and Chief Finbh@dficer of Southern New England Telecommunioasi Corporation and for more thar
years at Arthur Andersen, where his last positias &s Partner in Charge of the North American Datelmdustry.

MELINDA WHITE has been with Frontier since Janu@g05. She is currently Executive Vice Presidemydtue Development. Previou
she was Executive Vice President and General Manadarketing and New Business Operations from Ndyem2009 to Decemk
2010. Prior to that, she was Senior Vice PresidadtGeneral Manager, Marketing and New Business&@pns from July 2009 to Novem
2009. Ms. White was Senior Vice President and @Gdridanager of New Business Operations from Oct@@€Y7 to July 2009 and prior
that, Senior Vice President, Commercial Sales aadkkting from January 2006 to October 2007. Msit¥Wvas Vice President and Gen
Manager of Electric Lightwave from January 2005Juy 2006. Prior to joining Frontier, she was Hx@e Vice President, Natior
Accounts/Business Development for Wink Communicatifrom 1996 to 2002.

MARY AGNES WILDEROTTER has been with Frontier sindevember 2004. She is currently Chairman of tharB and Chief Executi
Officer. She was elected President and Chief BiezOfficer in November 2004 and Chairman of theaRl in December 2005. She
President of Frontier until April 2012. Prior toifing Frontier, she was Senior Vice Presidedtcridwide Public Sector of Microsoft Co
from February 2003 to November 2004 and Senior Piasident Worldwide Business Strategy of Microsoft Corp.nfr@002 to 2004. Befo
that she was President and Chief Executive Offi€&kink Communications from 1997 to 2002.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sto&holder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Sedities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is currently traded on the NASD&IQbal Select Market under the symbol FTR. Théofweing table indicates the high &
low intra-day sales prices per share during the periodsatetic as reported by the New York Stock Exchangauth December 15, 2011, ¢

the NASDAQ Global Select Market commencing on Delgeni6, 2011.

2012
High Low
First Quarte! $ 531 % 3.81
Second Quarte $ 444 % 3.0¢
Third Quartel $ 51t $ 3.5¢
Fourth Quarte $ 49¢ $ 4.0¢

2011
High Low
$ 984 % 7.6¢
$ 8.97 $ 7.71
$ 8.2: % 6.0¢
$ 6.4C $ 4.7¢

As of February 15, 2013, the approximate numbesectirity holders of record of our common stock %28,020. This information was

obtained from our transfer agent, Computershare Inc

DIVIDENDS

The amount and timing of dividends payable on ammmon stock are within the sole discretion of owail of Directors. From the th
quarter of 2004 through the second quarter of 2016€,paid an annualized cash dividend of $1.00 perres of common stock, p:
quarterly. From the third quarter of 2010 throdigé fourth quarter of 2011, we paid an annualizshdalividend of $0.75 per share of com
stock, paid quarterly. Effective February 16, 2042 Board of Directors set the annual cash dividat $0.40 per shareCash dividends pa
to shareholders were $399.4 million, $746.4 millaord $529.4 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respelst There are no material restrictit
on our ability to pay dividends. The decreaseggragate dividends paid in 2012, as compared td,2@flects the reduction in the amoun
the dividend per share, as described above. Thease in aggregate dividends paid in 2011, as cadpa 2010, reflects the increase in
number of shares outstanding as a result of thesaidion, offset in part by the reduction in theoant of the dividend per share, as desci

above. The table below sets forth dividends paidspare during the periods indicated.

A portion of the dividends is classified as totedinary dividends and represents qualified dividerahd a portion of the dividends is class

as non-dividend distributions and represents amaificapital.

2012 2011 2010
First Quartel $ 0.1C $ 0.187¢ $ 0.2t
Second Quarte $ 0.1C $ 0.187¢ $ 0.2t
Third Quartel $ 0.1C $ 0.187¢ $ 0.187:
Fourth Quarte $ 0.1C $ 0.187¢ $ 0.187¢
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STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph compares the cutivélaotal return of our common stock to the S&F0S®tock Index and to the S«
Telecommunication Services Index for the five-ypariod commencing December 31, 2007.

COMPARIECN OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURHK
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The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Dec&hp2007 in each of our common stock, the S&P S@@k Index and the S&P

Telecommunication Services Index and that all dinids were reinvested.

INDEXED RETURNS

Base Years Ending
Period
Company / Index 12/07 12/0¢ 12/0¢ 12/1C 12/11 12/1z2
Frontier Communications Corporation 100 75.5( 77.0¢ 107.0¢ 63.37 57.7¢
S&P 500 Index 100 63.0( 79.61 91.6¢ 93.61 108.5¢
S&P Telecommunication Service: 100 69.51 75.72 90.07 95.72 113.2¢

The foregoing performance graph and related infdiorashall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo e “filed” with the SEC, nor sh:
such information be incorporated by reference iaty future filings under the Securities Act of 1983he Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
each as amended, except to the extent we spegificabrporate it by reference into such filing.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES, USE OF FFEEEDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES

None in the fourth quarter of 201
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total
Number of Average Pric

Shares Paid per
Period Purchase: Share
October 1, 2012 to October 31, 2C
Employee Transactior® 4,46 $ 4.67
November 1, 2012 to November 30, 2(
Employee Transactior® 2,38¢ $ 4.71
December 1, 2012 to December 31, 2
Employee Transactior® 12,06( $ 4.5¢
Totals October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2
Employee Transactior® 18,90¢ $ 4.6:
@ Includes restricted shares withheld (under the $eph grants under employee stock compensation plan®ffset minimum ta

withholding obligations that occur upon the vestoigestricted shares. The Compangtock compensation plans provide that the »
of shares withheld shall be the average of the higth low price of the Compars/common stock on the date the relevant trans:
occurs.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables present selected historicalsmdidated financial information of Frontier foretiperiods indicated. The selected histo
consolidated financial information of Frontier dsaad for each of the five fiscal years in the pdrended December 31, 2012 has been de
from Frontiers historical consolidated financial statementse $alected historical consolidated financial infation as of December 31, 2(
and 2011 and for each of the three years endednilmre31, 2012 is derived from the audited histérézasolidated financial statements
Frontier included elsewhere in this Form KO-The selected historical consolidated finanairmation as of December 31, 2010, 2009
2008 and for each of the years ended December(®B and 2008 is derived from the audited historamaisolidated financial statement:
Frontier not included in this Form 10-K.

(% in thousands, except per share amounts) Year Ended December 33),
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Revenue $ 5,011,85 $ 5,243,004 $ 3,797,67 % 2,117,89. $ 2,237,01
Income from continuing operatiof& () (4) $ 153,31: $ 157,60¢ $ 155,717 $ 123,18: $ 184,27
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrofifier (2
@@ $ 136,63t $ 149,61: $ 152,67, $ 120,78. $ 182,66(
Net income attributable to common shareholdersrontter
per basic shar@ ©) () $ 01 $ 0.1t $ 02: $ 03t $ 0.57
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroffier
per diluted shar@® (3) (4) $ 01 $ 0.1t 3 02: $ 03¢ $ 0.57
Cash dividends declared (and paid) per common ¢ $ 04C $ 0.7t $ 087t $ 10C $ 1.0C
As of December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Total asset $ 17,73363 $ 17,44831 $ 17,888,110 $ 6,903,520 $ 6,891,67:
Long-term debr $ 8,381,94 $ 8,224,39, $ 8,005,68' $ 4,819,40. $ 4,724,68
Total shareholders' equity of Front $ 410759 $ 445513 $ 5,196,74 $ 32761, $ 519,04!

(I Operating results include activities for the AceguiBusiness from the date of its acquisition froarixon on July 1, 201(

(@ Operating results include the pia¢ impacts of losses on retirement of debt or argles of debt of $90.4 million ($56.7 million aftax
or $0.06 per share), $45.9 million ($28.9 milliditea tax or $0.09 per share) and $6.3 million ($aillion after tax or $0.01 per sha
for 2012, 2009 and 2008, respective

() Operating results include pre-tax acquisition gntelgration costs of $81.7 million ($51.8 millioftex tax or $0.05 per share), $143.1
million ($88.4 million after tax or $0.09 per shpr$137.1 million ($85.7 million after tax or $0.p&r share) and $28.3 million ($17.8
million after tax or $0.06 per share) for 2012, 202010 and 2009, respective

@ Operating results include pre-tax severance afsk82.0 million ($21.0 million after tax or $0.@2r share), $15.7 million ($9.7 million
after tax or $0.01 per share), $10.4 million ($6ndlion after tax or $0.01 per share), $3.8 milligh2.4 million after tax or $0.01 per
share), and $7.6 million ($4.7 million after tax$D.01 per share) for 2012, 2011, 2010, 20092088, respectively
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K contains forwhooking statements that are subject to risks arédainties that could cause actual resu
differ materially from those expressed or impliadhie statements. Statements that are not hiatdacts are forwardboking statements ma
pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of The BeiG&ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Worslech as “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect”
and similar expressions are intended to identifyvésd-looking statements. Forwalabking statements (including oral representaticars
only predictions or statements of current plandctvive review continuously. Forwatdeking statements may differ from actual futursulé
due to, but not limited to, and our future resuti@y be materially affected by, potential risks ocertainties. You should understand that
not possible to predict or identify all potentiegks or uncertainties. We note the following gmaetial list:

» The effects of greater than anticipated competitidrich could require us to develop new pricing, ketéing strategies or new produci
service offerings and the risk that we will notgesd on a timely or profitable basis;

» Reductions in the number of our voice custontiesis we cannot offset with increases in broadbamd&ibers and sales of other products
and services;

» The effects of competition from cable, wirelessl other wireline carriers;
* Our ability to maintain relationships with custers, employees or suppliers;

» The effects of ongoing changes in the regulatiothefcommunications industry as a result of fedanal state legislation and regulatior
changes in the enforcement or interpretation ofidegislation and regulation;

» The effects of any unfavorable outcome with resgecany current or future legal, governmental ayutatory proceedings, audits
disputes;

» The effects of changes in the availability aldeal and state universal funding to us and ourpatitors;

» Our ability to adjust successfully to changethim communications industry and to implement stjiats for growth;
» Continued reductions in switched access reveasi@sresult of regulation, competition or techgglsubstitutions;
« Our ability to effectively manage service qualit our territories and meet mandated serviceityualetrics;

» Our ability to successfully introduce new produffedngs, including our ability to offer bundledrs&e packages on terms that are |
profitable to us and attractive to customers;

» The effects of changes in accounting policies acfices adopted voluntarily or as required by gaheaccepted accounting principles
regulations
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» Our ability to effectively manage our operatipoperating expenses and capital expenditurestcarapay, reduce or refinance our debt;

» The effects of changes in both general and loaah@mic conditions on the markets that we servechvban affect demand for our prodt
and services, customer purchasing decisions, ¢abdity of revenues and required levels of capiégbenditures related to new construc
of residences and businesses;

» The effects of technological changes and compatibio our capital expenditures, product and sereféerings and measurement of spe
and capacity, including the lack of assurance dhiatnetwork improvements will be sufficient to meetexceed the capabilities and quz
of competing networks;

» The effects of increased medical, pension arstigmoployment expenses and related funding requiresne

» The effects of changes in income tax ratesl|aas, regulations or rulings, or federal or statedssessments;

* Our ability to successfully renegotiate uniomicacts in 2013 and thereafter;

» Changes in pension plan assumptions and/or the\ailour pension plan assets, which could requsreoumake increased contribution:
the pension plan in 2013 and beyond;

» The effects of customer bankruptcies and homecfosures, which could result in difficulty in tadtion of revenues and loss of customers;

» Adverse changes in the credit markets or in thaegatgiven to our debt securities by nationallyradied ratings organizations, which cc
limit or restrict the availability, or increase thest, of financing;

» Our cash flow from operations, amount of capitgdenditures, debt service requirements, cash paitidome taxes and liquidity may aff
our payment of dividends on our common shares;

» The effects of state regulatory cash managemermtipea that could limit our ability to transfer baamong our subsidiaries or divide
funds up to the parent company; ¢

* The effects of severe weather events such aikanes, tornadoes, ice storms or other naturalar-made disasters.

Any of the foregoing events, or other events, caaldse financial information to vary from managetiseforward{ooking statements includ
in this report. You should consider these impdrtaetors, as well as the risks set forth undemlIteA. “Risk Factors,”in evaluating an
statement in this report on Form KOer otherwise made by us or on our behalf. TH®fong information is unaudited and should be réa
conjunction with the consolidated financial statetseand related notes included in this report. A&fee no obligation to update or revise t
forward-looking statements and do not undertakaotso.

Investors should also be aware that while we dwadbus times, communicate with securities analyistis against our policy to disclose
them selectively any material ngublic information or other confidential informatioAccordingly, investors should not assume thatgyee:
with any statement or report issued by an analysspective of the content of the statement or mefm the extent that reports issuec
securities analysts contain any projections, fastscar opinions, such reports are not our respditgib
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(a) Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2012, we had cash and cashaquotg aggregating $1,326.5 million (excluding togatricted cash of $42.7 million,
representing funds escrowed for future broadbapamsion and service quality initiatives). Our prignsource of funds continued to be cash
generated from operations. For the year endedrbleee31, 2012, we used cash flow from operatioash on hand and debt proceeds to func
principally all of our cash investing and financiagtivities, primarily capital expenditures, divitks and debt repayments.

In 2012, the Company completed three registered dibrings totaling $1.4 billion in senior unseedrdebt. In addition, we retired
aggregate principal amount of $757.0 million of deBee “Cash Flows used by and provided from FimanActivities —Debt Financings ar
Debt Reductions” below for further discussion.

We have a revolving credit facility with a line afedit of $750.0 million. We have not made anyrbaings from this facility.

At December 31, 2012, we had a working capital Issrpf $533.7 million, which includes the classifion of $502.7 million of our 6.25
Senior Notes due 2013, maturing in the first quarfe2013, as a current liability and which wasrest on January 15, 2013 with cash on h
We believe our operating cash flows, existing daallances, and existing revolving credit facilitylvie adequate to finance our working caj
requirements, fund capital expenditures, make reduiebt payments, pay taxes, pay dividends tsmokholders and support our shtatrr
and longterm operating strategies through 2013. Howeveyraber of factors, including but not limited tosses of voice customers, pric
pressure from increased competition, lower subsidg switched access revenues and the impact ofuirent economic environment
expected to reduce our cash generated from opesatio addition, although we believe, based oarmftion available to us, that the finan
institutions syndicated under our revolving crdddility would be able to fulfill their commitments us, this could change in the future. A
December 31, 2012, we had $560.5 million and $2&1lBon of debt maturing in 2013 and 2014, respady, although $502.7 million of ti
2013 maturing debt was retired on January 15, 2d#t8cash on hand.

In addition, the FCC and certain state regulatamymissions, in connection with granting their apae of the Transaction, specified cer
capital expenditure and operating requirementshferAcquired Territories for specified periods iofi¢ postelosing. These requirements fo
primarily on certain capital investment commitmetat@xpand broadband availability to at least 83%e households throughout the Acqu
Territories with minimum download speeds of 3 Mbgghe end of 2013 and 4 Mbps by the end of 2015.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had expandedroadband availability to the households thraugithe Company' territories &
follows:

2012 2011
Frontier Acquired Total Total
(In excess of) Legacy Territories Company Company
1 Mbps 92% 86% 88% 83%
3 Mbps 80% 84% 83% 76%
4 Mbps 76% 78% 7% 66%
6 Mbps 66% 77% 74% 56%
12 Mbps 42% 54% 51% NA
20 Mbps 38% 41% 40% 28%

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrheammitments to three state regulatory commissiaesplaced an aggregate amount of $1
million in cash into escrow accounts and obtainddti@r of credit for $190.0 million in 2010. An@h$72.4 million of cash in an escr
account (with a cash balance of $23.9 million andassociated liability of $0.2 million as of Decesnt31, 2012) was acquired in connec
with the Transaction to be used for service qualitifatives in the state of West Virginia. As Btcember 31, 2012, $145.0 million had t
released from escrow. As of December 31, 2012letiter of credit had been reduced to $40.0 millidime aggregate amount of these es
accounts and the letter of credit will continualézrease over time as Frontier makes the requagitht expenditures in the respective states.
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In the third quarter of 2011, the Company contedufour administrative properties appraised at BB8illion to its qualified defined bene
pension plan. The Company is leasing back the gutigs from its pension plan for 15 years at a dosdb aggregate annual rent of
million. The properties are managed on behalhefgension plan by an independent fiduciary, arddims of the leases were negotiated
the fiduciary on an arm’s-length basis.

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities dedlii$20.2 million, or 1%, in 2012 as compared to 20The decrease was primarily the re
of large cash settlements of accounts payable dubet timing of vendor payments during the firsadar of 2012. Our accounts pay:
balances at December 31, 2011 were unusually higha@our systems conversion and broadband buildtaes in the second half of 2011.

We paid $4.7 million in net cash taxes during 204Rile cash refunds (net of cash taxes paid) feedaf $33.1 million were received in 20
and cash paid for taxes was $19.9 million in 200Qwr 2012 cash taxes reflect the continued impBbbous depreciation under the Tax Re
Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, and Jolatre Act of 2010. We expect that in 2013 our ctstes will be approximately $1
million to $150 million.

In connection with the Transaction, the Companyeutmbk a variety of activities to integrate systeamsl implement other initiatives. A:
result of the Transaction, the Company incurred.B8tillion of costs related to integration actiegi during 2012, as compared to $1
million and $137.1 million of acquisition and intagion costs in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Alegration activities were completed a
the end of 2012.

Cash Flows used by Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, our capital expendituresevi802.5 million (including $54.1 million of integtionrelated capital expenditure
$824.8 million (including $76.5 million of integiah—related capital expenditures) and $577.9 mnillimcluding $97.0 million of integration-
related capital expenditures), respectively. Watiooie to closely scrutinize all of our capital jgats, emphasize return on investment
focus our capital expenditures on areas and serti have the greatest opportunities with resfgertvenue growth and cost reduction.
anticipate capital expenditures for business ofmaTatto decrease in 2013 to approximately $625anilto $675 million due to the complet
of all integration activities and the planned coetioin of geographic broadband expansion requiresnestablished in connection w
regulatory approval of the Transaction.

Acquisitions
On July 1, 2010, Frontier issued common shares avithlue of $5.2 billion and made payments of $08illion in cash as consideration
the Acquired Business. In addition, as part offthensaction, Frontier assumed $3.5 billion in debt

Cash Flows used by and provided from Financingwites

Debt Financings
On May 17, 2012, we completed a registered offeah§500 million aggregate principal amount of @26 senior unsecured notes due 2

issued at a price of 100% of their principal amoui¥e received net proceeds of $489.6 million fite offering after deducting underwrit
fees and offering expenses. The Company also cowwedea tender offer to purchase the maximum agtgggancipal amount of its 8.25(
Senior Notes due 2014 (the 2014 Notes) and itsc¥8%enior Notes due 2015 (the April 2015 Notes aogether with the 2014 Notes,
Notes) that it could purchase for up to $500 millin cash (the Debt Tender Offer). The 2014 Nbgs an effective interest cost of 10.85
reflecting the fact that such notes were issueddiscount in April 2009.

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a regidteffering of $600 million aggregate principal @mt of 7.125% senior unsecu
notes due 2023 (the 2023 Notes), issued at a pfid®0% of their principal amount. We received patceeds of $588.1 million from 1
offering after deducting underwriting fees and dffg expenses. The Company intends to use therneegds from the sale of the note
repurchase or retire existing indebtedness ordoegal corporate purposes.
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On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a registédebt offering of $250 million aggregate prirdipmount of the 2023 Notes, issue
a price of 104.250% of their principal amount, éqeto an effective yield of 6.551%. We receivest proceeds of $255.9 million from
offering after deducting underwriting fees and offg expenses. The notes are an additional issuafjcare fully fungible with and form
single series voting together as one class witl$8® million aggregate principal amount of the 20dbtes issued by the Company on Au
15, 2012. The Company intends to use the netepdxfrom the sale of the notes to repurchasetiog existing indebtedness or for gen
corporate purposes.

Debt Reductiot

In 2012, we retired an aggregate principal amodirg7®7.0 million of debt, consisting of $756.1 nuh of senior unsecured debt and ¢
million of rural utilities service loan contractadditionally, on January 15, 2013, we retired $50@illion of our 6.25% Senior Notes ¢
2013 with cash on hand.

Pursuant to the Debt Tender Offer, the Companymedefor purchase $400 million aggregate princgrabunt of 2014 Notes, tendered
total consideration of $446.0 million, and $49.9liom aggregate principal amount of April 2015 Netéendered for total consideratior
$54.0 million. Frontier used proceeds from the slits May 2012 offering of $500.0 million of $@% Senior Notes due 2021, plus cas
hand, to purchase the Notes.

The repurchases in the Debt Tender Offer for théedloesulted in a loss on the early extinguishneérdebt of $69.0 million, which w
recognized in the second quarter of 2012. We r@sognized losses of $2.1 million during the secguarter of 2012 for $78.1 million in to
open market repurchases of our 6.25% Senior Neted13.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for peecB&5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate pmatiamount of the April 2015 Not
and its 8.250% Senior Notes due 2017 (the 2017)atespectively, in open market repurchases fat tonsideration of $154.7 million. T
repurchases resulted in a loss on the early regineiof debt of $19.3 million that was recognizedhe fourth quarter of 2012.

In 2011, we retired an aggregate principal amodir§5®2.4 million of debt, consisting of $551.4 riwh of senior unsecured debt and ¢
million of rural utilities service loan contractén 2010, we retired an aggregate principal amair§7.2 million of debt, consisting of $:
million of senior unsecured debt and $4.4 millidmeal utilities service loan contracts.

We may from time to time make additional repurckaskour debt in the open market, through tendfarsf exchanges of debt securities
exercising rights to call or in privately negoti@teansactions. We may also refinance existing delexchange existing debt for newly iss
debt obligations.

Bank Financinc

The Company has a credit agreement (the Creditehgeat) with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agesddl arranger and a lender, anc
other lenders party thereto for a $575.0 millioniseunsecured term loan facility with a final maty of October 14, 2016. The entire faci
was drawn upon execution of the Credit AgreemenDatober 2011. Repayment of the outstanding paidbalance is made in quarte
installments in the amount of $14,375,000, whicle@nced on March 31, 2012, with the remaining aatling principal balance to be reg
on the final maturity date. Borrowings under theedit Agreement bear interest based on the maies the Base Rate (as defined in
Credit Agreement) or LIBOR, at the election of @empany. Interest rate margins under the faqjtayging from 0.875% to 2.875% for Bi
Rate borrowings and 1.875% to 3.875% for LIBOR bwaings) are subject to adjustments based on tha Teterage Ratio of the Compa
as such term is defined in the Credit Agreemerite @urrent pricing on this facility is LIBOR plus8Z5%. The maximum permitted lever
ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement, is #htes. The proceeds of the facility were used payen full the remaining outstanding princi
on three debt facilities (Frontier'$200 million Rural Telephone Financing Cooperatierm loan maturing October 24, 2011, its $143ion
CoBank term loan maturing December 31, 2012, asié130 million CoBank term loan maturing Decembgr 3013) and the remaini
proceeds were used for general corporate purposes.

The Credit Agreement contains customary representiand warranties, affirmative and negative cewés) including a restriction on 1
Companys ability to declare dividends if an event of ddfféaas occurred or will result therefrom, a finalaiovenant that requires complia
with a leverage ratio, and customary events ofdefdJpon proper notice, the Company may, in whaen part, repay the facility witha
premium or penalty, but subject to breakage feelsIBOR loans, if applicable. Amounts pre-paid nrat be re-borrowed.
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Transaction Financing

On April 12, 2010, in anticipation of the Transacti the Verizon subsidiary then holding the assétthe Acquired Business complete
private offering of $3.2 billion aggregate prindipgmount of senior notes. The gross proceeds ofoffering, plus $125.5 million (tt
Transaction Escrow) contributed by Frontier, weepasited into an escrow account. Immediately pgndhe Transaction, the proceeds of
notes offering (less the initial purchased®count) were released from the escrow accounuaad to make a special cash payment to Vel
as contemplated by the Transaction, with amounexoess of the special cash payment and the ipitisthaserstdiscount received by t
Company ($53.0 million). In addition, the $125.9lion Transaction Escrow was returned to the Comgpan

Upon completion of the Transaction on July 1, 2046 ,entered into a supplemental indenture with Baek of New York Mellon, as Truste
pursuant to which we assumed the obligations utigersenior notes. The senior notes were recordetieat fair value on the date
acquisition, which was $3.2 billion.

The senior notes consisted of $500.0 million agaegrincipal amount of Senior Notes due 2015 20&5 Notes), $1.1 billion aggreg
principal amount of Senior Notes due 2017 (the 28afes), $1.1 billion aggregate principal amoungefior Notes due 2020 (the 2020 Nc
and $500.0 million aggregate principal amount afi@eNotes due 2022 (the 2022 Notes).

The 2015 Notes have an interest rate of 7.875%apeum, the 2017 Notes have an interest rate o828 annum, the 2020 Notes hawv
interest rate of 8.50% per annum and the 2022 Nwes an interest rate of 8.75% per annum. TheoB&lotes were issued at a price equ
100% of their face value. In the third quarter 81Q, we completed an exchange offer for the priygilaced Senior Notes for registered notes

Upon completion of the Transaction, we also assuadktitional debt of $250.0 million, including $200nillion aggregate principal amount
6.73% Senior Notes due February 15, 2028 and $60i0n aggregate principal amount of 8.40% Semiotes due October 15, 2029.

Credit Facility
We have a $750.0 million revolving credit faciliks of December 31, 2012, we had not made any imgs under this facility. The terms

the credit facility are set forth in the credit @gment (the Revolving Credit Agreement), datedfadasch 23, 2010, among the Company,
Lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, BsfAdministrative Agent. Associated facility $aender the credit facility will vary fro
time to time depending on the Companyredit rating (as defined in the Revolving Credlifreement) and were 0.625% per annum
December 31, 2012. The credit facility is schedutederminate on January 1, 2014. During the tefrthe credit facility, the Company m
borrow, repay and reborrow funds, and may obtaiere of credit, subject to customary borrowing ditions. Loans under the credit faci
will bear interest based on the alternate basearathe adjusted LIBOR rate (each as determinethénRevolving Credit Agreement), at
Company’s election, plus a margin specified in Revolving Credit Agreement based on the Compayedit rating. Letters of credit isst
under the credit facility will also be subject #e6 that vary depending on the Comparmykdit rating. The credit facility is availablar fgener
corporate purposes but may not be used to fundetnd payments.

Letter of Credit Facility

We also have a $40.0 million unsecured letter eflitrfacility, as amended. The terms of the lettecredit facility are set forth in a cre
agreement, dated as of September 8, 2010, amon@dimpany, the Lenders party thereto, and Deutsark B\G, New York Branch (tt
Bank), as Administrative Agent and Issuing Banle (tretter of Credit Agreement). An initial letter afedit for $190 million was issued to
West Virginia Public Service Commission to guarantertain of our capital investment commitment¥\est Virginia in connection with tl
Transaction. The initial commitments under thetdetf Credit Agreement expired on September 2Q12With the Bank exercising its opt
to extend $100.0 million of the commitments to $ember 20, 2012. On September 11, 2012, the Company entered intoreamdment to t
Letter of Credit Agreement to extend $40 milliontlké commitments to September 20, 2013. Two kettécredit, one for $20 million expiril
March 2013 and the other for $20 million expiringpBmber 2013, were issued on September 13, 202 Company is required to pay
annual facility fee on the available commitmengamlless of usage. The covenants binding on thep@oynunder the terms of the amer
Letter of Credit Agreement are substantially simitathose in the Compars/other credit facilities, including limitations diens, substanti
asset sales and mergers, subject to customarytexcepnd thresholds.
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Covenants

The terms and conditions contained in our indestutee Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agneat and the Letter of Cre
Agreement include the timely payment of principadl anterest when due, the maintenance of our catpa@xistence, keeping proper books
records in accordance with U.S. GAAP, restrictionghe incurrence of liens on our assets, andicstrs on asset sales and transfers, me
and other changes in corporate control. We arsuigject to restrictions on the payment of divideaitiser by contract, rule or regulation, of
than that imposed by the General Corporation LathefState of Delaware. However, we would be resiti under the Credit Agreement,
Revolving Credit Agreement and the Letter of Crédjteement from declaring dividends if an eventefault occurred and was continuin
the time or would result from the dividend declamat

The Credit Agreement and the Revolving Credit Agreeteach contain a maximum leverage ratio covenantettitbse covenants, we
required to maintain a ratio of (i) total indebteda minus cash and cash equivalents (includingatest cash) in excess of $50.0 million to
consolidated adjusted EBITDA (as defined in theeagrents) over the last four quarters no greater 4160 to 1. At December 31, 2012,
ratio of our net debt to adjusted operating casW flleverage ratio) was 3.17 times.

The Credit Agreement, the Revolving Credit Agreetnére Letter of Credit Agreement and certain indegs for our senior unsecured ¢
obligations limit our ability to create liens or rge or consolidate with other companies and ousiglidries’ability to borrow funds, subject
important exceptions and qualifications.

As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance waitlof our debt and credit facility covenants.

Dividends

We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends. @bility to fund a regular quarterly dividend could impacted by our ability to generate ¢
from operations. The declarations and payment nfréudividends will be at the discretion of our Bibaf Directors, and will depend ug
many factors, including our financial conditionsudts of operations, growth prospects, funding ieguents, applicable law, restrictions
agreements governing our indebtedness and othtergamur Board of Directors deem relevant.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not maintain any offalance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligatioother relationships with unconsolidated &#tithat woul
be expected to have a material current or futuiecefipon our financial statements.

Future Commitment
A summary of our future contractual obligations aedhmercial commitments as of December 31, 2052 illows:

Contractual Obligations:

(% in thousands) Payment due by peric
Total 2013 2014-2015 201¢€-2017 Thereaftel
Long-term debt obligations
excluding interes $ 8,94256: $ 560,55( $ 990,66: $ 1,386,65: $ 6,004,70.
Interest on lon-term debt 6,786,73! 678,87: 1,274,911 1,130,20: 3,702,74
Operating lease obligatiol 182,17- 95,32! 30,41 14,68¢ 41,75
Capital lease obligatior 38,19¢ 3,05¢ 6,26¢ 6,48¢ 22,38
Financing lease obligatior 81,01¢ 5,33¢ 10,44¢ 10,957 54,27
Purchase obligatior 95,20¢ 48,33¢ 36,79¢ 8,86¢ 1,20¢
"Take or pay" contract obligatiot 414,60( 132,00( 282,60( - -
Liability for uncertain tax positions 13,62¢ 6,97: 6,17 A47E -
Total $ 16,554,12 $ 153045 $ 263828 $ 255832 $ 9,827,06

At December 31, 2012, we had outstanding performaetters of credit totaling $86.8 million.
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In our normal course of business we have obligatiomder certain nooancelable arrangements for services. During 2@&2entered into
“take or pay”arrangement for the purchase of future long digtara carrier services, whereby the Company comrdnitt a minimum numb
of minutes of use and circuits. Our total comneitits under the arrangement are $132.0 million, 8l#4dillion and $140.8 million for tt
years ended December 31, 2013, 2014 and 2015 ctashe. As of December 31, 2012, we expect tliagtithe services included within 1
arrangement and no liability for the take or paguision has been recorded.

The Company has entered into an agreement to upgasignificant portion of its existing vehicle dte As of December 31, 2012,

Company has accepted delivery of 2,150 new vehitel expects to accept delivery of 1,614 additinaa vehicles by March 31, 2013. 1
new vehicles expected to be leased under this anogyill represent approximately 50% of our vehiitéeet. The minimum lease commitm
for each vehicle is 1 year and the leases are ra@nlevat the Compang’option. The total annual lease expense forfath® new vehicles
expected to be approximately $30.0 million on anuatized basis upon the acceptance of the remaughigles.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We review all significant estimates affecting ownsolidated financial statements on a recurringsbaisd record the effect of any neces
adjustment prior to their publication. Uncertadstiwith respect to such estimates and assumptiensfzerent in the preparation of finan
statements; accordingly, it is possible that acteallts could differ from those estimates and gkanto estimates could occur in the
term. The preparation of our financial statemémtsonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managemenhtake estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslisit the date of the financial statements, theladisre of contingent assets and liabilities,
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses dtimingeporting period. Estimates and judgmentsuaedl when accounting for reve
recognition, impairment of lontived assets, impairment of intangible assets, ef@ation and amortization, pension and other ptisgreen
benefits, income taxes, contingencies and purchidgse allocations, among others.

Management has discussed the development andiselettthese critical accounting estimates with fiiedit Committee of our Board
Directors and our Audit Committee has revieweddisclosures relating to such estimates.

Revenue Recognitic

Revenue is recognized when services are provideghen products are delivered to customers. Revémateis billed in advance includ
monthly recurring network access services, speaabss services and monthly recurring local vdieatures, long distance and inside \
charges. The unearned portion of these fees imlipideferred as a component of other liabilit@s our consolidated balance sheet
recognized as revenue over the period that thécesnare provided. Revenue that is billed in agéacludes: nomecurring network acce
services, switched access services, non-recurdoagl Iservices and longdjstance services. The earned but unbilled portibthese fees
recognized as revenue in our consolidated statamanbperations and accrued in accounts receiviablbe period that the services
provided. Excise taxes are recognized as a lighilihen billed. Installation fees and their relatdicect and incremental costs are initi
deferred and recognized as revenue and expensehevarerage term of a customer relationship. Veegweize as current period expense
portion of installation costs that exceeds installafee revenue.

We maintain an allowance for estimated bad deldsdan our estimate of our ability to collect aadsueceivable through a review of ac
categories and specific customer accounts. In 20022011, we had no “critical estimateglated to bankruptcies of telecommunicat
companies or any other customers.

Asset Impairmer

We review long-lived assets to be held and usedyding customer lists, and lodiyed assets to be disposed of for impairment whel
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdhrying amount of such assets may not be reableerRecoverability of assets to be |
and used is measured by comparing the carrying atraduhe asset to the future undiscounted net flasls expected to be generated by
asset. Recoverability of assets held for sale iasmed by comparing the carrying amount of thetageetheir estimated fair market value
any assets are considered to be impaired, the impat is measured by the amount by which the aagrgimount of the assets exceed:
estimated fair value. Also, we periodically reassthe useful lives of our tangible and intangésets to determine whether any change
required. In 2012 and 2011, we had no “criticdiheates” related to asset impairments.
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Intangibles

Our indefinite lived intangibles consist of goodwéind trade name, which resulted from the purchatsé_EC properties. We test 1
impairment of these assets annually, or more fretljieas circumstances warrant. We test for goddmpairment at the “operating segment’
level, as that term is defined in U.S. GAAP. Effee with the third quarter of 2011, the Compangrganized into six operating segment
order to leverage the full benefits of its locaagement model. The six operating segments caofsike following regions: Central, Midwe
National, Northeast, Southeast and West. Our tipgraegments are aggregated into one reportagleesg since they have similar econao
characteristics. In conjunction with the reorgatizn of our operating segments during the thirdrtgr of 2011, we reassigned goodwill to
reporting units using a relative fair value allooatapproach. This structure is consistent with lwawv Chief Operating Decision Makers (Cl
CFO, President and COOQO) review our results on by, daeekly and monthly basis. After making the ofparnn our operating segments,
reviewed our goodwill impairment test by comparihg EBITDA multiples for each reporting unit to thearrying values noting that
impairment indicator was present. No potentialampent was indicated and no further analysis vessred necessary.

Our annual goodwill impairment testing date is Dmber 31. Each of the operating segments is aleparting unit. The first step in t
goodwill impairment test compares the carrying gatd net assets of the reporting unit to its failue. The result of this first step indice
that fair value of each reporting unit exceededctireying value of such reporting units. As a hleshe second step of the goodwill impairn
test was not required.

Goodwill by reporting unit (operating segment) a&cdember 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Reporting Units

($ in thousands) Northeas National Southeas West Central Midwest
Goodwill $ 1,245414 $ 1,176,13¢ $ 1,113,931 $ 1,072,49¢ $ 1,006,132 $ 723,604

Enterprise values for rural ILEC properties areidgfly quoted as a multiple of cash flow or EBITDMarketplace company comparisons
analyst reports support a range of values aroundltiple of 5.5 to 7.5 times annualized EBITDA. rEbe purpose of the goodwill impairm
test we define EBITDA as operating income, net @juasition and integration costs, noash pension/OPEB costs and severance cost:
depreciation and amortization. We determined Hie falue estimates using 6.25 times EBITDA bubalsed lower EBITDA multiples

gauge the sensitivity of the estimate and its &f@cthe margin of excess of fair value over theyiag values of the reporting units. Total

value determined in this manner is then allocatethé reporting units based upon each ani€lative share of consolidated EBITDA. !
method of determining fair value has been condistapplied for the three years ending Decembe2812.

The Company monitors relevant circumstances, inetudeneral economic conditions, enterprise valBédTBA multiples for rural ILEC
properties, the Company’s overall financial perfanoe and the market prices for the Compsuimgmmon stock, and the potential impact
changes in such circumstances might have on theatah of the Companyg’ goodwill or other intangible assets. If our gwddor othel
intangible assets are determined to be impairdterfuture, we may be required to record a nash charge to earnings during the peric
which the impairment is determined.

Effective with the first quarter of 2013, the Compaeorganized into four operating segments cangjsif the following regions: East, Cent
National and West. Our operating segments areeggtgd into one reportable segm

Depreciation and Amortizatio

The calculation of depreciation and amortizatiorpense is based upon the estimated useful livehefuhderlying property, plant a
equipment and identifiable intangible assets. Beption expense is principally based on the coitgasoup method for substantially all
our property, plant and equipment assets. Giverv#éinging estimated useful lives of our propertyarland equipment assets, the Com
utilizes multiple asset categories with separatiefigrmined composite lives and individual deprémmnatates for each asset category.

Within the composite group method, we group indiéid assets, including cable and wire, into assétgosies utilizing homogenec
characteristics, where such assets (i) are priigipged in the same manner throughout the compéiyare subject to similar operati
conditions and (iii) have similar estimated usdiués. Examples of the asset categories we utitizkude aerial cable-copper, aerial cable
fiber, aerial cable-station connections, undergdocable-copper and underground cdiiber. As a result of continuing changes in tedbgy,
an independent study is conducted annually to eptie estimated remaining useful lives of all indiiial asset categories. The annual <
includes models that consider actual usage, replacthistory and certain assumptions about teclgyoéwolution to estimate the remain
useful lives of our asset base by asset categtwy latest study was completed in the fourth quat@012 and after review and analysis of
results, we adopted new estimated remaining uieéd for certain plant assets as of October 122@ith an immaterial impact to deprecial
expense. Our composite depreciation rate for pasets was 6.65% as a result of this study. Theve been no significant changes tc
ranges of estimated useful lives for the individaaset categories, including the cable and wiretag®ups, during the three years er
December 31, 2012.
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Our finite lived intangibles include intangible assrelated to the customer base acquired in taesaction that were recorded at an estin
fair value of $2.5 billion with an estimated uselit¢ of nine years for the residential customet, las distinguished from the 12 years use
the business customer list. For both classes etashe “sum of the years digitsiethod is used to amortize the intangible asséighatrack:
more closely with the projected revenue streamamheasset class. Our Frontier legacy customeiiniiahgible assets did not distingL
between business and residential classes and tbeization period was five years on the strailii- method. We periodically reassess
useful life of our intangible assets to determirteethier any changes to those lives are required.

We anticipate depreciation expense of approxim&80 million to $870 million and amortization exige of approximately $330 million 1
2013.

Pension and Other Postretirement Bene

Our estimates of pension expense, other postreginefrenefits including retiree medical benefits agldted liabilities arecfritical accountin
estimates.”In connection with the completion of the Transattam July 1, 2010, certain employees were trarefiefrom various Verizc
pension plans into 12 pension plans that were tiverged with the Frontier Communications Pensiom ftae Plan) effective August 31, 20
The asset transfers from Verizon to the Plan haenlcompleted. We sponsor a noncontributory defimenefit pension plan covering
significant number of our current and former Frentegacy employees and other postretirement kigplafis that provide medical, dental,
insurance and other benefits for covered retiredleyees and their beneficiaries and covered depdsdAll of the employees who are ¢
accruing pension benefits are employees represénteshions. The accounting results for pension ather postretirement benefit costs
obligations are dependent upon various actuarglraptions applied in the determination of such amsuThese actuarial assumptions inc
the following: discount rates, expected Idiegm rate of return on plan assets, future compemsacreases, employee turnover, healthcare
trend rates, expected retirement age, optional fofrbenefit and mortality. We review these assuomst for changes annually with «
independent actuaries. We consider our discot@tarad expected long-term rate of return on plaetago be our most critical assumptions.

The discount rate is used to value, on a presdoévaasis, our pension and other postretiremengfiiesbligations (OPEB) as of the bala
sheet date. The same rate is also used in theeghteost component of the pension and postretimernenefit cost determination for
following year. The measurement date used in #iecion of our discount rate is the balance sle¢¢. Our discount rate assumptio
determined annually with assistance from our acgabased on the pattern of expected future bepafitnents and the prevailing re
available on long-term, high quality corporate betitat approximate the benefit obligation.

Since the completion of the Transaction on Jul2d10, we have focused on integrating the operatéms converging the processes of
Acquired Business to effectively operate as onéness. During the past two years, we have workigld Merizon and our third party actuat
to merge the plans, finalize the transfer of plasets and ensure we have all the information nagess make well informed decisions. Ba
on the underlying changes in demographics and ftasls, we amended the estimation techniques reggrité actuarial assumptions, wh
appropriate, across all of our pension and postregnt plans. The most significant of such chamggsin the estimation technique utilize
develop the discount rate for its pension and ptisément benefit plans. The revised estimatiohnapie is based upon a settlement m
(Bond:Link) of such liabilities as of December 3012 that permits us to more closely match casWsflto the expected payments
participants than would be possible with the prasip used yield curve model. We believe such a gbasasults in an estimate of the disct
rate that more accurately reflects the settlemahtevfor plan obligations than the different yielatve methodologies used in prior years,
provides the ability to review the quality and disiication of the portfolio to select the bonduss that would settle the obligation in
optimal manner. This rate can change from yearetr-based on market conditions that affect cotpdrand yields.
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In determining the discount rate as of December281,1 and 2010, we considered, among other thihgsyields on the Citigroup Abo
Median Pension Curve, the Towers Watson Indexgtreral movement of interest rates and the changbsse rates from one period to
next.

As a result of the change described above, Froigtietilizing a discount rate of 4.00% as of Decem®1, 2012 for its qualified pension pl
compared to rates of 4.50% and 5.25% in 2011 ai@,2@spectively. The discount rate using the iptessestimation technique would hi
been 3.75%, resulting in an immaterial impact ® pinojected benefit obligation at December 31, 2@12omparison to the 4.00% disco
rate. The discount rate for postretirement plansfd&ecember 31, 2012 was a range of 4.00% to 4.2@¥pared to a range of 4.50% to 4.
in 2011 and 5.25% in 2010.

The expected lonterm rate of return on plan assets is applied endétermination of periodic pension and postretietrbenefit cost as
reduction in the computation of the expense. Weblping the expected lortgrm rate of return assumption, we considered phbt survey
of expected market returns, 10 and 20 year acétiains of various major indices, and our own his&d5 year, 10 year and 20 year investr
returns. The expected longrm rate of return on plan assets is based onsaet allocation assumption of 35% to 55% in fixedome
securities, 35% to 55% in equity securities andt&%5% in alternative investments. We review ased allocation at least annually and n
changes when considered appropriate. Our assehrassumption is made at the beginning of oulafigear. In 2010, 2011 and 2012,
expected londerm rate of return on plan assets was 8.0%, 8.8 7a75%, respectively. Our actual return on pdasets in 2012 w
11.1%. For 2013, we will assume a rate of retdi®.0%. Our pension plan assets are valued avédile as of the measurement date.

We expect that our pension and other postretirerhentfit expenses for 2013 will be approximatel@tillion to $110 million befor
amounts capitalized into the cost of capital exjtenes. In 2012, they were $81.6 million beforecamts capitalized into the cost of caf
expenditures. We expect to make contributions topansion plan of approximately $60 million in 2018/e made net contributions to
pension plan of $28.6 million in 2012, consistirfigcash payments of $18.3 million and $10.3 millduring the third and fourth quarter
2012, respectively. We made contributions to cemgion plan of $76.7 million in 2011, consistingocakh payments of $18.6 million and
contribution of real property with a fair value$68.1 million. We made cash contributions of $18illion in 2010.

Income Taxe

Our effective tax rate was 33.0% in 2012 as conth&re35.9% in 2011 and 42.5% in 2010. Income td@ef012 include the net reversa
reserves for uncertain tax positions for $12.3ioill partially offset by increases in deferred bmtances to reflect changes in estimates
changes in state effective rates and filing methods

Income taxes for 2011 include the reduction of defetax balances based on the application of edastate tax statutes for $6.8 million
the net reversal of a reserve for uncertain taxipos for $9.9 million, partially offset by the pact of a $10.8 million charge resulting from
enactment on May 25, 2011 of the Michigan Corpohateme Tax that eliminated certain future tax deiduns.

The higher rate in 2010 was primarily related te Write-off of certain deferred tax assets in 2010 of $ilion related to Transaction co
which were not tax deductible. Prior to the clgsof the Transaction, these costs were deemed taxbgeductible as the Transaction hac
yet been successfully completed. These costs wetered to facilitate the Transaction and onceTirensaction closed, these costs had !
capitalized for tax purposes.

Contingencies

See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Finarstatements included in Part IV of this report fodiacussion of commitments &
contingencies. Our contingencies include the gakabligation associated with our previous eliectrtility activities in the state of Vermo
along with ongoing regulatory issues and legal €@s¢he normal course of our business, includition disputes.

Purchase Price Allocatio- The Transaction

The allocation of the approximate $5.4 billion wtal consideration to the “fair market valuef the assets and liabilities of the Acqu
Business is a critical estimate. The estimatabefair values assigned to plant, customer badegandwill, are more fully described in Na
3 and 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialegtants. Additionally, the estimated expected difea customer (used to amortize
customer base) is a critical estimate.
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New Accounting Pronouncemel
There were no new accounting standards issued @mpteed by the Company in 2012, or that have besumet but are not required to
adopted until future periods, with any materiabficial statement impact.

Fair Value Measuremen

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Bo@&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASId) 2011-04 (ASU 20104),
“Fair Value Measurements: Amendments to Achieve Comifair Value Measurement and Disclosure RequirgsnenU.S. GAAP an
IFRSs” (Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) i0f20). ASU 2011084 changes the wording used to describe many ofettpgirement
in U.S. GAAP for measuring fair value and for dasthg information about fair value measuremengrsure consistency between U.S. G/
and IFRS. ASU 20104 also expands the disclosures for fair value oreasents that are estimated using significant usrvlble (Level :
inputs. This new guidance was to be applied prdspmdg, and was effective for interim and annualipés beginning after December 15, 20
The Company adopted ASU 2011-04 in the first quat®012 with no impact on our financial positisasults of operations or cash flows.

Presentation of Comprehensive Inca

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05 (A811-05), “Comprehensive Income: Presentation ah@ehensive Income,’ASC
Topic 220). ASU 201D5 eliminates the option to report other comprelvenmcome and its components in the statemenhafges in equit
ASU 2011-05 requires that all non-owner changestaokholdersequity be presented in either a single continutatesent of comprehens
income or in two separate but consecutive statesndiis new guidance was to be applied retrospagtiand was effective for interim a
annual periods beginning after December 15, 200ie Company adopted ASU 200%-in the first quarter of 2012 with no impact oumr
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013A3Y 2013-02), Comprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts RediassOut o
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income,” (ASC Top&D). ASU 20132 requires disclosing the effect of reclassifimasi out o
accumulated other comprehensive income on the cigpdine items in net income in circumstances wheS. GAAP requires the item be
reclassified in its entirety to net income. Thisvnguidance is to be applied prospectively. The Camypadopted ASU 20132 during th
fourth quarter of 2012 with no impact on our finehposition, results of operations or cash flows.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02 (A3012-02), “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other — Testimglefinitelived Intangible
Assets for Impairment,” (ASC Topic 350). ASU 20@2-permits an entity to first assess qualitativetdies to determine whether it is m
likely than not that an indefinitéved intangible asset is impaired as a basis &iewnining whether it is necessary to perform antjtadive
impairment test. The more-likely-thamot threshold is defined as having a likelihoodvadre than 50 percent. This amendment also giv
entity the option not to calculate annually the failue of an indefinitdived intangible asset if the entity can deterntimat it is not more likel
than not that the asset is impaired. If an emtitycludes that it is not more likely than not ttret indefinitelived intangible asset is impair:
then the entity is not required to take furtheract While ASU 201232 is effective for annual and interim impairmeasts performed fi
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012y @aloption is permitted. The Company adopted A&R202 during the fourth quarter
2012 with no material impact on our financial pisit results of operations or cash flows.
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(b) Results of Operations

Effective July 1, 2010, the Compasyscope of operations and balance sheet capitatizelhanged materially as a result of the compteti
the Transaction. Historical financial and opermtolata presented for Frontier is not indicativefudfire results and includes the result
operations of the Acquired Business from the ddteaguisition on July 1, 2010. The financial dission and tables below includ
comparative analysis of our results of operationsachistorical basis for our Frontier operationoaand for the years ended Decembe
2012, 2011 and 2010, which includes the resulispefrations of the Acquired Business for the yeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011,
the six months ended December 31, 2010. The w@@iarplanations discussed below for the years ebéedmber 31, 2011 and 2010 incl
a separate amount for the additional six monthewénue and operating expenses related to thetopgrasults of the Acquired Busines:
2011. Certain analyses of revenue and operatipgreses may refer to the results of the Frontieadggoperations, which excludes
Acquired Business.

REVENUE

Revenue is generated primarily through the prowigiblocal, network access, long distance, daewiand Internet services. Such reve
are generated through either a monthly recurrirgg de a fee based on usage and revenue recognstiooti dependent upon signific
judgments by management, with the exception ofterdenation of a provision for uncollectible amaosu

Revenue for 2012 decreased $231.2 million, or 4/$%,011.9 million as compared to 2011. This eeclin 2012 is primarily the result
decreases in the number of business and residenstdmers and switched access revenue, partifdlgtdy an increase in subsidies reve
each as described in more detail below.

Switched access and subsidy revenue of $576.fbbmikpresented 12% of our revenues for 2012. cheit access revenue was $257.8 mi
for 2012, or 5% of our revenues, as compared t®@$3tillion for 2011, or 6% of our revenues. Sdpsievenue was $318.6 million in 20
or 6% of our revenues, as compared to $300.1 milin2011, or 6% of our revenues. We expect swilchccess and subsidy revenu
decline in 2013.

Revenue for 2011 increased $1,445.4 million, or 389%5,243.0 million as compared to 2010. Exaigdhe additional six months of revel
of $1,667.1 million attributable to the Acquired $ness, our revenue for 2011 decreased $221.7omilir 6%, as compared to 2010. ~
decline in 2011 was a result of decreases in tiebeu of business and residential customers, switelseess, video and other revenue, par
offset by a $32.7 million, or 3%, increase in data Internet services revenue, each as descritradna detail below.

The number of our access lines is one metric thatbeen used to understand our revenue and pilitiital\ccess lines, however, he
become less relevant given our strategic focusustomer retention and broadband penetration. Toadily, we lose access lines becaus
competition, economic conditions, and by the Idssezond lines upon the addition of broadband serviAn additional factor was introduc
at the end of the second quarter of 2012 when temhegan selling Simply Broadband, which is ouwdntband service without any wirel
circuit switched voice capabilities. We are attireg and retaining customers with this product, anflas had a positive impact on

residential customer counts and revenues. Asudtreghen selling this service to acquire or retairstomers, no access lines are sold nc
they counted. Similarly, during the fourth quartér2012, Frontier began selling a satellite braagbproduct and we are trialing an AT
Mobility product bundled with broadband servicesiglected markets. In both of these cases, a néredice capability may not be incluc
and accordingly, in that situation, an accesswiienot be counted. In addition, in our normalicse of business, we proactively remove ac
lines when we upgrade business customers from plailtircuit switched lines and replace them wittad@acilities that can be used for vc
services via VoIP. As a result of all of the abosteanges in access lines are not necessarilydaration of a loss of revenue or customers.

During 2012, we lost 240,500 customers, as comp@redlioss of 375,400 customers in 2011. We belteeemproved customer retentior
2012 as compared to 2011 is principally due toinwestments in our network, our local engagemematexjy, improved customer service
the introduction of our Simply Broadband produétlso, during 2012, the average monthly total cugpmevenue per customer incree
$5.18, or 5%, over 2011. We lost 216,700 residéetistomers and 23,800 business customers durengear ended December 31, 201!
7% on an annual basis, as compared to 341,40Cergmtcustomers and 33,900 business customersllosty the year ended December
2011, or 10% on an annubasis. Average monthly residential revenue perornst increased $0.63 to $58.03 during 2012 as cmedpe
2011. This increase is due to the additional mgrghbscriber line charges to our residential cmgis which were implemented in the tl
quarter of 2012, as permitted by the Order, in@dgsenetration of products and rationalized prodwitting. Economic conditions and
increasing competition could make it more diffictdtsell our bundled service offerings, and causéouincrease our promotions and/or la
our prices for our products and services, whichldaadversely affect our revenue, profitability asash flows.
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compdded 23,400 net broadband subscribers. Duridg,2he Company added 45,200 net broad
subscribers. We believe that the lower customéwatdns were due to the final systems conversioring 2012 and the delayed rollt of marketin
promotions in the second half of 2012. The Compgalanps to significantly expand broadband availabéind speed over the next several years. We exq
continue to increase broadband subscribers in 2013.

As stated above, while the number of access lis@hé metric to gauge certain revenue trends,ribisnecessarily the best or only measure to etaloa
business. Management believes that customer camdtsinderstanding different components of revesusost important. For this reason, presentedhéd
table titled “Other Financial and Operating Dat#low is an analysis that presents customer coanexage monthly revenue, products per custome
churn. It also categorizes revenue into custommeenue (business and residential) and regulatesntee (switched access and subsidy revenue). tBebg
7% decline in residential customers and the 8%imedh business customers during 2012, customemie (all revenue except switched access and $t
revenue) declined in 2012 by only 4 percent as @atpto the prior year. The decline in customeas partially offset by increased penetration ofitamithl
products sold to both business and residentialoowsts, which has increased our average monthlyntevger customer. A substantial further los
customers, combined with increased competitiontaadther factors discussed herein, may causesoenue, profitability and cash flows to decreas20h3.

OTHER FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA

As of % Increast As of % Increast As of
December 31,
December 31, 201 (Decrease December 31, 201 (Decrease 2010
Customers 3,173,16' (7%) 3,413,661 (10%) 3,789,011
Broadband subscribers 1,787,56 1% 1,764,161 3% 1,718,95!
Video subscribers
DISH and FiO¢ 346,62 14% 303,04t (2%) 310,36!
DirecTV(® - (100%) 224,51 7% 210,52t
Total video subscribers 346,62° (34%) 527,56! 1% 520,89:
For the year ended December
$ Increast % Increast¢ $ Increast % Increase
2012 (Decrease (Decrease 2011 (Decrease (Decrease 2010
Revenue (in 000's)
Busines: $ 2,317,21. $ (36,167) (2%) $ 2,353,370 % 746,82 46% $ 1,606,541
Residential 2,118,22 (152,30 (7%) 2,270,52 577,17: 34% 1,693,35
Customer revenue $ 443543  $ (188,46¢) (4%) $ 4,623,900 $ 1,324,00. 40% $ 3,299,901
Switched access and subsidy 576,41 (42,72¢) (7%) 619,14 121,36¢ 24% 497,77!
Total revenue $ 501185 $ (231,19() (4%) $ 524304 $ 1,445,36: 38% $ 3,797,67!
Switched access minutes of us
(in millions) 18,29: (3%) 18,89¢ 30% 14,54
Average monthly total revenue
per customer $ 127.3:  $ 5.44 4% $ 121.8¢
Average monthly total custome
revenue per custome $ 112.6¢  $ 5.1¢ 5% $ 107.5(
As of or for the As of or for the As of or for the
year endet % Increast year endet % Increase year endet
December 31, 201 (Decrease December 31, 201 (Decrease w
Business Customer Metrics
Customers 286,10t (8%) 309,90( (10%) 343,82
Revenue (in 000' $ 2,317,21. (2%) $ 2,353,37! 46% $ 1,606,541
Average monthly busine:
revenue per custom $ 650.6! 8% $ 601.1¢
Residential Customer Metrics:
Customer: 2,887,06: (7%) 3,103,761 (10%) 3,445,19:
Revenue (in 000 $ 2,118,22. (7%) $ 2,270,52 34% $ 1,693,35
Average monthly residenti.
revenue per custom@t $ 58.0% 1% $ 57.4(
Customer Monthly Chur 1.62% (4%) 1.6%

() Decline in video subscribers is due to the losa#,100 DirecTV subscribers in the third quarte®12 as Frontier no longer provides DirecTV ag phits bundled packages.

(@ Calculation excludes the Mohave Cellular Limited
Partnership
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REVENUE
2012 2011 2010
($.in thousands $ Increase % Increase $ Increase % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Local and long distance
services $ 2,230,891 % (220,42) (9%) $ 245131 $ 653,92¢ 36% $ 1,797,38
Data and internet
services 1,823,01 (19,929 (1%) 1,842,93: 607,33" 49% 1,235,591
Other 381,53t 51,87¢ 16% 329,65¢ 62,73¢ 24% 266,92.

Customer revent 4,435,43 (188,46¢) (4%) 4,623,90: 1,324,00: 40% 3,299,901
Switched access at
subsidy 576,41 (42,724) (7%) 619,14: 121,36¢ 24% 497,77!

Total Revenue $ 5011,85 $ (231,190 (4%) $ 5,243,04. $ 1,445,36: 38% $ 3,797,67!

Local and Long Distance Service

Local and long distance services revenue for 2@2ehsed $220.4 million, or 9%, to $2,230.9 millias compared with 2011 primarily dut
the continued loss of voice customers and, toselesxtent, decreases in private line servicedeatdre packages, partially offset by incre:
local charges, effective with the third quarter26f12, to business and residential end users t@xtent permitted by the Order. Local
enhanced services revenue for 2012 decreased $h8ldh, or 8%, to $1,813.8 million, primarily due the continued loss of voice custon
and, to a lesser extent, decreases in privateséngces and feature packages, partially offseéhbseased local charges, effective with the 1
quarter of 2012, to business and residential erdsus the extent permitted by the Order. Loistatce services revenue for 2012 decre
$63.4 million, or 13%, to $417.1 million, primarilgue to a decrease in the number of long distansémers using our bundled sen
offerings, lower minutes of use and a lower averagenue per minute of use.

Local and long distance services revenue for 28&feased $653.9 million, or 36%, to $2,451.3 millias compared with 2010. Local and |
distance services revenue for 2011 increased $886libn as a result of the additional six monthisrevenue in 2011 attributable to

Acquired Business. Excluding the additional six isnof revenue related to the Acquired Businessalland long distance services reve
decreased $182.2 million, or 10%, as compared 2@hO, primarily due to the continued loss of vomestomers and, to a lesser exi
decreases in private line services and featuregmmsk Local and enhanced services revenue for @tdased $527.6 million, or 37%,
$1,970.8 million, as compared with 2010. Local antianced services revenue for 2011 increased $61llidh as a result of the additional
months of revenue in 2011 attributable to the AseliiBusiness. Excluding the additional revenuetedl@o the Acquired Business, local

enhanced services revenue decreased $143.0 mplionarily due to the continued loss of voice costos and, to a lesser extent, decreas
private line services and feature packages. Lostpdce services revenue for 2011 increased $12@i8rmnor 36%, to $480.5 million, i
compared with 2010. Long distance services revéou2011 increased $165.5 million as a result ef ddditional six months of revenue
2011 attributable to the Acquired Business. Exelgdihe additional revenue related to the AcquirediBess, long distance services revi
decreased $39.2 million as compared with 2010, gnilgndue to a decrease in the number of long degtacustomers using our bundled set
offerings, lower minutes of use and a lower averagenue per minute of use.

Data and Internet Service

Data and Internet services revenue for 2012 deede®$9.9 million, or 1%, to $1,823.0 million, aswuared with 2011. Data services reve
decreased $7.2 million to $838.4 million in 2013, @mpared with 2011, primarily due to higher préiomal discounts and custon
credits. As of December 31, 2012, the numbehefGompanys broadband subscribers increased by 23,400, osit#e December 31, 201
Data and Internet services also includes nonswitchecess revenue from data transmission servicegther carriers and higéslume
commercial customers with dedicated higgpacity Internet and ethernet circuits. Nonsvéttlaccess revenue decreased $12.7 milli
$984.6 million in 2012, as compared with 2011, tukwer monthly recurring charges and settlemehtisputes with carriers.

Data and Internet services revenue for 2011 ineck&607.3 million, or 49%, to $1,842.9 million, @ampared with 2010. Data and Inte
services revenue for 2011 increased $574.7 milisra result of the additional six months of reveimu@011 attributable to the Acquir
Business. Excluding the additional six monthsenfenue related to the Acquired Business, data rtedniet services revenue increased
million, or 3%, as compared with 2010, primarilyedio the overall growth in the number of broadbaulscribers and higbapacity Internt
and ethernet circuits purchased by customers. Batdces revenue for 2011, excluding the additisita months of revenue related to
Acquired Business, decreased $12.8 million to $BG8illion, as compared with 2010, primarily due Higher promotional discounts &
customer credits. As of December 31, 2011, thebmurof the Companyg’ broadband subscribers increased by 45,200, osBfte Decemb
31, 2010. Nonswitched access revenue for 2011udixg the additional six months of revenue rela@dhe Acquired Business, increa
$45.5 million to $660.0 million, as compared withl®, primarily due to growth in the number of thageuits.
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Other

Other revenue for 2012 increased $51.9 million,16%, to $381.5 million, as compared with 2011. éthevenue for 2012 increased
compared to 2011, primarily due to higher servictvation fees from new customers, lower bad depeases that are charged against rev
and higher wireless revenue, partially offset by tdduction in customers for FiOS video service lamgr directory services revenue.

Other revenue for 2011 increased $62.7 million24%0, to $329.7 million, as compared with 2010. éttevenue for 2011 increased $¢
million as a result of the additional six monthg@¥enue in 2011 attributable to the Acquired Bes& Excluding the additional six month
revenue related to the Acquired Business, otheemee decreased $24.4 million, or 9%, as compargd20il0. Directory services revenue
2011, excluding the additional six months of revenelated to the Acquired Business, decreased $i#li8n, or 16%, as compared with 20
primarily due to a decline in yellow pages advantis All other revenue for 2011, excluding theléidnal six months of revenue related to
Acquired Business, decreased $7.6 million, or 5ftnarily due to the reduction in customers for Fid&eo service.

Switched Access and Subsi

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2012 detieb42.7 million, or 7%, to $576.4 million, as qared with 2011. Switched acc
revenue for 2012 of $257.8 million, decreased $6dilRon, or 19%, as compared to 2011, primarilyedo the impact of a decline in mint
of use related to access line losses and the daplkent of minutes of use by wireless, email anérotbmmunications services combined
a reduction due to the second half impact of theetorates enacted by the first phase of the BG@ercarrier compensation reform. Switc
access and subsidy revenue includes subsidy pagmenteceive from federal and state agencies,dirgdusurcharges billed to customers
are remitted to universal service administrat@absidy revenue, including surcharges billed tdaasrs of $119.7 million for 2012, of $31
million, increased $18.5 million, or 6%, as commhvgth 2011, primarily due to an increase in thetomer surcharge revenue to suppor
Federal Universal Service Fund and increased regdk@m the Federal Fund due to the implementatibthe Order during the second hal
2012. We expect a further decline in switched ss@and subsidy revenue in 2013.

Switched access and subsidy revenue for 2011 isede®121.4 million, or 24%, to $619.1 million, asmpared with 2010. Switched acc
and subsidy revenue increased $169.3 million asaltrof the additional six months of revenue i1 R@ttributable to the Acquired Busine
Excluding the additional six months of revenue tedato the Acquired Business, switched access absidy revenue decreased $47.9 mill
or 10%, as compared with 2010.

Switched access revenue, excluding the additiarahenths of revenue related to the Acquired Bussnéor 2011 of $245.0 million, or 7%
our revenues, decreased $40.5 million, or 14%,cmspared with $285.5 million, or 8% of our revenues2010. These decreases v
primarily due to the impact of a decline in minutésise related to access line losses and theadisplent of minutes of use by wireless, e
and other communications services. Subsidy revesxeuding the additional six months of revendatesl to the Acquired Business, for 2!
of $204.8 million, decreased $7.4 million, or 3%,@mpared with 2010, primarily due to decreasexpst for local switching, the Fede
Universal Service Fund and the Federal High CoetlFu

Federal and state subsidies and surcharges (wtedtileed to customers and remitted to universalise administrators) for the Company w
$160.7 million, $38.2 million and $119.7 millioregpectively, and $318.6 million in total, or 6%afr revenues, for 2012. The federal
state subsidy revenue for 2012 represents 4% ofconsolidated revenues. Total federal and stalbsidies and surcharges were $3
million, or 6% of our consolidated revenues, fol 2&nd $212.3 million, or 6% of our consolidatederaues for 2010.

On November 18, 2011, the FCC released a ReporOader and Further Notice of Proposed Rulemakinghensubject of Universal Serv
Fund and intercarrier compensation reform. The Octlanged how federal subsidies will be calculated disbursed, with these changes k
phased-in beginning in 2012. These changes trangitie Federal Universal Service High-Cost Fundclvkupports voice services in highs
areas, to the CAF, which supports broadband demayrim higheost areas. CAF Phase |, implemented in 2012, gesvfor ongoing US
support for price cap carriers to be capped a2l amount. In addition, the FCC in CAF Phase tlenavailable for price cap ILECs
additional $300 million in incremental high cosbadband support to be used for broadband deploytmemiserved areas. Frontier was elic
to receive $71.9 million of the total $300 milli@AF Phase | interim support. On July 9, 2012, Resrannounced that it would accept al
the funding for which it is eligible. On July 24022, Frontier formally notified the FCC and appiafe state commissions of its intent to ac
those funds and identified the unserved locatiortsetserved using the funds. The $71.9 milliomorémental CAF Phase | support is expe
to enable an incremental 92,877 households fordivarzd service and will be accounted for as Continha in Aid of Construction. Frontier
required to implement, spend and enable these B2 8idseholds no later than July 24, 2015. As afdbeber 31, 2012, Frontier has rece
$66.0 million of the CAF Phase | support funds &ag initially recorded as increases to Cash ane@rQidbilities in the balance sheet. -
FCC is currently considering the rules for disttibn of incremental CAF funding in 2013.
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The Order also makes changes to Intercarrier Cosgpiem. Intercarrier Compensation, which is thgnpent framework that governs h
carriers compensate each other for the exchangpeen$tate traffic, will transition over a numbdny@ars, with the first step being implemer
in July 2012, to a near zero rate for terminatiadfic by 2017. Frontier will be able to recovesignificant portion of those revenues thro
end user rates and other replacement support msaan

Effective December 29, 2011, the Order requiredviders to pay interstate access rates for the tetioin of VolP toll traffic. On April 2¢
2012, the FCC, in an Order on Reconsideration,iipethat changes to originating access rate&/fdP traffic will not be implemented un
July 2014. The Order has been challenged by cepaities in court and certain parties have als@ipetd the FCC to reconsider vari
aspects of the Order. With the initial implemerttattcommencing in July 2012, the second half of 20itpact was immaterial.

Certain states also have their own open proceedmmgddress reform to intrastate access chargesthed intercarrier compensation and ¢
universal service funds. In addition, we have bagproached by, and/or are involved in formal spateeedings with, various carriers see
reductions in intrastate access rates in certatestAlthough the FCC has pepted state jurisdiction on certain access chargany state
are still considering moving forward with their pedings. We cannot predict when or how these matters willlbeided or the effect on ¢
subsidy or switched access revenues. However guagductions in our subsidy or switched accesswa®may directly affect our profitabil
and cash flows as those regulatory revenues dbawat an equal level of associated variable expenses

OPERATING EXPENSES

NETWORK ACCESS EXPENSES

2012 2011 2010
(% in thousands $Increase % Increase $ Increase % Increast
Amount (Decrease  (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Network acces $ 44158: $ (77,094 (15%) $ 518,68$ 135,00 35% $ 383,67!

Network access expenses for 2012 decreased $7idnmor 15%, to $441.6 million, as compared w11, primarily due to reduced d
network and backbone costs, reflecting cost syeergealized in moving traffic onto the Frontierdey backbone, decreased long dist
carriage costs in 2012, including a reduction istgdor our originating traffic associated with thé&d quarter implementation of the Order
reduced content costs related to fewer customer&ifdS video service. Network access expensesiatdoded promotional costs of $i
million and $13.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respeady, for various broadband and video subscrivenmmtions.

Network access expenses for 2011 increased $138i0nmor 35%, to $518.7 million, as compared w2@10. Network access expense:
2011 increased $171.3 million as a result of theitamhal six months of expenses in 2011 attribwgatal the Acquired Business. Netw
access expenses, excluding the additional six rsouitlexpenses related to the Acquired Businessedsed $36.3 million, or 9%, to $34
million, as compared with 2010, primarily due talueed data network and backbone costs, reflecjingrgies realized in moving traffic o1
the Frontier legacy backbone, and decreased I@tgrdie carriage costs in 2011.
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OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2012 2011 2010
(% in thousands $ Increase % Increase $cdase % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Wage and benefit
expense: $ 1,207,799 $ 78,78( 7% $ 1,129,01 $ 325,29« 40% $ 803,72
All other operating
expenses 1,026,75 (122,64 (11%) 1,149,40; 341,98! 42% 807,41

$ 2,23455 % (43,86¢) (2%) $ 2,278,441 $ 667,28 41% $ 1,611,13

Wage and benefit expenses

Wage and benefit expenses for 2012 increased $vdli®n, or 7%, to $1,207.8 million, (including $32 million and $15.7 million ¢
severance costs for 2012 and 2011, respectivdbtereto 1,099 and 318 employees), as compare@1a, Drimarily due to higher costs
compensation and certain other benefits resultiogy thigher average employee headcount and incredn@rértime costs in the third quarte
2012 to repair the network for seasonally higherrstdamage costs than in the prior year. Increatantertime and other costs incurre:
2012, resulting from seasonal storms, were appratéiy $10 million greater than 2011. Since clodimg Transaction, the Company has |
reducing its reliance on outside contractors antiees by bringing work ifouse to employees. While wages have increaseg hénee bee
more than offset by reduced outside services. Wighsystems and network conversions completedztmepany is focusing on simplifying
processes to reduce wage and m@age costs. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Camgprecorded severance costs of $17.2 million edl&d
the termination of 537 employees in connection whthre-engineering initiative. We expect headcaomtecline further in 2013.

Wage and benefit expenses for 2011 increased $32i8i8n, or 40%, to $1,129.0 million as compared2010. Wage and benefit expense:
2011 increased $364.2 million as a result of theitamhal six months of expenses in 2011 attribwgatol the Acquired Business. Wage
benefit expenses, excluding the additional six memf expenses related to the Acquired Businessedsed $38.9 million, or 5%, to $76
million, as compared with 2010, primarily due tevkr costs for compensation and certain other besnéficluding pension costs, as discu:
below.

Pension and OPEB costs for the Company are includedr wage and benefit expenses. Pension and GieeB for 2012, 2011 and 2(
were approximately $65.8 million, $48.1 million afi6i0.2 million, respectively. Pension and OPEB astlude pension and OPEB expe
of $81.6 million, $58.3 million and $68.5 millioless amounts capitalized into the cost of capitpkaditures of $15.8 million, $10.2 milli
and $8.3 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respetyiv

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valgesstimate that our 2013 pension and other givstreent benefit expenses (which w
$81.6 million in 2012 before amounts capitalizei ithe cost of capital expenditures) will be appmately $100 million to $110 million befa
amounts capitalized into the cost of capital exjtengs.

All other operating expense

All other operating expenses for 2012 decrease@ .$lillion, or 11%, to $1,026.8 million, as comgdrwith 2011, primarily due to t
elimination of redundant information technology tsowith the completion of the systems conversi@rg] lower outside service costs
described above.

All other operating expenses for 2011 increased2EB4nillion, or 42%, to $1,149.4 million, as compdrwith 2010. All other operatil
expenses for 2011 increased $439.5 million as @tresthe additional six months of expenses in 2@ftributable to the Acquired Busine
All other operating expenses, excluding the add#icsix months of expenses related to the AcquBasdiness, decreased $97.5 million
12%, to $709.9 million, as compared with 2010, @ity due to $36.5 million in corporate costs adited to the Acquired Business during
first six months of 2011, combined with lower odtsiservice fees, other taxes and marketing costs.

Cost Savings Resulting from the Transaction
We have achieved cost savings as a result of tesaction, principally (1) by leveraging the scdiighof our existing corporate administrat
functions, information technology and network sgsteto cover certain former Acquired Business fuordiand systems, (2) by sourcing
certain functions formerly provided by thighrty service providers to the Acquired Business @) by achieving improved efficiencies
more favorable rates with third-party vendors.
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Our annualized cost savings reached approxima&®g $nillion as of the end of 2012. The cost sasimg2012 from our targeted initiati
list (which includes, but is not limited to, carlegibn or reduction of vendor services, networktcesvings, contractor reductions, ber
changes and real estate savings) was approxinttelly million on an annualized basis, and when coetivith the savings achieved in 2
and 2010, equates to an annualized cost savingaterof approximately $653 million, which exceeds original estimate of $500 million
cost savings.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

2012 2011 2010
($ in thousands $ Increase % Increase $dase % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Depreciation expens  $ 844,64. $ (36,840 (4%) $ 881,48. $ 281,81 47% $ 599,66:
Amortization expense 422,16t (99,52§) (19%) 521,69: 227,63 7% 294,05
$ 126680 $ (136,369 (10%) $ 1,403,117 $ 509,45t 57% $ 893,71!

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2012 eed $136.4 million, or 10%, to $1,266.8 millias, compared to 2011. Amortizat
expense decreased primarily due to lower amortimagkpense associated with certain Frontier legaoperties that were fully amortized
2012 and the amortization related to the custoraselthat is amortized on an accelerated methogpreBiation expense decreased prim
due to a lower net asset base and changes inrtfaniag useful lives of certain assets.

Depreciation and amortization expense for 201leased $509.5 million, or 57%, to $1,403.2 millies,compared to 2010. Depreciation
amortization expense increased $510.9 million @salt of the additional six months of expense2dhl attributable to the Acquired Busine
Depreciation expense, excluding the additionahsonths of expense related to the Acquired Businesgased $8.6 million, or 1%, to $60
million, as compared with 2010, primarily due t@olges in the remaining useful lives of certain @sse

We annually commission an independent study to tepttze estimated remaining useful lives of our plassets. The latest study
completed in the fourth quarter of 2012, and aféeiew and analysis of the results, we adopted Ihag for certain plant assets as of Oct
1, 2012. Our “composite depreciation rafet plant assets was 6.65% as a result of the sty anticipate depreciation expenst
approximately $850 million to $870 million for 2013

Amortization expense, excluding the additional signths of expense related to the Acquired Busingssreased $10.0 million, or 3%,
$284.1 million for 2011, as compared with 2010. dktization expense for 2011 and 2010 included $#66illion and $237.8 millio
respectively, for intangible assets (primarily cumser base) that were acquired in the Transactisacdan an estimated fair value of $2.5 bil
and an estimated useful life of nine years for th&idential customer base and 12 years for thenkssicustomer base, amortized o
accelerated method. We anticipate amortizatiorese of approximately $330 million for 2013.

ACQUISITION AND INTEGRATION COSTS

2012 2011 2010
(% in thousands $ Increase % Increast $Increase % Increast
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount
Acquisition anc
integration cost $ 81,73$% (61,40 (43%) $ 143,14 $ 6,00. 4% $ 137,14,

Integration costs include expenses incurred tagiatie the network and information technology platfe, and to enable other integration
cost savings initiatives. Acquisition costs inauexpenses incurred to close the Transaction (I&gahcial advisory, accounting, regulat
and other related costs). In the first quartee@f2, the Company successfully converted the opegraystems in the remaining nine state
the Acquired Business to our legacy systems afieverting four states of the Acquired Businessrituthe fourth quarter of 2011. Theref
as of March 31, 2012, the Company had completedhatsrork and systems integration into one platfokihile these conversions w:
complete, the Company continued throughout 201ginplify its processes, eliminate redundancies fanther reduce its cost structure wil
improving its customer service capabilities.
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The Company incurred $81.7 million, $143.1 milliand $137.1 million of operating expenses and $84illion, $76.5 million and $97
million in capital expenditures related to integuat activities during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respebti All integration activities we
completed as of the end of 2012.

INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSSES ON EARLY EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT/OTHER INCOME, NET / INTEREST EXPENSE /
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2012 2011 2010
($.in thousands $ Increase % Increase $ Increase % Increase
Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount (Decrease (Decrease Amount

Investment incom: $ 13,01:  $ 10,62( NM $ 2,391 % (4,457) (65%) $ 6,84¢
Losses on earl
extinguishmen

of debi $ (90,369 $ (90,369) (100%) $ - $ - 0% $ -
Other income, ne $ 7,121 % (2,019 (22%) $ 9,13t % (4,55%) (33%) $ 13,69(
Interest expens $ 687,98" $ 22,78¢ 3% $ 665,19t $ 143,37¢ 27% $ 521,82
Income tax expens $ 75,63¢ $ (12,709 (14%) $ 88,34! $ (26,65¢) (23%) $ 114,99¢

Investment Income
Investment income for 2012 increased $10.6 miltm$13.0 million, as compared with 2011, primadiye to $9.8 million in investment ga
associated with cash received during the secondeguat 2012 in connection with our previously weit-off investment in Adelphia.

Investment income for 2011 decreased $4.5 millo$.4 million, as compared with 2010, primarilyedo a decrease of $1.3 million in eq
earnings, a decrease in investment gains of $1ll{bmin 2011, and a $1.3 million decrease in ineofrom shorterm investments of ca
(including restricted cash).

Our average cash balances were $705.6 million, $27lion and $304.7 million for 2012, 2011 and1P0 respectively. Our average ti
restricted cash balance was $105.9 million and $li#lllion for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Losses on Early Extinguishment of De

During 2012, we recognized losses of $90.4 millionthe early extinguishment of debt, including $6&nillion in connection with a $50(
million debt tender offer for the Notes, a loss@f1 million for $78.1 million in total open marketpurchases of our 6.25% Senior Notes
2013 and a loss of $19.3 million for open markeurehases of $75.7 million of the April 2015 Nogewl $59.3 million of the 2017 Notes.

Other Income, net
Other income, net for 2012 decreased $2.0 milio##.1 million, as compared with 2011.

Other income, net for 2011 decreased $4.6 millm#$9.1 million, as compared with 2010, primarilyedio a gain of $4.5 million on a split-
dollar life insurance policy settlement recogniaethe second quarter of 2010.

Interest Expenst

Interest expense for 2012 increased $22.8 millam3%, to $688.0 million, as compared with 201limarily due to the registered d
offerings of $1,350 million in total of senior umseed notes, resulting in higher average debt $ev@rtially offset by debt repayments
$757.0 million and lower capitalized interest inl20 Our composite average borrowing rate as okBber 31, 2012 was 7.85%

Interest expense for 2011 increased $143.4 milllw27%, to $665.2 million, as compared with 20@f0marily due to higher average d
levels during 2011. Interest expense for 2011 201D included $284.4 million and $143.2 millionspectively, associated with the assu
debt from the Transaction. Our composite averagetwing rate as of December 31, 2011 and 2010/A:8%% and 8.04%, respectively.

Our average debt outstanding was $8,563.5 mill§$h299.8 million and $6,950.9 million for 2012, 20and 2010, respectively. Our d

levels have risen from 2010 levels primarily du¢he $3.5 billion of debt that was assumed by Feonipon consummation of the Transact
and from 2011 levels primarily due to the $1.4idillin registered debt offerings in 2012, as disedsabove.
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Income Tax Expensi

Income tax expense for 2012 decreased $12.7 milind4%, to $75.6 million, as compared with 20The variance is primarily due to lov
pretax income in 2012, along with the impact of theersal of uncertain tax positions for $12.3 imil| partially offset by a net increase
deferred tax balances.

The effective tax rate for 2012 was 33.0% as costparith 35.9% for 2011 and 42.5% for 2010.

Income tax expense for 2011 decreased $26.7 mikin23%, to $88.3 million, as compared with 20d0marily due to lower pretax incon
the reduction of deferred tax balances based oapp#cation of enacted state tax statutes for &tlBon and the net reversal of a reserve
uncertain tax positions for $9.9 million, partiatiffset by the impact of a $10.8 million chargeutésg from the enactment on May 25, 201
the Michigan Corporate Income Tax that eliminatedain future tax deductions. During 2010, Franteduced certain deferred tax asse
$11.3 million related to Transaction costs whichravaot tax deductible. These costs were incuroefhdilitate the Transaction and as ¢
were capitalized for tax purposes.

The amount of our uncertain tax positions whostusgeof limitations are expected to expire durihg hext twelve months and which wa
affect our effective tax rate is $5.2 million asiécember 31, 2012.

We paid $4.7 million in cash taxes during 2012caspared to receiving refunds (net of cash taxéd) ph $33.1 million in cash taxes duri
2011. Our 2012 cash taxes paid reflects the coetinimpact of bonus depreciation in accordance With Tax Relief, Unemployme
Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Creation Ac2@EO0. In 2011, we received refunds of $53.9 milligenerated in part by the 2(
retroactive change in accounting method for repaiid maintenance costs related to tax years 20D@réor. Absent any legislative change
2013, we expect that our cash tax payments wilggoximately $125 million to $150 million for 2013

Net income attributable to common shareholders abRtier

Net income attributable to common shareholdersroffier for 2012 was $136.6 million, or $0.14 pbhare, as compared to $149.6 million
$0.15 per share, in 2011 and $152.7 million, o23Qer share, in 2010. The change in basic andedilnet income per share for 2011
2012, as compared to 2010, was primarily due tartbiease in weighted average shares outstandiagesult of the issuance of 678.5 mil
shares in connection with our acquisition of thejiced Business.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Dislosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the normal coafsmur business operations due to ongoing investimg) funding activities, including thc
associated with our pension assets. Market rigasab the potential change in fair value of arficial instrument as a result of fluctuation
interest rates and equity prices. We do not holdsare derivative instruments, derivative commodistruments or other financial instrume
for trading purposes. As a result, we do not uradter any specific actions to cover our exposurmaoket risks, and we are not party to
market risk management agreements other than indheal course of business. Our primary markét eisposures are interest rate risk
equity price risk as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interatgs relates primarily to the interdéstaring portion of our pension investment portfaia
related obligations, and floating rate indebtedné&3sr longterm debt as of December 31, 2012 was 94% fixedldabt with minimal expost
to interest rate changes. We had no interestredp agreements related to our fixed rate delfécteat December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Our objectives in managing our interest rate risk ta limit the impact of interest rate changeseamings and cash flows and to lower
overall borrowing costs. To achieve these objestiall but $517.5 million of our outstanding beviogs at December 31, 2012 have fi
interest rates. In addition, our undrawn $750.0 lioml revolving credit facility has interest ratehat float with LIBOR, a
defined. Consequently, we have limited materiagur@ earnings or cash flow exposures from changemterest rates on our longenr
debt. An adverse change in interest rates woucase the amount that we pay on our variableotatgations and could result in fluctuatic
in the fair value of our fixed rate obligationsad®d upon our overall interest rate exposure a¢mber 31, 2012, a neterm change in intere
rates would not materially affect our consolidafiedncial position, results of operations or caskws.

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate exposure

At December 31, 2012, the fair value of our ldegn debt was estimated to be approximately $9libti based on our overall weighi
average borrowing rate of 7.85% and our overalghiid average maturity of approximately 9 years.oADecember 31, 2012, there has |
no material change in the weighted average matagplicable to our obligations since December 81,12

Equity Price Exposure

Our exposure to market risks for changes in egéturity prices as of December 31, 2012 is limftedur pension assets. We have no «
security investments of any material amount.

The Companyg pension plan assets have decreased from $1,26fidh at December 31, 2011 to $1,253.6 millionDecember 31, 2012
decrease of $4.4 million. This decrease is a resubenefit payments of $172.6 million, primarilyffset by $139.6 million of positiy
investment returns (including $13.0 million of atilwhal asset transfers from Verizon) and $28.6iarllof net cash contributions. We m
total net cash contributions to our pension plar2fail2 of $28.6 million, which reflects the posgiimpact of funding rate changes containe
the Highway Investment Act of 2012 and guidancenfrine IRS on August 16, 2012 related to valuat@es, and on September 11, 2
related to lump sum methodologies. Net contrimgitotaling $18.3 million were made during thedtguarter of 2012 and $10.3 million v
made in October 2012. We expect that we will mak&ributions to our pension plan of approximateb@ $nillion in 2013.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Spfementary Data

The following documents are filed as part of thepBrt:
1. Financial Statements - See Index on page F-1.

2. Supplementary Dai- Quarterly Financial Data is included in the Finah&8tatements (see 1. abo\

Item 9. Changes in andDisagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Rancial Disclosure
None.
Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

(i) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proced!
We carried out an evaluation, under the sugien and with the participation of our managety including our principal executi
officer and principal financial officer, regarditige effectiveness of our disclosure controls amdcgdures (as defined in Rules 1Bae’
and 15d45(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934msended). Based upon this evaluation, our praha@mecutive officer ar
principal financial officer concluded, as of thedesf the period covered by this report, December2812, that our disclosure controls
procedures were effective.

(ii) Internal Control Over Financial Reporti
(&) Managemer's annual report on internal control over financégdorting
Our management report on internal control ovenfaia reporting appears on page F-2.
(b) Report of registered public accounting firm

The report of KPMG LLP, our independent registgpatllic accounting firm, on internal control ovemdincial reporting appears on page F
4.

(c) Changes in internal control over financigaorting

We reviewed our internal control over financial egng at December 31, 2012. As a result of then$action, we have integrated
business processes and systems of the Acquireté&ssand, as of March 31, 2012, the Company hagleted its network and syste
integration into one platform. Accordingly, certaihanges have been made to our internal contvelsfmancial reporting during 2012.

There have been no other changes in our intermatamver financial reporting identified in an dwation thereof that occurred during
last fiscal quarter of 2012 that materially affeter is reasonably likely to materially affectranternal control over financial reporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART llI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officerand Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from our definitive proxy stateméot the 2013 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant &giation 14A within 120 days after December 31120See Executive Officers of tt
Registrant” in Part | of this Report following Itednfor information relating to executive officers.
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Iltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from our definitive proxy stateméot the 2013 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant égiation 14A within 120 days after December 31,20

ltem 12. Security Ownership dertain Beneficial Owners and Management and RelateStockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from our definitive proxy stateméot the 2013 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant égitation 14A within 120 days after December 31,20

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and &ated Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from our definitive proxy statemémt the 2013 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant égiitation 14A within 120 days after December 31,20

Iltem 14. Principal Accountant Feesna Services

The information required by this Item is incorpedtby reference from our definitive proxy stateméot the 2013 Annual Meeting
Stockholders to be filed with the SEC pursuant égiitation 14A within 120 days after December 31,20

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statment Schedules

List of Documents Filed as a Part of This Report:

Q) Index to Consolidated Financial Stateme
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,£012011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yerded
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearednd
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradted
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

All other schedules have been omitted becauseetipgred information is included in the consolidatiedncial statements or the notes the
or is not applicable or not required.
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(2) Index to Exhibits:

All documents referenced below were filed pursdanhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 by the Camjpfile number 001-11001, unless
otherwise indicated.

Exhibit
No.
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (filexl Bxhibit 3.200.1 to the Company’s Quarterly ReportForm 10Q for the fisce
quarter ended June 30, 20Cx

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certtficaf Incorporation, effective July 31, 2008 (filad Exhibit 3.1 to the Comparsy’
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20 *

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate loforporation, effective June 28, 2010 (filed ashibit 99.2 to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed July 1, 2010)*

By-laws, as amended February 6, 2009 (fileBxdsbit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report omnk&K filed on February ¢
2009).

Indenture of Securities, dated as of August 15118@tween the Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, (BlsAsuccessor
Chemical Bank), as Trustee (the “August 1991 Ingiexi} (filed as Exhibit 4.100.1 to the Compasyuarterly Report on Foi
1C-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 1¢

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the August 199femture, dated October 1, 1994, between the CompadyJPMorge
Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bask}rastee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.7 to the Compar@urrent Report ¢
Form &K filed on January 3, 1995°

Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the August 1991ehtdre, dated as of June 15, 1995, between the &omgnd JPMorg:
Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Bask},rastee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.8 to the Compan@urrent Report ¢
Form &K filed on March 29, 1996 (th*March 29, 1996 -K")). *

Sixth Supplemental Indenture to the August 199 ihtdre, dated as of October 15, 1995, between thnep@ny and JPMorg
Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical BasK)rastee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.9 to the March 2396 -K). *

Seventh Supplemental Indenture to the August 188&nture, dated as of June 1, 1996, between the&@omand JPMorgi
Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to Chemical Baisk]rastee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.11 to the Compamnnual Report ¢
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 1996 “1996 1(-K")). *

Eighth Supplemental Indenture to the August 199deiture, dated as of December 1, 1996, betweerCtmpany an
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as successor to CheBar®d), as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.100.12 ® 1896 1-K). *
Indenture, dated as of August 16, 2001, betweerCihrapany and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (as suacesskhe Chas
Manhattan Bank), as Trustee (including the fornmate attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 of @mmpanys Current Repa
on Form K filed on August 22, 2001*

Indenture, dated as of December 22, 2006, betwe=@odmpany and The Bank of New York, as Trustedyging the form ¢
note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to@wmpan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 29, 200¢
Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by and betwleerCompany and The Bank of New York with resgecthe 6.625¢
Senior Notes due 2015 (including the form of suoterattached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@npanys Current Repa
on Form K filed on March 27, 2007 (th“March 27, 2007 -K")).*

Indenture dated as of March 23, 2007 by and betwleerCompany and The Bank of New York with respgecthe 7.125¢
Senior Notes due 2019 (including the form of sucterattached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.2 toMerch 27, 2007 -K). *
Indenture dated as of April 9, 2009, betw#enCompany and The Bank of New York Mellon, assiee (the April 200¢
Indenture”) (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Compangsirrent Report on Form 8-K filed on April 9, 200 “April 9, 2009 8-
K™).”

First Supplemental Indenture to the April 2009 Imiee, dated as of April 9, 2009, between the Caom@and The Bank of Ne
York Mellon, as Trustee (including the form of eatttached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to theildg 2009 -K). *

* Incorporated by reference
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4.13

4.14

4.15
4.16

4.17
4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10
10.11

Second Supplemental Indenture to the April 200®idre, dated as of October 1, 2009, between timep@oy and The Ba
of New York Mellon, as Trustee (including the fowh note attached thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.1tie Companys Curren
Report on Form-K filed on October 1, 2009

Third Supplemental Indenture to the April 2010 Intlee, dated as of May 22, 2012, between the Coynpad The Bank «
New York Mellon, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4d.the Compar’s Current Report on Form R-filed on May 22, 2012 (tt
“May 22, 2012 -K")).

Form of Senior Note due 2021 (filed as Exhibit th2he May 22, 2012-K). *

Fourth Supplemental Indenture to the April 2010eimuire, dated as of August 15, 2012, between tmep@oy and The Bank
New York Mellon, as Trustee (ti*Fourth Supplement to April 2010 Indenture”) (fileag Exhibit 4.1 to the ComparsyCurrer
Report on Form-K filed on August 15, 2012 (tF“August 15, 2012-K")). *

Form of Senior Note due 2023 (filed as Exhibit th2he August 15, 2012-K). *

First Amendment to the Fourth Supplement to Apdil@ Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2012, betwreeCompany and T
Bank of New York Mellon, as Trustee (filed as Exhib.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Ford 8iled on October
2012).”

Indenture, dated as of April 12, 2010 (thefiA2010 Indenture”)as amended, between Spinco and The Bank of New
Mellon, as Trustee (including the forms of notem@ied thereto) (filed as Exhibit 4.22 to Spirsc®egistration Statement
Form 10 filed on April 20, 2010 (File No. 0-53950) (the“Spinco Form 1")).*

First Supplemental Indenture to the April 2010 Imtdee, dated as of July 1, 2010, between the Coynpad The Bank of Ne
York Mellon, as Trustee (filed as Exhibit 4.2 t@tG@ompany’s Registration Statement on Fordh f8ed on July 2, 2010 (Fi
No. 33:-167962))"

Indenture, dated as of January 1, 1994, betweemtierdNorth Inc. (formerly GTE North Incorporateai)d Bank of New Yor
Mellon (as successor to The First National Bankbicago), as Trustee (the “Frontier North Inderifu¢éled as Exhibit 4.1 t
the Compan’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20"

First Supplemental Indenture to the Frontier Ndrittenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, between Froiath Inc. (formerl
GTE North Incorporated) and Bank of New York Mell@s successor to The First National Bank of Clagaais Trustee (file
as Exhibit 4.2 to the Compa’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20*

Form of Debenture under the Frontier Norttehture (filed as Exhibit 4.24 to the Company’s AaihReport on Form 18&-for
the year ended December 31, 2011 “2011 1¢-K")).*

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 23, 2010, betmtbe Company, the Lenders party thereto and Jg§ao€Chase Ban
N.A., as Administrative Agent (filed as Exhibit 8Qo the Spinco Form 1C*

Credit Agreementdated as of September 8, 2010, among the Comganyehders party thereto, and Deutsche Bank AG,
York Branch, as Administrative Agent and IssuingnBathe “Letter of Credit Agreement”ffied as Exhibit 4.1 to tf
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on September 14, 201"

Amendment, dated September 11, 2012, to the Lett€redit Agreement, among the Company, the Lengarty thereto ar
Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as Administmtikgent and Issuing Bank (filed as Exhibit 4.1 bhe tCompany
Current Report on Form-K filed on September 12, 2017

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 14]128thong the Company, as the Borrower, and CoB®@B, as the
Administrative Agent, the Lead Arranger and a Landad the other Lenders referred to therein (fdedexhibit 10.1 to the
Compan's Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 17, 2011"

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of May 1892By and among Verizon Communications Inc. (“¥en”), New
Communications Holdings Inc“Spincc’) and the Company, (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to For-K filed on May 15, 2009)*
Agreement Regarding Intellectual Property Mattdeded as of March 23, 2010, among the Companyc8@ind Verizon (filer
as Exhibit 10.12 to the Spinco Form 1*

Non-Employee Directors' Deferred Fee Equity Plan,rasraded and restated December 29, 2008 (filed abiELD.7 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2008 “2008 1(-K").*

Non-Employee Directors’ Equity Incentive Plan, as adeshand restated December 29, 2008 (filed as Bxtib8 to the 2008
1C-K).

Separation Agreement between the Company.@maard Tow effective July 10, 2004 (filed as Exhi®.2.4 of the Company’
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 20

1996 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and resi¢éedmber 29, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to tB6&21(-K). *

Frontier Bonus Plan (formerly Citizens InibemPlan) (filed as Appendix A to the Company'sXr Statement dated April 10,
2007).
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10.12

10.13
10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21
10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27
10.28

10.29

10.30
10.31

10.32
10.33
10.34
10.35
10.36
121

211
23.1

Amended and Restated 2000 Equity Incentize, Rs amended and restated December 29, 2088 &8l Exhibit 10.13 to the
2008 1(-K). *

2009 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendix Athe Compan’'s Proxy Statement dated April 6, 20C*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated JanuaryZ®110, between the Company and Kathleen Aberr(@itegl as Exhibit 10.35 to
the Spinco Form 10*

Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer mployment Letter, dated January 20, 2010, betwleeiCompany and Kathleen
Q. Abernathy (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compan@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal geraended June 30, 2012
(the“June 30, 2012 -Q")).*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated May 24, 2012 wextn the Company and Andrew Crain (filed as ExHiBiR to the June 3
2012 1(-Q).*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated March 3011, between the Company and Susana D’Emic (@iteBxhibit 10.1 to the
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 207

Offer of Employment Letter, dated Decemlier2®04, between the Company and Peter B. Hayesy€$1Offer Letter”) (filed
as Exhibit 10.23 to the Compé's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer of Emplogtrieetter, dated December 31, 2004, between thep@agnand Peter E
Hayes (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the June 30, 200-Q). "

Offer of Employment Letter, dated April ®12, between the Company and Lois Hedg-Peth (fifeExhibit 10.4 to the June
30, 2012 1-Q).”

Offer of Employment Letter, dated December 18, 2@E2ween the Company and John M. Jure

Change in Control Letter Agreement, datedl 27, 2012, between the Company and Daniel J. dty (filed as Exhibit 10.1
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 20*

Offer of Employment Letter, dated January2l®6, between the Company and Cecilia K. McKer(figigKenney Offer
Letter”) (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compée's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 20r
Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer mplboyment Letter, dated January 13, 2006, betwleeiCompany and Cecilia K.
McKenney(filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the June 30, 2QL-Q). "

Offer of Employment Letter, dated March G0@&, between the Company and Donald R. Shassidragstan Offer Letter”)
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 20
Amendment, dated May 31, 2012, to Offer mployment Letter, dated March 7, 2006, betweerCbmpany and Donald R.
Shassian (filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the June 302210-Q). *

Separation Agreement, dated December 17, 2012 gbetthe Company and Donald R. Shas:

Change in Control Letter Agreement, dated May 81,2 between the Company and Melinda M. Whitedfés Exhibit 10.7 t
the June 30, 2012 -Q).”

Amended and Restated Employment Agreematgdds of March 31, 2010, between the Companywerg Agnes
Wilderotter (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp/s Current Report on Forn-K filed on April 1, 2010)*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for CEO (filedExhibit 10.32 to the 2009 Form-K). *

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for naerastutive officers other than CEO (filed as Exhilfl.33 to the 2009 Form 10-
K). *

Form of LTIP Agreement for CE(C

Form of LTIP Agreement for named executive officetiser than CEC

Summary of Non-Employee Directors’ Compensafrrangements Outside of Formal Plans (filedeakibit 10.30 to the 2011
Form 1(-K). "

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement legittvee Company and Integra Telecom Holdings, latediFebruary 6, 2006
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compe's Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 9, 2006*

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of J29, between the Company and Country Road Conaations LLC (filed as
Exhibit 2.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on July 9, 2007)*

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed chargbss(item is included herein for the sole purpomoorporation by reference
Subsidiaries of the Registra

Auditors' Consent
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31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo Rule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 19341934 Ac”).
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer purguao Rule 13-14(a) under the 1934 Ac

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer puiant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursu&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 “SOXA").

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantcdiioB8e906 of SOXA
101.INS XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume¢

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Docume
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhe

Exhibits 10.7 through 10.34 are management comsti@ctompensatory plans or arrangements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATIO!
(Registrant’

By: /s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte

Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

February 27, 201
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitiesdattid on the 2% day of February 2013.

Signature Title

/sl Leroy T. Barnes, J Director
(Leroy T. Barnes, Jr

/sl Peter C. B. Byna Director
(Peter C. B. Bynoe

/s/ Susana 'Emic Senior Vice President and Controller
(Susana 'Emic) (Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Jeri B. Finarc Director

(Jeri B. Finard

/s/ Edward Fraiol Director
(Edward Fraioli’

/s/ James Kaha Director
(James Kahar

/s/ Pamela D.A. Ree\ Director
(Pamela D.A. Reev

/s/ Howard L. Schrotf Director
(Howard L. Schrott

/sl Larraine D. Seg Director
(Larraine D. Segil

/s/ Mark Shapirc Director
(Mark Shapiro

/s/ Donald R. Shassit Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €fi
(Donald R. Shassia (Principal Financial Officer

/s/ Myron A. Wick 1ll Director
(Myron A. Wick 111)

/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotte Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Mary Agnes Wilderotter (Principal Executive Officer
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Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Ite

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repaor
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&@12011

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeded
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomssilLfor the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearednd
December 31, 2012, 2011and 2(

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradlsd
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemt

F-1

F-6

F-7

F-9




Managements Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

The management of Frontier Communications Corpamaéind subsidiaries is responsible for establisking maintaining adequate intel
control over financial reporting, as such terma$ined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, we conducted an evaluation offfeetiveness of our internal control o
financial reporting based on the framework in IntdrControlintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations
the Treadway Commission (COSO). As a result of Thensaction, we have integrated the business gseseand systems of the Acqu
Business and, as of March 31, 2012, the Companycbatpleted its network and systems integration arte platform. Accordingly, certe
changes have been made to our internal controlsfmancial reporting. Based on our evaluation, management concluded that our inte
control over financial reporting was effective december 31, 2012.

Our independent registered public accounting fikBMG LLP, has audited the consolidated financiatesnents included in this report anc
part of their audit, has issued their report, ideld herein, on the effectiveness of our internatrod over financial reporting.

Stamford, Connecticut
February 27, 2013




Report Of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Frontier Communications Corporatiath subsidiaries as of December
2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statsnoé operations, comprehensive income (loss)iteqnd cash flows for each of the ye
in the three-year period ended December 31, 20i@s6 consolidated financial statements are th@mnssglity of the Companyg managemet
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alitsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBiogUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastiééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all materggspects, the financial position of Fron
Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as exenber 31, 2012 and 2011 and the results of tip@irations and their cash flows
each of the years in the three-year period endegmber 31, 2012, in conformity with U.S. generalégepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight BodUnited States), Fronti
Communications Corporation and subsidiariagrnal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2012, based on criteria establish
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee onSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissio@%0), and ot
report dated February 27, 2013 expressed an ufigdabdpinion on the effectiveness of the Compaiiyternal control over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connectict
February 27, 201
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Report Of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We have audited Frontier Communications Corporadind subsidiariesinternal control over financial reporting as of Bewer 31, 201
based on criteria established in Internal Contrioitegrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission (COSO). Frontier Communications Corpond management is responsible for maintaining effectnternal control ov
financial reporting and for its assessment of tffecéveness of internal control over financial oefing, included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over FimgnReporting. Our responsibility is to express @inion on the Compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aatli@ing the design and operating effectivenedatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestawée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accor@amdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsksurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Frontier Communications Corporatiand subsidiaries maintained, in all material respeeffective internal control o\
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, basedriteria established in Internal Contrdirtegrated Framework issued by the Comm
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimis€COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of Frontier Communications Corpmatind subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and, 28id the related consolida
statements of operations, comprehensive incoms)(leguity and cash flows for each of the yeathénthreeyear period ended December
2012, and our report dated February 27, 2013 egpdean unqualified opinion on those consolidatedritial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Stamford, Connectict
February 27, 201
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

Explanatory Note

Effective July 1, 2010, Fronti's scope of operations and balance sheet capitadizathanged materially as a result of the completd the
Transaction, as described in Note 3 of the Note€dasolidated Financial Statements. Historical fioal data presented for Frontier is 1
indicative of the future financial position or op#ing results for Frontier, and includes the resulif operations of the Acquired Busines:

defined in Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated fafe Statements, from the date of acquisition aly 1, 2010.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
(% in thousands)

2012 2011
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 1,326,553 $ 326,09
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $93g&6¥$107,048, respective 533,70« 585,15
Restricted cas 15,40¢ -
Prepaid expens: 66,97: 63,42:
Income taxes and other current assets 144,58 264,35
Total current asse 2,087,20: 1,239,03
Restricted cas 27,25: 144,68!
Property, plant and equipment, | 7,504,891 7,547,52.
Goodwill 6,337,71! 6,337,711
Other intangibles, n¢ 1,542,73! 1,964,50!
Other assets 233,82. 214,86.
Total assets $ 17,733,63 $ 17,448,31
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Lonc-term debt due within one ye $ 560,55( $ 94,01¢
Accounts payabl 338,14¢ 519,54
Advanced billings 146,31 152,78
Accrued other taxe 66,34: 64,39.
Accrued interes 209,32 169,341
Other current liabilities 232,83t 152,13(
Total current liabilitie: 1,553,52I 1,152,211
Deferred income taxe 2,357,21I 2,458,01
Pension and other postretirement ben: 1,055,05! 918,70:
Other liabilities 266,62! 225,85!
Long-term debt 8,381,94 8,224,39:
Equity:
Shareholders' equity of Fronti
Common stock, $0.25 par value (1,750,000,0@0czized share:
998,410,000 and 995,128,000 outstanding, otisedy, and 1,027,986,0C
issued, at December 31, 2012 and 2 256,99 256,99
Additional paiwin capital 4,639,56. 4,773,38
Retained earning 63,20¢ 226,72:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (483,576 (386,96
Treasury stock (368,597 (415,00
Total shareholders' equity of Froni 4,107,591 4,455,13
Noncontrolling interest in a partnership 11,67¢ 13,997
Total equity 4,119,27. 4,469,13.
Total liabilities and equity $ 17,733,63 $ 17,448,31

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@émnsolidated Financial Statements
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 20

(% in thousands, except for per-share amounts)

Revenue

Operating expense
Network access expens
Other operating expens
Depreciation and amortizatic
Acquisition and integration costs

Total operating expenses
Operating incom:

Investment incom

Losses on early extinguishment of d
Other income, ne

Interest expense

Income before income tax
Income tax expense

Net income

Less: Income attributable to the noncontroll
interest in a partnership

Net income attributable to common shareholt
of Frontier

Basic net income per share attribute
to common shareholders of Frontier

Diluted net income per share attributa
to common shareholders of Frontier

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 20

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
(see Note 14)

Comprehensive incorr

Less: Net income attributable to the noncontrol
interest in a partnership

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
common shareholders of Frontier

($ in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
$ 501185 $ 524304 $ 3,797,67
441,58 518,68: 383,67
2,234,55 2,278,41! 1,611,13
1,266,80 1,403,17! 893,71
81,73 143,14¢ 137,14
4,024,68 4,343,42: 3,025,67
987,16¢ 899,62: 771,99
13,01 2,391 6,84¢
(90,36 - -
7,121 9,13t 13,69(
687,98! 665,19 521,82
228,95. 245,95 270,71
75,63¢ 88,34 114,99
153,31« 157,60 155,71
16,67¢ 7,99¢ 3,041
$ 13663 $ 149,61« $ 152,67
$ 014 $ 0.1 $ 0.2¢
$ 0.1t $ 0.1 $ 0.2:
2012 2011 2010
$ 15331 $ 157,60¢ $ 15571
(96,619 (157,419 15,97(
56,70 194 171,68
(16,679 (7,999 (3,04
$ 40,02 $ (7,800 $ 168,64

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetlémnsolidated Financial Statements.
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Balance December 3
2009

Acquisition of the
Acquired Busines
Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock

Net income

Other comprehensiv
income, net of ta
Distributions

Balance December 3
2010

Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock

Net income

Other comprehensive los
net of tax
Distributions

Balance December 3
2011

Stock plans
Dividends on commo
stock

Net income

Other comprehensiv
income, net of ta
Distributions

Balance December 3
2012

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201
($ and shares in thousands)

Frontier Shareholde:

Accumulatec

Additional Other
Common Stocl Paic-In Retainec Comprehensiv: Treasury Stoc| Noncontrolling Total
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Amount Interest Equity
349,45( $ 87,36« $ 956,40: $ 2,75¢ $ (245,519 (37,129 $ (473,39) $ 11,45¢ 339,07(
678,53( 169,63! 5,048,26 - - - - 5,217,89
- - (28,129 - - 2,997 40,10¢ 11,97¢
- (451,06 (78,32) - - - - (529,38Y)
- - 152,67: - - - 3,04« 155,71
- - - 15,97( - - - 15,97(
- - - - - - (1,500 (1,500
1,027,98 256,99 5,525,47 77,10 (229,549 (34,13) (433,280 13,00¢ 5,209,74
- - (5,707 - - 1,27¢ 18,28¢ - 12,58«
- (746,38) - - - - - (746,38)
- - 149,61 - - - 7,994 157,60t
- - - (157,419 - - - (157,41,
- - - - - - (7,000 (7,000
1,027,98 256,99 4,773,38 226,72. (386,96 (32,85%) (415,00) 13,997 4,469,13
- - (34,587) - - 3,282 46,40t - 11,82¢
- (99,23 (300,15)) - - - - (399,391)
- - 136,631 - - - 16,67¢ 153,31
- - - (96,619 - - - (96,617
- - - - - - (19,000 (19,000
1,027,98  $ 256,99 $ 463956 $ 63,200 $ (483,570 (29570  $ (368,59) $ 11,67 4,119,27

The accompanying Notes are an integral partegdtiConsolidated Financial Statements.

F-7




FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 20

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating actst
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expel
Stock based compensation expe
Pension/OPEB cos
Losses on early extinguishment of d
Other nori-cash adjustmen
Deferred income taxe
Change in accounts receival
Change in accounts payable and other liabil
Change in prepaid expenses, income taxes and athent asset

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) investing atieg:
Capital expenditure- Business operatior
Capital expenditure- Integration activitie:
Network expansion funded by Connect America F
Grant funds received for network expansion from i@art America Fun
Cash transferred from (to) escr
Cash paid for the Acquired Business (net of casfuiaed)
Other assets purchased and distributions receiet

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows provided from (used by) financing actkas:

Long-term debt borrowing

Financing costs pai

Long-term debt paymen

Premium paid to retire de

Dividends paic

Repayment of customer advances for construc
distributions to noncontrolling interests andest

Net cash provided from (used by) financing acts

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivi
Cash and cash equivalents at Januz

Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid (received) during the period
Interest
Income taxes (refund:

Non-cash investing and financing activitit

Capital lease obligatior

Financing obligation for contribution of real prapeto
pension plai

Reduction of pension obligatic

Shares issued for the Acquired Busin

Assumed dek

Other acquired liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in capital expenditures dakanges in accounts paya

($ in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
$ 153,31  $ 157,60¢  $ 155,71°
1,266,80 1,403,17' 893,71

16,77t 14,20¢ 14,47

28,08 23,80 40,05(

90,36 - -

10,31¢ (28,03 10,07

80,50: 87,411 85,43.

43,81 (72,600 (33,146

(148,90() (84,689 106,43:

11,40( 71,70¢ (50,57()

1,552,47 1,572,68. 1,222,181

(748,40) (748,36)) (480,88Y)

(54,097 (76,479 (96,99)

(4,830 - -

65,98: - -

102,02( 43,01% (115,000

) - (82,56()

4,39 19,15¢ 1,48

(634,939 (762,67) (773,95))

1,360,62! 575,00( -

(27,859 (5,442) (12,869

(756,95) (552,39)) (7,239

(72,290 - -

(399,39)) (746,38) (529,38

(21,230 (5,959 (6,16)

82,90 (735,179 (555,65))

1,000,43: 74,831 (107,431

326,09 251,26 358,69

$ 1,32653 $ 326,09 $ 251,26
$ 636,48: $ 65350 $ 511,35
$ 4718 $ (33,079 $ 19,88
$ 2659 $ -3 -
$ -3 58,10( $ -
$ -3 (58,100 $ -
$ -3 -8 5,217,89
$ -3 -8 3,456,78.
$ -3 -8 987,51
$ 9,80: $ 1,33 $ (43,979

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetlémnsolidated Financial Statements.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significdotounting Policies

(a) Description of Busines:
Frontier Communications Corporation (Frontier) iscenmunications company providing services predamtiy to rural areas a
small and mediunsized towns and cities as an incumbent local exgdararrier, or ILEC. Frontier was incorporatedl®35
originally under the name of Citizens Utilities Cpamy and was known as Citizens Communications Cagnpatil July 31
2008. Frontier and its subsidiaries are refercedd “we,” “us,” “our,” “Frontier,” or the “Compariyin this report. On July
2010, Frontier completed the Transaction for thquasition of the Acquired Business, as describedh&r in Note 3 —The
Transaction.

(b) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estisiat
Our consolidated financial statements have beepapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in tf
United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Certain reslications of balances previously reported haaenbmade to conform to 1
current presentation. All significant intercomparalances and transactions have been eliminatezhsotidation.

Frontier has a 33% controlling general partner interest in a pather entity, the Mohave Cellular Limited Partnep
(Mohave). Mohaves results of operations and balance sheet arediedlin our consolidated financial statements. miimority
interest of the limited partners is reflected im ttonsolidated balance sheet as “Noncontrollingré@st in a partnershignd in thi
consolidated statements of operations as “Incomiduatiable to the noncontrolling interest in a parship.”

For our financial statements as of and for theqoeended December 31, 2012, we evaluated subseguents and transactic
for potential recognition or disclosure through thege that we filed this annual report on FormKLl®ith the Securities ar
Exchange Commission (SEC).

The preparation of our financial statements in oamfty with U.S. GAAP requires management to malstingates an
assumptions that affect (i) the reported amountsseets and liabilities at the date of the findrat@ements, (ii) the disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities, and (iii) thpaed amounts of revenue and expenses duringeparting period. Actual resu
may differ from those estimates. Estimates andjuelys are used when accounting for revenue regognitpairment of long-
lived assets, intangible assets, depreciation amattezation, income taxes, purchase price allocati@ontingencies, and pens
and other postretirement benefits, among others.

(c) Cash Equivalents:
We consider all highly liquid investments with amginal maturity of three months or less to behceguivalents.

(d) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized when services are providethen products are delivered to customers. Rev#naids billed in advan
includes: monthly recurring network access seryispecial access services and monthly recurringl laee and unlimited fixe
long distance bundle charges. The unearned poofidhese fees is initially deferred as a compor@ndther liabilities on ot
consolidated balance sheet and recognized as revarer the period that the services are providexleRue that is billed
arrears includes: non-recurring network accessicEyyswitched access services, non-recurring leealices and londistanc:
services. The earned but unbilled portion of thfess is recognized as revenue in our consolidatdmsents of operations ¢
accrued in accounts receivable in the period thatservices are provided. Excise taxes are recegrag a liability when bille
Installation fees and their related direct andeneental costs are initially deferred and recognagdevenue and expense ove
average term of a customer relationship. We re@egas current period expense the portion of irsdtall costs that excee
installation fee revenue.

As required by law, the Company collects variougesafrom its customers and subsequently remitetleeses to governmen
authorities. Substantially all of these taxes aeorded through the consolidated balance sheeprasénted on a net basis in
consolidated statements of operations. We alseadlniversal Service Fund (USF) surcharges frostatners (primarily feder
USF) that we have recorded on a gross basis irconsolidated statements of operations and inclwdéun “Revenue”anc
“Other operating expensesf $119.7 million, $104.5 million and $73.8 millidor the years ended December 31, 2012, 201
2010, respectively.

F-9




(e)

(f)

(@)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at ofiginat, including capitalized interest, or fair iketr value as of the date
acquisition for our acquired properties. Maintetiand repairs are charged to operating expenseswsed. The gross bo
value of routine property, plant and equipmenteetis charged against accumulated depreciation.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles:

Intangibles represent the excess of purchase priee the fair value of identifiable tangible nesets acquired. We undert:
studies to determine the fair values of assetdiabiities acquired and allocate purchase priceadsets and liabilities, includi
property, plant and equipment, goodwill and othdgntifiable intangibles. We annually (during theuth quarter) or mo
frequently, if appropriate, examine the carryinqueaof our goodwill and trade name to determine tivbe there are ai
impairment losses. We test for goodwill impairmantthe “operating segmentével, as that term is defined in U.S. GA/
During the third quarter of 2011, the Company reaiged into six operating segments in order torye the full benefits of |
local engagement model. Our operating segmentsistonf the following regions: Central, Midwest, MNatal, Northeas
Southeast and West. Our operating segments aregeggd into one reportable segment. In conjunctiith the reorganizatic
of our operating segments effective with the tigechrter of 2011, we reassigned goodwill to our répg units using a relati
fair value allocation approach.

The Company amortizes finite lived intangible assmter their estimated useful lives and reviewshdotangible assets at le
annually to assess whether any potential impairregists and whether factors exist that would netzesa change in useful |
and a different amortization period.

Impairment of Londiived Assets and Longiived Assets to Be Disposed Of:

We review long-lived assets to be held and usedamglived assets to be disposed of for impairment wienevents or chang
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amadirduch assets may not be recoverable. Recoveayabilassets to be held ¢
used is measured by comparing the carrying amduheamsset to the future undiscounted net castsflexpected to be genere
by the asset. Recoverability of assets held far sameasured by comparing the carrying amounthefassets to their estima
fair market value. If any assets are considereletimpaired, the impairment is measured by the anby which the carryir
amount of the assets exceeds the estimated faieva#llso, we periodically assess the useful ligéour tangible assets
determine whether any changes are required.

Investments

Investments in entities that we do not control, Wwhere we have the ability to exercise significenfiuence over operating a
financial policies, are accounted for using theiggmethod of accounting.

Income Taxes and Deferred Income Taxes:
We file a consolidated federal income tax returre Midlize the asset and liability method of accingnfor income taxes. Unc
the asset and liability method, deferred incomesaare recorded for the tax effect of temporarfedihces between the finan:
statement basis and the tax basis of assets dnilitiba using tax rates expected to be in effebewthe temporary differences
expected to reverse.

Stock Plans:
We have various stodiased compensation plans. Awards under these plengranted to eligible officers, manager
employees, nhon-management employees ancenguieyee directors. Awards may be made in the foffincentive stock option
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciatiorntsg restricted stock, restricted stock units tieostockbased awards, includi
awards with performance, market and tiwesting conditions. Our general policy is to isshares from treasury upon the grar
restricted shares and the exercise of options.

The compensation cost recognized is based on awéisitely expected to vest. U.S. GAAP requiredditures to be estimat
and revised, if necessary, in subsequent pericaisifal forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Net Income Per Common Share Attributabl€ommon Shareholders:
Basic net income per common share is computed ubimgveighted average number of common sharesaodisiy during th
period being reported on, excluding unvested &stli stock awards. The impact of dividends paidiovested restricted stc
awards have been deducted in the determinatiomsit tand diluted net income attributable to comrsleareholders of Frontit
Except when the effect would be antidilutive, dildtnet income per common share reflects the ddugffect of the assum
exercise of stock options using the treasury sinethod at the beginning of the period being regoote

F-10




(2)

®3)

Recent Accounting Literature:

Fair Value Measurements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards8d&ASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ANOD) 201104 (ASL
2011-04), Fair Value Measurements: Amendments to Achieve ComFRair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirésrie
U.S. GAAP and IFRSs” (Accounting Standards Codifaa (ASC) Topic 820). ASU 20104 changes the wording usec
describe many of the requirements in U.S. GAAP rfarasuring fair value and for disclosing informatiabout fair valu
measurements to ensure consistency between U.SPGHA IFRS. ASU 20104 also expands the disclosures for fair v
measurements that are estimated using significaobservable (Level 3) inputs. This new guidance wasbe applie
prospectively, and was effective for interim anchaal periods beginning after December 15, 2011e Chmpany adopted AS
2011-04 in the first quarter of 2012 with no impantour financial position, results of operationsash flows.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05 (AX)11-05), Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehe
Income,” (ASC Topic 220). ASU 20105 eliminates the option to report other compretvensicome and its components in
statement of changes in equity. ASU 2011-05 requinat all non-owner changes in stockholderglity be presented in eithe
single continuous statement of comprehensive incorme two separate but consecutive statements fiéwv guidance was to
applied retrospectively, and was effective for iimeand annual periods beginning after December208,1. The Compal
adopted ASU 2011-05 in the first quarter of 201thwio impact on our financial position, resultsopkrations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-831 2013-02), Comprehensive Income: Reporting of Amol
Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehenkiceme,” (ASC Topic 220). ASU 2012 requires disclosing the effec
reclassifications out of accumulated other compnsive income on the respective line items in nedine in circumstances wt
U.S. GAAP requires the item being reclassifiedi$neintirety to net income. This new guidance isg@pplied prospectively. T
Company adopted ASU 20112 during the fourth quarter of 2012 with no impawtour financial position, results of operatiom
cash flows.

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02 (AZ012-02), “Intangibles—Goodwill and Other — TestimglefiniteLived
Intangible Assets for Impairment,” (ASC Topic 3585U 201202 permits an entity to first assess qualitativedes to determir
whether it is more likely than not that an indefdived intangible asset is impaired as a basis &tenining whether it
necessary to perform a quantitative impairment t&ste more-likely-thamot threshold is defined as having a likelihoodrafre
than 50 percent. This amendment also gives amyeht option not to calculate annually the faitueaof an indefinitdived
intangible asset if the entity can determine tha not more likely than not that the asset isaimgd. If an entity concludes the
is not more likely than not that the indefinlieed intangible asset is impaired, then the enstgot required to take further actic
While ASU 201202 is effective for annual and interim impairmesdts performed for fiscal years beginning aftert&aper 1t
2012, early adoption is permitted. The Company s&tbpASU 201202 during the fourth quarter of 2012 with no matkhinpac
on our financial position, results of operation<ash flows.

The Transaction:

On July 1, 2010, Frontier acquired the defined tassed liabilities of the local exchange businews reelated landline activities
Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizon) in Arizonaaho, lllinois, Indiana, Michigan, Nevada, Northr@ama, Ohio, Oregol
South Carolina, Washington, West Virginia and Wisio and in portions of California bordering ArizgrNevada and Oreg
(collectively, the Acquired Territories), includingternet access and long distance services anaddbamd video provided
designated customers in the Acquired Territoribe @cquired Business). Frontier was consideredattgquirer of the Acquire
Business for accounting purposes.
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We accounted for our acquisition of 4.0 million @ss lines from Verizon (the Transaction) usingdgh&lance included in AS
Topic 805. We incurred $81.7 million, $143.1 milliand $137.1 million of acquisition and integratr@tated costs in connecti
with the Transaction during the years ended Decerlie 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Suchscast required to |
expensed as incurred and are reflected in “Acqorsénd integration costs” in our consolidatedestants of operations.

The allocation of the purchase price of the AcqliBeisiness was based on the fair value of assgtsrad and liabilities assum
as of July 1, 2010, the effective date of the Taatisn. Our assessment of fair value was finalfakine 30, 2011.

The final allocation of the purchase price presgitelow represents the effect of recording thel fiaia value of assets acquir
liabilities assumed and related deferred incomedaas of the date of the Transaction, based otothktransaction considerati

of $5.4 billion.
($ in thousands
Total transaction consideration: $ 5,411,70!
Current asse $ 454,51
Property, plant & equipme 4,407,67
Goodwill 3,695,39
Other intangible— primarily customer lis 2,532,201
Other noncurrent assi 75,09:
Current liabilities (483,119
Deferred income taxi (1,476,81)
Lon¢-term debt (3,456,78)
Other liabilities (336,46()
Total net assets acquired $ 5,411,70

The fair value of the total consideration issueddquire the Acquired Business amounted to $5libhiand included $5.2 billic
for the issuance of Frontier common shares and pasiments of $105.0 million. As a result of the Agaction, Verizo
stockholders received 678,530,386 shares of Firontmmon stock. Immediately after the closing o ffransaction, Verizc
stockholders owned 68.4% of the combined compaoytstanding equity, and existing Frontier stodttéis owned 31.6% of t
combined company’s outstanding equity.

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortitan presents the combined results of operatiorsrofitier and the Acquirt
Business as if the Transaction had occurred aarafaly 1, 2010. The pro forma information is natessarily indicative of wh
the financial position or results of operationsuatly would have been had the Transaction been et as of January
2010. In addition, the unaudited pro forma finahénformation is not indicative of, nor does itrpart to project, the futu
financial position or operating results of Fronti@ihe unaudited pro forma financial information lexies acquisition ar
integration costs and does not give effect to atiyrated and potential cost savings or other opeyafficiencies that could res
from the Transaction.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS INFORMATION

For the year ended
December 31, 201

($ in millions, except per share amou)

Revenue $ 5,652
Operating incomi $ 1,192

Net income attributable to comm:
shareholders of Fronti $ 324

Basic and diluted net income per common

share attributable to common
shareholders of Fronti $ 0.3¢

(4)  Accounts Receivable

The components of accounts receivable, net at DieeeB1, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

($ in thousands) 2012 2011
Retail and wholesal $ 581,15. $ 639,84.
Other 45,81¢ 52,36
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (93,267 (107,049
Accounts receivable, net $ 533,70 $ 585,15

An analysis of the activity in the allowance foruthtful accounts for the years ended December 312,22011 and 2010 is as follows:

Additions
Balance a Charged tc Balance a
beginning ol Charged tc Switched anc end of
(% in thousands) Period Other Revenu  Nonswitched Revent Deductions Period
2010 $ 30,17.  $ 55,16 $ 14,87 $ (26,639) $ 73,57
2011 73,57 93,72: 16,40: (76,64 107,04
2012 107,04¢ 74,33: 14,39¢ (102,509 93,26"

We maintain an allowance for bad debts based orestimate of our ability to collect accounts reedie. The increase to the allowa
is recorded as a reduction to revenue.
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(5) Property, Plant and Equipme

The components of property, plant and equipmebieaember 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Estimatec

(% in thousands) Useful Lives 2012 2011
Land N/A  $ 126,48. $ 128,85!
Buildings and leasehold improveme 41 years 1,052,65! 1,050,55!
General suppol 5to 17 year: 988,70° 914,77
Central office/electronic circuit equipme 5to 11 year: 4,965,09! 4,582,29
Poles 49 years 507,92: 471,56:
Cable and wirt 15 to 30 yeat 6,038,83! 5,727,311
Conduit 60 years 354,77 342,86¢
Other 12 to 30 year 44.,80: 35,53¢
Construction work in progress 274,48! 384,38l

Property, plant and equipme 14,353,76 13,638,13
Less: Accumulated depreciati (6,848,86) (6,090,61)

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 7,504,899 $ 7,547,52

Depreciation expense is principally based on thepmsite group method. Depreciation expense was.684dlion, $881.5 million an
$599.7 million for the years ended December 3122@011 and 2010, respectively. As a result ahdependent study of the estime
remaining useful lives of our plant assets, we éebpew estimated remaining useful lives for carfant assets as of October 1, 2
with an immaterial impact to depreciation expense.

(6) Goodwill and Other Intangible

The components of goodwill by the reporting uniteffect at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are asifsilo

($ in thousands

Northeas $ 1,245,41.
National 1,176,13'
Southeas 1,113,93
West 1,072,49
Central 1,006,13:
Midwest 723,60

Total Goodwill $ 6,337,71!

The components of other intangibles at Decembe2@12 and 2011 are as follows:

($ in thousands) 2012 2011
Other Intangibles

Customer bas $ 242764 $ 2,697,411

Software license 105,01¢ 105,01¢

Trade name and license 124,41¢ 135,28!
Other intangible 2,657,08 2,937,71

Less: Accumulated amortization (1,114,34) (973,217
Total other intangibles, net $ 1,542,731 $ 1,964,50
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Amortization expense was $422.2 million, $521.7liomil and $294.1 million for the years ended Decen®ie 2012, 2011 and 20:
respectively. Amortization expense for 2012, 2Gikid 2010 of $410.8 million, $465.4 million and $28 million, respectivel
primarily represents the amortization of intangibsets (primarily customer base) that were acdjuiréghe Transaction based on a
value of $2.5 billion and a useful life of nine yedor the residential customer base and 12 yearshe business customer bi
amortized on an accelerated method. Amortizatiqrerse for 2012, 2011 and 2010 included $11.4 anill$56.3 million and $56
million, respectively, for amortization associatedith certain Frontier legacy properties, which wefelly amortized i
2012. Amortization expense, based on our currstitnate of useful lives, is estimated to be apprately $330 million in 2013, $2
million in 2014, $240 million in 2015, $195 millidn 2016, and $150 million in 2017.

(7) Long-Term Debt:

The activity in our long-term debt from December 3211 to December 31, 2012 is summarized as fellow

Year Ended
December 31, 201. Interest
Payments Rate at
December 31 and New December 31  December 31
(% in thousands) 2011 Retirements Borrowings 2012 2012*
Senior Unsecured De $ 8,325,77. $ (756,079 $ 1,350,000 $ 8,919,69! 7.8%
Industrial Developmer
Revenue Bonc 13,55( - - 13,55( 6.3%
Rural Utilities Service
Loan Contracts 10,197 (875) - 9,32 6.15%
Total Long-Term Debt $ 834952 §$ (756,95) $ 1,350,000 ¢ 8,942,56! 7.85%
Less: Debt Discout (31,119 (71)
Less: Current Portion (94,010 (560,550
$ 8,224,39: $ 8,381,94

* Interest rate includes amortization of debt isswamosts and debt premiums or discounts. The irtteedes at December 31, 2C
represent a weighted average of multiple issuar
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Additional information regarding our Senior UnsemiiDebt at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as fallows

2012 2011
Principal Interest Principal Interest
(% in thousands) Outstanding Rate Outstanding Rate
Senior Notes and
Debentures Due
1/15/201¢ $ 502,65¢ 6.250% $ 580,72- 6.250%
5/1/2014 200,00 8.250% 600,00( 8.250%
3/15/201F 300,00( 6.625% 300,00( 6.625%
4/15/201F 374,80: 7.875% 500,00( 7.875%
10/14/2016* 517,50( 3.095% (Variable 575,00( 3.175% (Variable
4/15/2017% 1,040,68! 8.250% 1,100,001 8.250%
10/1/201¢ 600,00( 8.125% 600,00( 8.125%
3/15/201¢ 434,00( 7.125% 434,00( 7.125%
4/15/202C 1,100,001 8.500% 1,100,001 8.500%
7/1/2021 500,00( 9.250% - -
4/15/2022 500,00( 8.750% 500,00( 8.750%
1/15/202¢ 850,00( 7.125% - -
11/1/202¢ 138,00( 7.000% 138,00( 7.000%
8/15/202¢ 1,73¢ 6.800% 1,73¢ 6.800%
1/15/2027 345,85¢ 7.875% 345,85¢ 7.875%
8/15/2031 945,32! 9.000% 945,32! 9.000%
10/1/2034 62¢ 7.680% 62¢ 7.680%
7/1/2035 125,00( 7.450% 125,00( 7.450%
10/1/204¢ 193,50( 7.050% 193,50( 7.050%
8,669,69 8,039,77.
Subsidiary Senior Notes
and Debentures Du
12/1/201z - - 36,00( 8.050%
2/15/202¢ 200,00 6.730% 200,00 6.730%
10/15/202¢ 50,00( 8.400% 50,00( 8.400%
Total $ 8,919,69 7.86% $ 8,325,77. 7.93%

*Represents borrowings under the Credit Agreeméifit @oBank.

On May 17, 2012, the Company completed a registeffeding of $500 million aggregate principal amowif 9.250% senior unsecul
notes due 2021, issued at a price of 100% of fiv@icipal amount. We received net proceeds of $&dllion from the offering afte
deducting underwriting fees and offering expensBlse Company also commenced a tender offer to pgecthe maximum aggreg
principal amount of its 8.250% Senior Notes duefQthe 2014 Notes) and its 7.875% Senior Notes2@1& (the April 2015 Notes a
together with the 2014 Notes, the Notes) that itl@égurchase for up to $500 million in cash (theboD&ender Offer). The 2014 No
had an effective interest cost of 10.855%, refterthe fact that such notes were issued at a dis@oWpril 2009.

Pursuant to the Debt Tender Offer, the Companypedefor purchase $400 million aggregate princgrabunt of 2014 Notes, tende
for total consideration of $446.0 million, and $9million aggregate principal amount of April 20DNotes, tendered for to
consideration of $54.0 million. Frontier used meds from the sale of its May 2012 offering of $B0illion of 9.250% Senior Not:
due 2021, plus cash on hand, to purchase the Notes.
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In connection with the Debt Tender Offer and repase of the Notes, the Company recognized a [0$6%0 million for the premiu
paid on the early extinguishment of debt during20We also recognized losses of $2.1 million dy2®12 for $78.1 million in tot
open market repurchases of our 6.25% Senior Nate613.

On August 15, 2012, the Company completed a regidteffering of $600 million aggregate principal amt of 7.125% seni
unsecured notes due 2023 (the 2023 Notes), issuagace of 100% of their principal amount. Weeawed net proceeds of $58
million from the offering after deducting undervimig fees and offering expenses. The Company istémdse the net proceeds from
sale of the notes to repurchase or retire existidgbtedness or for general corporate purposes.

On October 1, 2012, the Company completed a registéebt offering of $250 million aggregate prirtipmount of the 2023 Not:
issued at a price of 104.250% of their principaloant, equating to an effective yield of 6.551%. Y&eeived net proceeds of $2&
million from the offering after deducting undenvimy fees and offering expenses. The notes are ditiathl issuance of, are fu
fungible with and form a single series voting tdwggtas one class with the $600 million aggregaitecipal amount of the 2023 No
issued by the Company on August 15, 2012. The Camnp#ends to use the net proceeds from the satheofhotes to repurchase
retire existing indebtedness or for general corgoparposes.

On October 1, 2012, the Company accepted for paecBd5.7 million and $59.3 million aggregate pmatiamount of the April 20:
Notes and its 8.250% Senior Notes due 2017 (th& R@ites), respectively, in open market repurché&semtal consideration of $15¢
million. The repurchases resulted in a loss oretmty retirement of debt of $19.3 million.

The Company has a credit agreement (the Creditehgeat) with CoBank, ACB, as administrative agezddl arranger and a lender,
the other lenders party thereto for a $575 milBenior unsecured term loan facility with a finaltordy of October 14, 2016. The en
facility was drawn upon execution of the Credit &gment in October 2011. Repayment of the outstgratincipal balance is made
quarterly installments in the amount of $14,375,088ich commenced on March 31, 2012, with the reingi outstanding princip
balance to be repaid on the final maturity daterr@wvings under the Credit Agreement bear intdpased on the margins over the E
Rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) or LIB@Rthe election of the Company. Interest rateginarunder the facility (rangi
from 0.875% to 2.875% for Base Rate borrowings B8d5% to 3.875% for LIBOR borrowings) are subfecadjustments based on
Total Leverage Ratio of the Company, as such terdefined in the Credit Agreement. The currentipg on this facility is LIBOR plu
2.875%. The maximum permitted leverage ratio istdnes. Proceeds were used to repay in full theaneing outstanding principal
three debt facilities (Fronties’$200 million Rural Telephone Financing Cooperatigrm loan maturing October 24, 2011, its ¢
million CoBank term loan maturing December 31, 20d4:2d its $130 million CoBank term loan maturingcBber 31, 2013) and |
remaining proceeds were used for general corppratgoses.

The Credit Agreement contains customary representaind warranties, affirmative and negative canés) including a restriction
the Companys ability to declare dividends if an event of ddffdnas occurred or will result therefrom, a final@ovenant that requir
compliance with a leverage ratio, and customarnesvef default. Upon proper notice, the Company,nrawhole or in part, repay t
facility without premium or penalty, but subject boeakage fees on LIBOR loans, if applicable. Antsupre-paid may not be re-
borrowed.

We have a $750.0 million revolving credit facilits of December 31, 2012, we had not made any timgs under this facility. Tt
terms of the credit facility are set forth in thedit agreement (the Revolving Credit Agreemerdjed as of March 23, 2010, among
Company, the Lenders party thereto, and JPMorgas€Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. Associdedlity fees under the cre:
facility will vary from time to time depending ohé Companys credit rating (as defined in the Revolving Crédireement) and we
0.625% per annum as of December 31, 2012. Thetdadiity is scheduled to terminate on Januan2Q]4. During the term of tl
credit facility, the Company may borrow, repay asforrow funds, and may obtain letters of credihjsct to customary borrowi
conditions. Loans under the credit facility will deinterest based on the alternate base rate oadhested LIBOR rate (each
determined in the Revolving Credit Agreement),het €Companys election, plus a margin specified in the Revajv@redit Agreeme
based on the Comparsytredit rating. Letters of credit issued underdtegit facility will also be subject to fees thatry depending ¢
the Companys credit rating. The credit facility is availablerfgeneral corporate purposes but may not be usddnd dividen
payments.
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We also have a $40.0 million unsecured letter eflitrfacility, as amended. The terms of the lettecredit facility are set forth in
Credit Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20106ngrthe Company, the Lenders party thereto, andsbee Bank AG, New Yo
Branch (the Bank), as Administrative Agent and ilsguBank (the Letter of Credit Agreement). An iaitletter of credit for $190
million was issued to the West Virginia Public SeevCommission to guarantee certain of our capitastment commitments in W
Virginia in connection with the Transaction. Thrétial commitments under the Letter of Credit Agremt expired on September
2011, with the Bank exercising its option to ext&i®0.0 million of the commitments to SeptemberZ@, 2. On September 11, 2C
the Company entered into an amendment to the Lett€redit Agreement to extend $40 million of themumitments to September
2013. Two letters of credit, one for $20 millioxp&ing March 20, 2013 and the other for $20 milliexpiring September 20, 2013, w
issued on September 13, 2012. The Company isreghjto pay an annual facility fee on the availat@enmitment, regardless of usa
The covenants binding on the Company under thestefnthe amended Letter of Credit Agreement arestsuibially similar to those
the Companys other credit facilities, including limitations diens, substantial asset sales and mergers, $ubjeastomary exceptio
and thresholds.

On April 12, 2010, in anticipation of the Transaati the entity then holding the assefsthe Acquired Business completed a pri
offering for $3.2 billion aggregate principal amouwfi Senior Notes (the Senior Notes). The grossgeds of the offering, plus $12
million (the Transaction Escrow) contributed by iier, were deposited into an escrow account. Idiately prior to the Transactic
the proceeds of the notes offering (less the irptimchaserstiscount) were released from the escrow accounuaad to make a spec
cash payment to Verizon, as contemplated by the&shetion, with amounts in excess of the speciah geyment and the initi
purchaserstiscount received by the Company ($53.0 milliom).atdition, the $125.5 million Transaction Escroasweturned to tl
Company.

Upon completion of the Transaction on July 1, 2046,entered into a supplemental indenture with Baek of New York Mellon, ¢
Trustee, pursuant to which we assumed the obligatimder the Senior Notes. The Senior Notes vee@rded at their fair value on-
date of acquisition, which was $3.2 billion.

As of December 31, 2012, we were in compliance witlof our debt and credit facility financial cawnts.

Our principal payments for the next five yearsasdollows as of December 31, 2012:

Principal

(% in thousands) Payment:
2013 $ 560,55(
2014 $ 257,91
2015 $ 732,74t
2016 $ 345,46t
2017 $ 1,041,18i

Other Obligations

On September 8, 2011, the Company contributedddurinistrative properties to its qualified defingehefit pension plan. None of
buildings were under state regulation that requiretividual PUC approval. The pension plan obtaiiredependent appraisals of
properties and, based on these appraisals, théopegulan recorded the contributions at their fatue of $58.1 million. The Compa
has entered into leases for the contributed prigzefor 15 years at a combined aggregate annuabfe$b.8 million. The properties ¢
managed on behalf of the pension plan by an indigagrfiduciary, and the terms of the leases wegmti@ed with the fiduciary on .
arm’s-length basis.

The contribution and leaseback of the properties weated as a financing transaction and, accdsditige Company continues
depreciate the carrying value of the propertigssifinancial statements and no gain or loss wesgeized. An initial obligation of $5€
million was recorded in our consolidated balanceeshvithin “Other liabilities” for $57.5 million ahwithin “Other current liabilities”
for $0.6 million and is reduced as lease paymemsreade to the pension plan.

During 2012, the Company entered into a sale aaskleack arrangement for a facility in Everett, Vitaglon and entered into a cap
lease for the use of fiber in the state of Minnasdthese agreements have lease terms of 12 apda?8, respectively. These cay
lease obligations as of December 31, 2012 arededun our consolidated balance sheet within “Ottailities” and ‘Other currer
liabilities.”
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Future minimum payments for finance lease obligetiand capital lease obligations as of Decembe2@I2 are as follows:

Finance Leas Capital Leas

(% in thousand$ Obligations Obligations
Year ending December 3

2013 $ 533¢ $ 3,05¢
2014 5,17( 3,101
2015 5,27¢ 3,161
2016 5,407 3,21¢
2017 5,55( 3,27:
Thereafter 54,27 22,38’
Total future payments $ 81,01¢ 38,19¢
Less: Amounts representing interest (11,609
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 26,59¢
(8) Investment Income:

The components of investment income for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as fallow

($ in thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Interest and dividend incon $ 3,75¢ % 2,182 % 3,471
Investment gail 9,78( 1,071 3,01(
Equity earnings (loss) (522) (864) 367
Total investment income $ 13,01 $ 2391 $ 6,84¢

During 2012, we recognized a gain of $9.8 milli@saciated with cash received in connection withpyawriously writteneff investmen
in Adelphia.

(9) Other Income (Loss), Ne

The components of other income (loss), net foythars ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 éokoaes:

($ in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Gain on expiration/settlement of customer advanoet $ 7,79¢ 3 7,608 3 4,97
Litigation settlement procee: 854 1,49t 3,36¢
Split-dollar life insurance policy settleme - - 4,45¢
All other, net (1,53)) 35 89¢
Total other income (loss), net $ 7,121 $ 9,13t $ 13,69(

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized incom&708 million, $7.6 million and $5.0 million, resg@ely, in connection wit
certain retained liabilities that have terminateskociated with customer advances for construétion our disposed water properties.
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During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized $0.90nill$1.5 million and $3.4 million, respectively, settlement proceeds relate:
litigation arising from businesses that the Compariged several years ago. During 2010, we rea@sgha gain of $4.5 million on t
settlement of a split-dollar life insurance policy.

(10) _Capital Stock:

We are authorized to issue up to 1,750,000,00Ceshzfrcommon stock. The amount and timing of dimids payable on common st
are, subject to applicable law, within the soledition of our Board of Directors.

(11) Stock Plans

At December 31, 2012, we had five stdwksed compensation plans under which grants werde neamd awards remair
outstanding. No further awards may be granted wittdlee of the plans: the 1996 Equity IncentivenRthe 1996 EIP), the Amended i
Restated 2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2000 EIR) the Non-Employee DirectorBeferred Fee Equity Plan (the Deferred
Plan). At December 31, 2012, there were 12,540sh@tes authorized for grant and 2,169,089 shawgkble for grant under the 2C
Equity Incentive Plan (the 2009 EIP and togethehwhie 1996 EIP and the 2000 EIP, the EIPs) andNtdreEmployee Director€Equity
Incentive Plan (the Director&quity Plan, and together with the Deferred FeenPllae Director Plans). Our general policy is$suk
shares from treasury upon the grant of restrichedes and the exercise of options.

In connection with the Director Plans, compensatiosts associated with the issuance of stock w@ts$0.8 million, ($0.6) million ar
$1.7 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv€lash compensation associated with the DirectorsPAas $0.7 million in 2012, $(
million in 2011 and $0.5 million in 2010. These txare recognized in Other operating expenses.

We have granted restricted stock awards to empfoyethe form of our common stock. The number @frsh issued as restricted sl
awards during 2012, 2011 and 2010 were 3,976,00841000 and 3,264,000, respectively. None of #stricted stock awards may
sold, assigned, pledged or otherwise transferretlintarily or involuntarily, by the employees untiie restrictions lapse, subjec
limited exceptions. The restrictions are til@sed. At December 31, 2012, 7,049,000 shares stfiated stock were outstandi
Compensation expense, recognized in Other operatipgnses, of $15.9 million, $14.8 million and ®laillion, for the years end
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelybées recorded in connection with these grants.

1996, 2000 and 2009 Equity Incentive Plans

Since the expiration dates of the 1996 EIP and20@G9 EIP on May 22, 2006 and May 14, 2009, respelgti no awards have beer
may be granted under the 1996 EIP and the 2000 WtHer the 2009 EIP, awards of our common stock beygranted to eligib
officers, management employees and non-managemauibygees in the form of incentive stock optionsn4goialified stock option
SARs, restricted stock, performance shares or atioek-based awards. As discussed under the NorelgagDirectors’Compensatic
Plans below, prior to May 25, 2006 nemployee directors received an award of stock aptilnder the 2000 EIP upon commencel
of service.

At December 31, 2012, there were 10,000,000 stzarém®rized for grant under the 2009 EIP and 746%&ifes available for grant.
awards may be granted more than 10 years afteeffhetive date (May 14, 2009) of the 2009 EIP plahe exercise price of stc
options and SARs under the EIPs generally are @qual greater than the fair market value of thdartying common stock on the d
of grant. Stock options are not ordinarily exerblsaon the date of grant but vest over a periotinoé (generally four years). Under
terms of the EIPs, subsequent stock dividends &mck splits have the effect of increasing the aptghares outstanding, wh
correspondingly decrease the average exercise @rmetstanding options.

Performance Shares

On February 15, 2012, the Company's Compensatiann@itee, in consultation with the other novanagement directors of -
Company's Board of Directors and the Committe@lefendent executive compensation consultant, adidipgenew Frontier Longermr
Incentive Plan (the LTIP). LTIP awards are grartethe form of performance shares. The LTIP is reffeunder the Company's 2(
Equity Incentive Plan and participants consisteasfisr vice presidents and above. The LTIP awarde parformance, market and time
vesting conditions.

Beginning in 2012, during the first 90 days of eetiiyear performance period (a Measurement Periodrget number of performar
shares are awarded to each LTIP participant witpeet to the Measurement Period. The performantgcseinder the LTIP are (
annual targets for operating cash flow based ooah get during the first 90 days of each year ettireeyear Measurement Period
(2) an overall performance "modifier" set during thirst 90 days of the Measurement Period, basetherCompany's total return
stockholders (i.e., Total Shareholder Return or J@Ritive to the Diversified Telecommunicationg\Bees Group (GICS Code 5010
for the threeyear Measurement Period. Operating cash flow pmdoce is determined at the end of each year anahtigal results w
be averaged at the end of the thyeer Measurement Period to determine the prelipinember of shares earned under the LTIP a\
The TSR performance measure is then applied toedseror increase payouts based on the Compangs year relative TS
performance. LTIP awards, to the extent earned,beilpaid out in the form of common stock shortiidwing the end of the thregeal
Measurement Period.
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On February 15, 2012, the Compensation Committetgd 930,020 performance shares under the LTIPtHer 20122014
Measurement Period and set the operating cashgémfermance goal for the first year in that Meamaat Period and the TSR modi
for the three-year Measurement Period. The numbshares of common stock earned at the end oftiteeyear Measurement Peri
may be more or less than the number of target paeioce shares granted as a result of operatingfleagtand TSR performance. ,
executive must maintain a satisfactory performaatieg during the Measurement Period and must h@@rad by the Company at
end of the thregear Measurement Period in order for the awardetst.vThe Compensation Committee will determinerthmber o
shares earned for the 2012-2014 Measurement Harkeebruary 2015.

The Company recognized an expense of $0.4 millioind 2012 for the LTIP awards granted in 2012.
Restricted Stock

The following summary presents information regagdimvested restricted stock and changes with refardstricted stock under 1
2009 EIP:

Weightec
Average
Number o Grant Date Aggregate
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
Balance at January 1, 20 2,193,0( $ 104 % 17,126,00
Restricted stock grante 3,264,0( $ 75 % 31,760,00
Restricted stock veste (874,00t $ 108 $ 8,507,00
Restricted stock forfeite (143,001 $ 79
Balance at December 31, 2C 4,440,0( $ 82 $ 43,199,00
Restricted stock grante 1,734,0( $ 93 $ 8,930,00
Restricted stock veste (1,146,001 $ 95 $ 5,899,00
Restricted stock forfeite (181,00 $ 7.9
Balance at December 31, 2C 4,847,0( $ 8.4 $ 24,962,00
Restricted stock grante 3,976,0( $ 41 3 17,017,00
Restricted stock veste (1,387,001 $ 87 % 5,937,00
Restricted stock forfeite (387,001 $ 5.9
Balance at December 31, 20 7,049,0( $ 6.0 $ 30,169,000

In connection with the completion of the Transattm July 1, 2010, the Company granted an aggredt@®11,000 shares of restric
stock with a total fair value of $14.2 million ttsisenior management, as a retention and transdmtious based on contributions
senior management made to achieve key milestongheoflransaction, and to all employees (includiegiar management) as
Founder$ Stock Grant during the third quarter of 2010 Thstricted shares granted to senior managemsnhinvéhree equal annt
installments commencing one year after the grat@. ddhe Foundes' Stock granted to all employees vest 100% onhing &nniversar
of the grant date.

For purposes of determining compensation expehsefair value of each restricted stock grant igvested based on the average of
high and low market price of a share of our commstatk on the date of grant. Total remaining unrecgd compensation c
associated with unvested restricted stock award¥eaember 31, 2012 was $24.8 million and the weiglaverage period over wh
this cost is expected to be recognized is appraeiynd.5 years.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Stock Options
The following summary presents information regagdatstanding stock options and changes with regeogtions under the EIPs:

Weightec Weightec
Shares Average Average Aggregate
Subject tc Option Price Remaining Intrinsic
Option Per Share Life in Years Value
Balance at January 1, 20 3,651,0 $ 13.7¢ 1.5 $ -
Options grante: - % -
Options exercise - % -
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (2,044,000 $ 16.13
Balance at December 31, 20 1,507,0C $ 10.5C 1.7 $ 603,0(
Options grante: - 8 -
Options exercise (10,000 $  8.1¢ $ 12,0(
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (602,000 $ 10.86
Balance at December 31, 20 895,0( $ 9.9« 1.3 $ -
Options grante: - 8 -
Options exercise - 8 -
Options canceled, forfeited or laps (355,000 % 8.35
Balance at December 31, 20 540,0C $ 10.99 0.9 $ -

The following table summarizes information abowdrgls subject to options under the EIPs at DeceBhe2012:

Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weighted Averag Weightec
Number Range o Weighted Averag Remaining Number Average
Qutstanding Exercise Price: Exercise Price Life in Years Exercisable Exercise Price
428,00 $10.44 $10.44 0.4 428,0( $10.44
112,00 $11.90 - 14.15 $13.12 2.6 112,0( $13.12
540,00 $10.44 - 14.15 $10.99 0.9 540,0( $10.99

The number of options exercisable at December 311 2nd 2010 were 895,000 and 1,507,000, with ghted average exercise pi
of $9.94 and $10.50, respectively.

Cash received upon the exercise of options durfl2vas $0.1 million. There were no stock optienercised during 2010 a
2012. There were no stock options granted duri6§02 2011 and 2012. There is no remaining unreeeghicompensation ct
associated with unvested stock options at DeceBihe2012.

NonEmployee DirectofsCompensation Plans

Prior to October 1, 2010, namployee directors received stock options uponirjgirthe Board of Directors. These options v
awarded under the Director&quity Plan commencing May 25, 2006. Prior therdhmse options were awarded under the
EIP. Options awarded to directors under the 2000dEe included in the above tables.

Beginning October 1, 2010, we revised our non-eggsodirector compensation program in accordancle kst practices. Each non
employee director is now entitled to receive anuahmetainer of (1) $75,000 in cash, which he a stay elect to receive in the forrr
stock units, and (2) $75,000 in the form of stooka In addition, the Lead Director, the chairtioé Audit Committee and the chai
the Compensation Committee each receives an amtipaind of $20,000, the chair of the Nominating @wtporate Governan
Committee receives an annual stipend of $10,000 thedchair of the Retirement Plan Committee receiga annual stipend
$7,500. Directors no longer receive meeting fees.
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All fees paid to the noemployee directors in 2012 were paid quarterlyre@brs are required to irrevocably elect by Decem81 o
the prior year to receive the cash portion of thiner and/or stipends in stock units in lieu astc Stock units are credited to
director’s account in an amount that is determined as fatidke total cash value of the fees payable talifeetor are divided by 85%
the closing prices of Frontier common stock on t@nt date of the units. Units are credited to tiieector's accour
quarterly. Directors must also elect to convesd timits to either common stock (convertible on &-tmone basis) or cash ug
retirement or death.

Dividends are paid on stock units held by directrthe same rate and at the same time as we paewlils on shares of our comn
stock. Dividends on stock units are paid in threnfef additional stock units.

The number of shares of common stock authorizedstrance under the Directosfuity Plan is 2,540,761, which includes 540,
shares that were available for grant under the iede=ee Plan on the effective date of the Direttiaquity Plan. In addition, if and
the extent that any “plan unitgutstanding on May 25, 2006 under the DeferredfHan are forfeited or if any option granted unde
Deferred Fee Plan terminates, expires, or is chttel forfeited, without having been fully exemmis shares of common stock subje:
such “plan units” or options cancelled shall becoavailable under the Director&quity Plan. At December 31, 2012, there v
1,422,992 shares available for grant. There werdirE@tors participating in the DirectorBlans during all or part of 2012. In 2012,
total plan units earned were 306,634. In 2011tdked plan units earned were 197,600. In 2016 ttital options granted and plan u
earned were 30,000 and 95,695, respectively. @ptipanted prior to the adoption of the Directé&gquity Plan were granted under
2000 EIP. At December 31, 2012, 137,709 optionsewamrtstanding and exercisable under the Directans?ht a weighted aver:
exercise price of $11.64.

For purposes of determining compensation expehsefair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-
Scholes optiorpricing model which requires the use of variousiagstions including expected life of the option, exfed dividend rat
expected volatility, and riskee interest rate. The expected life (estimatedogeof time outstanding) of stock options granteds
estimated using the historical exercise behavi@ngployees. The risk free interest rate is basetth®t).S. Treasury yield curve in eff

at the time of the grant. Expected volatility ised on historical volatility for a period equalthe stock optiors expected life, calculat
on a monthly basis.

To the extent directors elect to receive the distion of their stock unit account in cash, theg aonsidered liabilitypased awards. -
the extent directors elect to receive the distiidsutof their stock unit accounts in common stodieyt are considered equibase!
awards. Compensation expense for stock units that@nsidered equithased awards is based on the market value of esomom stoc
at the date of grant. Compensation expense fok &tnits that are considered liabilihased awards is based on the market value 1
common stock at the end of each period.

(12) _Income Taxes:

The following is a reconciliation of the provisidor income taxes computed at federal statutorysradethe effective rates for the ye
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2010
Consolidated tax provision at federal statutorg 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax provisions, net of federal incoaxebenefil 2.4 4. 4.
Tax reserve adjustme (5.4 (4.0 (0.3
Changes in certain deferred tax balar 3.1 (2.7 (2.0
Noncontrolling interes (2.5 (11 (0.4
Reversal of tax credi - 4. -
Non-deductible transaction cos - - 4.
All other, net 0. 0. 0.
Effective tax rate 33.0% 35.9 % 425 Y

Income taxes for 2012 and 2011 include the netrsaveof reserves for uncertain tax positions fo2.81million and $9.9 millior
respectively. Deferred tax balances were increas@@12 to reflect changes in estimates and chaigstate effective rates and fil
methods.

Income taxes for 2011 include the reduction of defittax balances based on the application of edatate tax statutes for $6.8 milli

partially offset by the impact of a $10.8 millioharge resulting from the enactment on May 25, 28flthe Michigan Corporate Incot
Tax that eliminated certain future tax deductions.
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During 2010, Frontier reduced certain deferredaasets of $11.3 million related to Transaction cegtich were not tax deductib
These costs were incurred to facilitate the Tratia@nd as such had to be capitalized for tax gaep. Income taxes for 2010 ¢
include the impact of a $4.1 million charge resgtifrom health care reform legislation associateth the passage of the Pati
Protection and Affordable Care Act and of the He&lare and Education Reconciliation Act of 201@ (&tts). The health care refc
legislation enacted in March 2010 under the Adisiekted the tax deduction for the subsidy thatG@oeepany receives under Medic
Part D for prescription drug costs.

The components of the net deferred income taxliiglfasset) at December 31 are as follows:

(8 in thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property, plant and equipment basis differer $ 1,959,020 $ 1,896,66
Intangibles 929,74¢ 997,45!
Other, net 29,56¢ 17,58«
2,918,34. 2,911,70!
Deferred income tax asse
Pension liability 306,42: 246,71«
Tax operating loss carryforwa 154,89:. 294,17.
Employee benefit 177,46« 154,71:
State tax liability 7,42z 7,35¢
Accrued expense 43,16: 27,64¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun 35,18: 42,73
Other, net 14,02t 22,31!
738,56 795,64!
Less: Valuation allowance (78,789 (108,66:)
Net deferred income tax as: 659,78 686,98.
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ 225855 $ 2,224,772

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflecietthé following
captions on the consolidated balance st

Deferred income taxe $ 2,357,211 $ 2,458,01
Income taxes and other current assets (98,657) (233,290
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ 2,25855 $ 2,224,722

Our federal net operating loss carryforward as et@nber 31, 2012 is estimated as $145.0 million ardstate tax operating ¢
carryforward as of December 31, 2012 is estimate#lle® billion. A portion of our state loss carrgfi@rd begins to expire in 20
through 2032.
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The provision (benefit) for federal and state ineotaxes, as well as the taxes charged or creditesthdreholderséquity of Frontiel
includes amounts both payable currently and deddimepayment in future periods as indicated below:

($ in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Income taxes charged to the consolidated stateafi

operations

Current:

Federa $ (3,829 $ (13,320 $ 18,30:
State (1,039 14,25: 10,26(
Total current (4,867) 932 28,56
Deferred:

Federa 53,64 77,75( 82,08(
State 26,85¢ 9,661 4,35
Total deferred 80,50 87,41: 86,43’
Total income taxes charged to the consolidatedrstant of 75,63¢ 88,34: 114,99¢
operations

Income taxes charged (credited) to shareholdeustyegf Frontier:

Current benefit arising from stock options exerdiaad restricted stoc 2,931 - -
Deferred income taxes (benefits) arising from #aognition of

additional pension/OPEB liability (58,557 (97,409 17,50:
Total income taxes charged (credited) to sharehsldguity of Frontie (55,619 (97,409 17,50:
Total income taxes $ 20,02: $ (9,066) $ 132,50!

In 2011, we received refunds of $53.9 million gexted in part by the 2009 retroactive change in aetiog method for repairs a
maintenance costs related to tax years 2008 and pri

U.S. GAAP requires applying a “more likely than 'htftreshold to the recognition and derecognition éartain tax positions eitr
taken or expected to be taken in the Compaimcome tax returns. The total amount of our gtazdiability for tax positions that m.
not be sustained under a “more likely than rtbteshold amounts to $13.6 million as of Decemlder2®12 including interest of $:
million. The amount of our uncertain tax positiomsose statute of limitations are expected to exgiring the next twelve months :
which would affect our effective tax rate is $5.8lion as of December 31, 2012.

The Companyg policy regarding the classification of interestigpenalties is to include these amounts as a coempaf income te
expense. This treatment of interest and penaltieomnsistent with prior periods. We have recogniredur consolidated statement
operations for the year ended December 31, 20h&f eeduction in interest in the amount of $2.lionl We are subject to income
examinations generally for the years 2010 forwardféderal and 2005 forward for state filing juitttbns. We also maintain uncert
tax positions in various state jurisdictions.

The following table sets forth the changes in tleenpanys balance of unrecognized tax benefits for thesyeaded December 31, 2(
and 2011:

($ in thousands

2012 2011
Unrecognized tax benefi- beginning of yea $ 33,92¢ $ 49,18(
Gross increase- current year tax positior 3,381 8,20(
Gross decreases - expired statute of limitations (25,827) (23,45))
Unrecognized tax benefits - end of year $ 11,487 $ 33,92¢

The amounts above exclude $2.1 million and $3.@ianilof accrued interest as of December 31, 20122011, respectively, that
have recorded and would be payable should the Caygotax positions not be sustained.
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(13) Net Income Per Common Sha

The reconciliation of the net income per commorresttalculation for the years ended December 312, 28011 and 2010 is as follows:

($ and shares in thousands, excepi-share amounts

2012 2011 2010

Net income used for basic and dilu

earnings per common sha
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroftier $ 136,63t $ 149,61 $ 152,67:
Less: Dividends paid on unvested restricted stockrds (2,900 (3,749 (3,072)
Total basic and diluted net income attributabledmmon shareholde

of Frontier $ 133,73} $ 145,87, $ 149,60:
Basic earnings per common she
Total weighte-average shares and unvested restricted stock a

outstandin¢- basic 997,66 994,75: 653,24t
Less: Weighted-average unvested restricted stoekdsy (7,12¢) (4,907 (3,420)
Total weighted-average shares outstanding - basic 990,53 989,85: 649,821
Net income per share attributable to common shéders

of Frontier $ 0.14 $ 0.1t $ 0.2t
Diluted earnings per common shg
Total weighte-average shares outstand- basic 990,53 989,85 649,82!
Effect of dilutive share 1,26: 1,41¢ 1,16:
Effect of dilutive stock units - 557 -
Total weighted-average shares outstanding - diluted 991,80( 991,82 650,99:
Net income per share attributable to common shiders

of Frontier $ 0.1: $ 0.1 $ 0.23

Stock Options
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@l 2@tions to purchase 540,000 shares (at exepcises ranging from $10.44

$14.15), 895,000 shares (at exercise prices rarfging $8.19 to $14.15) and 1,116,000 shares (atceseeprices ranging from $10.44
$14.15), respectively, issuable under employee emsgtion plans were excluded from the computatiodilated earnings per sh:
(EPS) for those periods because the exercise priees greater than the average market price otommmon stock and, therefore,
effect would be antidilutive. In calculating dilagt€EPS, we apply the treasury stock method anddecfuture unearned compensatio
part of the assumed proceeds.

Stock Units

At December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we had 8643374480 and 434,765 stock units, respectiveyad under the Director Pla
These securities have not been included in theedilincome per share of common stock calculatiorttfe years ended December
2012 and 2010, because their inclusion would havanéidilutive effect.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(14) _Comprehensive Income:
Comprehensive income consists of net income aner ghins and losses affecting shareholdesgstment and pension/OPEB liabilit
that, under U.S. GAAP, are excluded from net income
The components of accumulated other comprehens$se het of tax at December 31, 2012, 2011 and a4 @s follows:
Deferred taxes o
pension and OPEB
($in thousands) Pension Cost Postretirement Cos Costs All other Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $ (374,15) $ (21,559 $ 150,28: $ 92 $ (245,519
Other comprehensive income before reclassibns (2,30 11,42« (8,42¢) 424 1,11¢
Amounts reclassified from accumulated ott@nprehensive los 27,19¢ (3,239 (9,104 - 14,85
Net currer-period other comprehensive income (Ic 24,89: 8,18t (17,537 424 15,97(
Balance at December 31, 20 (349,269 (13,369 132,75: 332 (229,549
Other comprehensive income before reclassificat (241,069 (22,66%) 100,97¢ (482) (163,23)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmnsive los: 15,16¢ (5,779 (3,569 - 5,827
Net currer-period other comprehensive income (Ic (225,899 (28,447 97,40¢ (482) (157,419
Balance at December 31, 20 (575,167 (41,817 230,16 (150) (386,967
Other comprehensive income before reclassificat (152,407 (29,92 68,87 (113,45)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgnelve los: 29,69 (2,537) (10,320 - 16,84(
Net currer-period other comprehensive income (Ic (122,71) (32,459 58,55 - (96,617
Balance at December 31, 20 $ (697,87) $ (74,26  $ 288,71: $ (150 $ (483,570

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Amount Reclassified from

The significant items reclassified from eaoimponent of accumulated other comprehensive inqdwas) for the years ended

Affected Line Item in the

($ in thousands
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los$) Statement Where Nei
Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive LosSomponents 2012 2011 2010 Income is Presente(
Amortization of Pension Cost Iterf
Prior-service cost $ 19¢  $ 19¢ % 19¢
Actuarial gains/(losse: (29,89() (15,369 (27,397
(29,69:) (15,16% (27,192)  Income before income tax
Tax impacl 11,28. 5,762 10,33¢  Income tax (expense) bene
$ (18,409 $ (9,409 $ (16,86() Net income
Amortization of Postretirement Cost Itefhs
Prior-service cost $ 10,06¢ $ 10,19¢  $ 8,15¢
Actuarial gains/(losse! (7,537) (4,424) (4,91¢)
2,531 5,77¢ 3,23¢ Income before income tax
Tax impaci (962) (2,194 (1,23() Income tax (expense) bene
$ 1,56¢ $ 358 $ 2,00¢  Netincome

(@)
(b)

Amounts in parentheses indicate los:
These accumulated other comprehensive loss comfsoaenincluded in the computation of net peric
pension cost (see Note - Retirement Plans for additional detai
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(15) _Sedament Information:

We operate in one reportable segment. Frontierigesvboth regulated and unregulated voice, datavédheb services to busine
residential and wholesale customers and is typgith# incumbent provider in its service areas.

As permitted by U.S. GAAP, we have utilized the mggtion criteria to combine our operating segméeisause all of our Front
properties share similar economic characteristicsthat they provide the same products and servioesimilar customers usi
comparable technologies in all of the states inclvhive operate. The regulatory structure is genersthilar. Differences in tt
regulatory regime of a particular state do not malflg impact the economic characteristics or ofiagaresults of a particular property.

(16) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudite«

(% in thousands, except per share amou

2012 First Quartel Second Quarte Third Quartel Fourth Quarte Total Year
Revenue $ 1,268,05 $ 1,258,777 $ 1,252,46! $ 1,232,55. $ 5,011,85:
Operating incom: 208,45¢ 267,78: 275,19¢ 235,73( 987,16¢
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroffier 26,76¢ 17,98¢ 67,00( 24,87¢ 136,63t
Basic net income per common share attribut

to common shareholders of Froni $ 0.0: % 0.0z % 007 $ 00z % 0.14
2011
Revenue $ 1,346,69 $ 1,322,25!  $ 1,290,93' $ 1,283,15. $ 5,243,04:
Operating incom: 250,59: 238,28( 180,29: 230,45 899,62:
Net income attributable to common shareholdersroffier 54,71 32,26: 20,39¢ 42,247 149,61«
Basic net income per common share attribut

to common shareholders of Front $ 0.08 $ 0.0z $ 0.0z $ 004 $ 0.1t

The quarterly net income per common share amouetscainded to the nearest cent. Annual net incpatecommon share may Vi
depending on the effect of such roundi

We recognized $35.1 million ($21.7 million or $0.p&r share after tax), $28.6 million ($18.1 million$0.02 per share after tax), $
million ($2.9 million or $0.00 per share after ta@nd $13.5 million ($9.1 million or $0.01 per shaafter tax) of acquisition a
integration costs during the first, second, thind fourth quarters of 2012, respectively.

We recognized $6.5 million ($4.0 million or $0.0@rpshare after tax), $1.5 million ($0.9 million $0.00 per share after tax), $
million ($4.5 million or $0.00 per share after taapnd $17.2 million ($11.5 million or $0.01 per ehafter tax) of severance costs du
the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 20#&spectively.

We recognized $13.2 million ($8.2 million or $0.pér share after tax), $20.3 million ($12.6 million$0.01 per share after tax), $67.4
million ($41.6 million or $0.04 per share after taand $42.2 million ($26.1 million or $0.03 pemash after tax) of acquisition and
integration costs during the first, second, thind fourth quarters of 2011, respectively.

We recognized $0.1 million ($0.1 million or $0.08rpshare after tax), $11.0 million ($6.8 million $0.01 per share after tax), $
million ($2.2 million or $0.00 per share after taghd $1.1 million ($0.7 million or $0.00 per shaféer tax) of severance costs du
the first, second, third and fourth quarters of RQ&spectively.

(17) Retirement Plans

We sponsor a noncontributory defined benefit penpian covering a significant number of our forraed current employees and ot
postretirement benefit plans that provide medidaintal, life insurance and other benefits for ceuderetired employees and tf
beneficiaries and covered dependents. The benafésbased on years of service and final average opayareer average p.
Contributions are made in amounts sufficient to mERISA funding requirements while considering teductibility. Plan assets
invested in a diversified portfolio of equity aridefd-income securities and alternative investments.

The accounting results for pension and other pireent benefit costs and obligations are dependgon various actuar
assumptions applied in the determination of sucbumts. These actuarial assumptions include theviatlg: discount rates, expec
longterm rate of return on plan assets, future comgmsencreases, employee turnover, healthcaretomst rates, expected retirernr
age, optional form of benefit and mortality. We ieav these assumptions for changes annually withilndependent actuaries.
consider our discount rate and expected long-tatmaf return on plan assets to be our most drgissumptions.
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The discount rate is used to value, on a presdoeuzasis, our pension and other postretiremengfitesbligations as of the balar
sheet date. The same rate is also used in thedhtenst component of the pension and postretirebeefit cost determination for
following year. The measurement date used in thecen of our discount rate is the balance shatt.dOur discount rate assumptio
determined annually with assistance from our indepat actuaries based on the pattern of expectedefbbenefit payments and
prevailing rates available on long-term, high guyatiorporate bonds that approximate the benefigabbn.

Since the completion of the Transaction on Julg10, we have focused on integrating the operatmusconverging the processe
the Acquired Business to effectively operate aslmrgness. During the past two years, we have ebwith Verizon and our third pa
actuaries to merge the plans, finalize the transfgrlan assets and ensure we have all the infesmaiecessary to make well inforn
decisions. Based on the underlying changes in despbics and cash flows, we amended the estimationniques regarding
actuarial assumptions, where appropriate, acrésd alir pension and postretirement plans. The miggtificant of such changes wa:
the estimation technique utilized to develop thecdunt rate for its pension and postretirement fitepkans. The revised estimati
technique is based upon a settlement model (Bonklldf such liabilities as of December 31, 2012 fhermits us to more closely ma
cash flows to the expected payments to participiiats would be possible with the previously useddycurve model. We believe suc
change results in an estimate of the discountthaiemore accurately reflects the settlement véduglan obligations than the differt
yield curve methodologies used in prior yearstgsdvides the ability to review the quality andelisification of the portfolio to sele
the bond issues that would settle the obligatioanroptimal manner. This rate can change from-tegear based on market conditi
that affect corporate bond yields.

In determining the discount rate as of December2B1,1 and 2010, we considered, among other thihgsyields on the Citigrot
Above Median Pension Curve, the Towers Watson Inttexgeneral movement of interest rates and thagds in those rates from «
period to the next.

As a result of the change described above, Froistietilizing a discount rate of 4.00% as of Decem®1, 2012 for its qualified pens
plan, compared to rates of 4.50% and 5.25% in 281id 2010, respectively. Had the previous estomatechnique been used,
discount rate would have been 3.75% in comparisotheé 4.00% discount rate, and the impact to tlgepted benefit obligation
December 31, 2012 would have been immaterial. dikeount rate for postretirement plans as of De@n3i, 2012 was a range
4.00% to 4.20% compared to a range of 4.50% to%4.iMb2011 and 5.25% in 2010.

The expected lonterm rate of return on plan assets is applied énditermination of periodic pension and postretinenienefit cost i
a reduction in the computation of the expense.ewvetbping the expected lorigrm rate of return assumption, we considered phél
surveys of expected market returns, 10 and 20 3&taal returns of various major indices, and oun dwstorical 5-year, 10-year and 20.
year investment returns. The expected ltatgn rate of return on plan assets is based orsset allocation assumption of 35% to 55¢
fixed income securities, 35% to 55% in equity séms and 5% to 15% in alternative investments.@léew our asset allocation at le
annually and make changes when considered appi@p@ur pension asset investment allocation datésare made by the Retiren
Investment & Administration Committee (RIAC), a camttee comprised of members of management, pursioaat delegation
authority by the Retirement Plan Committee of theaml of Directors. The RIAC is responsible for ggfmg its actions to tt
Retirement Plan Committee. Asset allocation denssitake into account expected market return astsomspof various asset classe:
well as expected pension benefit payment streantserMénalyzing anticipated benefit payments, managémonsiders both t
absolute amount of the payments as well as thegirof such payments. In 2012, 2011 and 2010, xpected longerm rate of retul
on plan assets was 7.75%, 8.00% and 8.00%, regplgctiFor 2013, we will assume a rate of returl8®0%. Our pension plan as:
are valued at fair value as of the measurement d&te measurement date used to determine pensbwothar postretirement ben:
measures for the pension plan and the postretirebsefit plan is December 31.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARI&

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Pension Benefits

The following tables set forth the pension ptaptojected benefit obligations and fair valueplah assets as of December 31, 201z

2011 and the components of total periodic penserefit cost for the years ended December 31, 220P1 and 2010:

($ in thousands)

Change in projected benefit obligation (PE
PBO at beginning of ye:

Service cos

Interest cos

Actuarial loss

Benefits paic

PBO at end of year

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \
Actual return on plan asse

Employer contributions, net of transfe
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet:
Current liabilities

Pension and other postretirement benefits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

( $.in thousands)

Components of total periodic pension benefit |
Service cos

Interest cost on projected benefit obligat
Expected return on plan ass

Amortization of prior service cost/(cred
Amortization of unrecognized loss

Net periodic pension benefit cc

Special termination charge

Total periodic pension benefit cost

2012 2011
$ 1,799,31. $ 1,644,65
43,68¢ 38,87¢
78,027 84,22¢
196,30 160,391
(172,60 (128,84))
$ 1,944,73° $ 1,799,31
$ 1,257,990 $ 1,290,27.
139,67¢ 19,88:
28,59¢ 76,67
(172,60 (128,84))
$ 1,253660 $ 1,257,99
$ (691,069 $  (541,32)
$ (60,38¢) $ -
$ (630,67) $  (541,32)
$ 697,87 $ 575,16.

Expected ir

2013 2012 2011 2010
43,68¢ $ 38,87¢ $ 21,16¢
78,027 84,22¢ 67,73t
(95,779 (100,559 (69,83)
$ 8 (199) (199) (199
40,28’ 29,89( 15,36« 27,39:
55,62¢ 37,71« 46,26°
- - 69
55,62¢ $ 37,71« $ 46,33¢

We capitalized $15.8 million, $10.2 million and $8nillion of pension and OPEB expense into the afsbur capital expenditur
during the years ended December 31, 2012, 201128h6, respectively, as the costs relate to ournemging and plant construct

activities.

Based on current assumptions and plan asset valgesstimate that our 2013 pension and OPEB expemiflebe approximately $1(

million to $110 million before amounts capitaliziedio the cost of capital expenditures.
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The plan’s weighted average asset allocations eember 31, 2012 and 2011 by asset category amdlaws:

2012 2011
Asset category
Equity securitie: 43% 45%
Debt securitie 40% 40%
Alternative investment 14% 14%
Cash and other 3% 1%
Total 10C% 10(%

The plan’s expected benefit payments over the b@xtears are as follows:

($ in thousands

Year Amount
2013 $ 113,42
2014 120,83t
2015 128,62
2016 134,92:
2017 138,75¢
2018 - 2022 729,84"
Total $ 1,366,41.

We made total net cash contributions to our penplan for 2012 of $28.6 million, consisting of reetsh payments of $18.3 million
the third quarter and $10.3 million in the fourthagter. These pension contributions reflect theitp@ impact of funding rate chang
contained in the Highway Investment Act of 2012 guidance from the IRS on August 16, 2012 relatedaluation rates, and
September 11, 2012 related to lump sum methoddogie

We made contributions to our pension plan of apipnately $76.7 million in 2011, consisting of casyments of $18.6 million and,
described below, the contribution of real propevith a fair value of $58.1 million.

On September 8, 2011, the Company contributedddarinistrative properties to its qualified defineehefit pension plan. None of
buildings were under state regulation that requirgtividual PUC approval. The pension plan obtdiiredependent appraisals of
properties and, based on these appraisals, thépeaulian recorded the contributions at their faafue of $58.1 million. The Compa
has entered into leases for the contributed prigseftr 15 years at a combined aggregate annuabfeé$.8 million. The properties ¢
managed on behalf of the pension plan by an indigrerfiduciary, and the terms of the leases wegotiated with the fiduciary on .
arm’s-length basis.

We made cash contributions of $13.1 million to Blan during 2010. We expect that we will makehcesntributions to the Plan
approximately $60 million in 2013.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plan #5393.8 million and $1,673.4 million at DecemBé&r 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Assumptions used in the computation of annual pensbsts and valuation of the year-end obligativese as follows:

Discount rate- used at year end to value obligat
Discount rate- used to compute annual ci
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass
Rate of increase in compensation le\

2012 2011 2010
4.00% 4.50% 5.25%
4.50% 5.25% 5.75%
7.75% 8.00% 8.00%
2.50% 2.50% 3.00%

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensieh©PEB'

The following tables set forth the OPEB plarbenefit obligations, fair values of plan assetd the postretirement benefit liabil
recognized on our consolidated balance sheets egritteer 31, 2012 and 2011 and the components qianitdic postretirement bene

costs for the years ended December 31, 2012, 26d 2@10.

($ in thousands)

Change in benefit obligatic

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Plan participants' contributiol
Actuarial loss

Benefits paic

Plan chang:

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \
Actual return on plan asse

Plan participants' contributiol

Employer contributior

Benefits paic

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Funded status

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancet:
Current liabilities

Pension and other postretirement benefits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

($ in thousands

Components of net periodic postretirement beneft
Service cos

Interest cost on projected benefit obligat

Expected return on plan ass

Amortization of prior service cost/(cred
Amortization of unrecognized loss

Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢
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2012 2011
$ 391,59 $ 353,13:
10,81 8,95¢
17,84. 17,72.
4,05¢ 4,38¢
30,95¢ 22,56¢
(15,979 (15,16%)
(743) -
$ 438,55( $ 391,59
$ 5101 $ 6,24(
46€ 21¢
4,05¢ 4,38¢
11,40: 9,421
(15,979 (15,169
$ 505t $ 5,101
$ (433,49) $ (386,49
$ (9,116 $ (9,117
$ (42437) $ (377,379
$ 74,26¢ $ 41,81:

Expected in

2013 2012 2011 2010
$ 10,81: $ 8,95¢ % 7,95¢
17,84. 17,72. 17,88:
172 (329 (436
$ (6,100 (10,06%) (10,199 (8,157%)
8,911 7,537 4,424 4,917
$ 2595, $ 20,58: $ 22,16:




Assumptions used in the computation of annual OB&#s and valuation of the year-end OPEB obligatiware as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate- used at year end to value obligat 4.00%- 4.20¥% 4.50%- 4.75% 5.25%
Discount rate- used to compute annual ci 4.50%- 4.75% 5.25% 5.75%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 4.00%- 3.00% 6.00%- 3.00% 6.00%

The OPEB plan’s expected benefit payments ovenéix¢ 10 years are as follows:

($ in thousands

Gross Medicare Part

Year Benefits Subsidy Total

2013 $ 14,01( $ 43C % 13,58(

2014 15,59: 53z 15,05¢

2015 17,44¢ 644 16,80«

2016 19,45% 76C 18,69°

2017 21,347 924 20,42:
2018 - 2022 131,41( 7,83¢ 123,57:

Total $ 219,26! $ 11,12¢  $ 208,13«

For purposes of measuring yeard benefit obligations, we used, depending on caédilan coverage for different retiree groups
8.0% annual rate of increase in the papita cost of covered medical benefits, graduddigreasing to 5% in the year 2019 and rema
at that level thereafter. The effect of a 1% inseean the assumed medical cost trend rates for fedigle year on the aggregate of
service and interest cost components of the tatatretirement benefit cost would be $1.3 milliord ghe effect on the accumula
postretirement benefit obligation for health betsefiould be $19.8 million. The effect of a 1% des® in the assumed medical
trend rates for each future year on the aggredateecservice and interest cost components ofdta postretirement benefit cost wo
be $(1.0) million and the effect on the accumulatestretirement benefit obligation for health bésefould be $(16.1) million.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drugrbmement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Acfcédme law. The A
introduced a prescription drug benefit under Megticdt includes a federal subsidy to sponsors tife health care benefit plans
provide a benefit that is at least actuarially gglént to the Medicare Part D benefit. The amotirthe federal subsidy is based on 2
of an individual beneficiarg annual eligible prescription drug costs rangiegneen $250 and $5,000. We have determined th
Companysponsored postretirement healthcare plans thatigggwescription drug benefits are actuarially gglént to the Medica
Prescription Drug benefit. The impact of the fetlstdsidy has been incorporated into the calcutatio

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensivetfzdshave not yet been recognized as componemstgberiodic benefit cost
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

($ in thousands) Pension Plal OPEB
2012 2011 2012 2011
Net actuarial los $ 697,51: $ 574,99t $ 105,97( $ 82,84:
Prior service cost/(credit) 362 16E (31,706 (41,03()
Total $ 697,87: $ 575,16 $ 74,26 $ 41,81
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The amounts recognized as a component of accurdutat@prehensive loss for the years ended Decenihe2®.2 and 2011 are

follows:
Pension Plal OPEB

($ in thousands) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Accumulated other comprehensive los

beginning of year $ 575,16. $ 349,26: $ 4181, $ 13,36¢
Net actuarial gain (loss) recognized during (29,890 (15,369 (7,537 (4,429
Prior service (cost)/credit recognized during 19¢ 19¢ 10,06¢ 10,19¢
Net actuarial loss (gain) occurring during y 152,40: 241,06: 30,66¢ 22,66¢
Prior service cost (credit) occurring during year - - (743) -
Net amount recognized in comprehensive inci

for the year 122,71: 225,89¢ 32,45! 28,44
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of year $ 697,87: $ 575,16 $ 74,26¢ $ 41,81.

401(k) Savings Plans

We sponsor employee retirement savings plans wat#ion 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The@pkover substantially all full-
time employees. Under certain plans, we providechiag contributions. Employer contributions were8&2million, $22.2 million an
$14.9 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectiv@lyge amounts for 2011 and 2010 include employatritmutions of $15.9 million ar
$10.6 million, respectively, for certain former eloyees of the Acquired Business under three sepatans.

(18) FEair Value of Financial Instrument

Fair value is defined under U.S. GAAP as the eritgassociated with the sale of an asset or taraff a liability in an orderl
transaction between market participants at the ureasent date. Valuation techniques used to medainrealue under U.S. GAAP mt
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirttizeuse of unobservable inputs. In addition, U.BAB establishes a thrder fair
value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs ugedeasuring fair value.

The three input levels in the hierarchy of fairummeasurements are defined by the FASB geneafiyllaws:

Input Level Description of Input

Level 1 Observable inpsiish as quoted prices in active markets for idahéissets.

Level 2 Inputs other thlgroted prices in active markets that are eithexatliy or indirectly observable.
Level 3 Unobservable irpint which little or no market data exists.
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following tables represent the Compangension plan assets measured at fair value enuaring basis as of December 31, 2

and 2011:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 20!

($ in thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalel

U.S. Government Obligatior

Corporate and Other Obligatio

Common Stocl

Commingled Fund

Interest in Registered Investment Compal
Interest in Limited Partnershij

Insurance Contrac

Other

Total Investments, at Fair Vali

Interest and Dividends Receival

Due from Broker for Securities Sa
Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont

Due to Broker for Securities Purchas
Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val

($ in thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalel

U.S. Government Obligatior

Corporate and Other Obligatio

Common Stocl

Commingled Fund

Common/Collective Trust Func

Interest in Registered Investment Compal
Interest in Limited Partnershij

Insurance Contrac

Other

Total Investments, at Fair Vali

Receivable for Plan Assets of Acquired Busir
Receivable for Earnings on Plan Assets of AcquBasdiness
Interest and Dividends Receival

Due from Broker for Securities Sa

Receivable Associated with Insurance Cont

Due to Broker for Securities Purchas
Total Plan Assets, at Fair Val

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
42,39 % - $ 42,39 $ -
14,16¢ - 14,16¢ -
246,02 - 246,02 -
133,63: 133,63: - -
345,53 - 305,71¢ 39,81«
366,33t 99,16! 267,17! -
101,67¢ - - 101,67¢
79¢ - 79¢ -
96 - 96 -
$ 1,250,65. $ 232,79 ¢ 876,36¢ ¢ 141,49:
3,252
3,78¢
7,61(C
(11,637
$_1,253,66!
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 201
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
34,087 $ - 3 34,080 $ -
120,80: - 120,80: -
323,07! - 323,07 -
251,77¢ 251,77t - -
99,06! - 61,86¢ 37,19«
8,60¢ - 8,60¢ -
253,75 83,66 170,08! -
104,03 - - 104,03
80t - 80t -
141 - 141 -
$ 1,196,141 335,44 ¢ 719,470 ¢ 141,22
51,63¢
8,86¢
2,83t
30,08¢
7,727
(39,300
$_1,257,99
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FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIE
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
The table below sets forth a summary of changekearfair value of the Plag’Level 3 assets for the years ended December03iz

and 2011:

($ in thousands)
Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gains/(losse
Unrealized gain

Sales
Balance, end of ye:

($ in thousands)
Balance, beginning of ye
Realized gains/(losse
Unrealized gains/(losse
Contributed asse
Purchase

Sales

Balance, end of ye:

2012
Interest in
Limited Commingled
Partnership: Funds

¢ 104,033 $ 37,194

5,587 -

454 2,620

(8,396) -

$ 101,678 ¢ 39,814

2011
Interest in
Limited Commingled
Partnership: Funds

$ 42,631 % 37,37¢
37¢ 12
317 (196
58,10( -
10,10: 37,39(
(7,498 (37,390
¢ 104,03 ¢ 37,19«

The following table provides further informatiorgegding the redemption of the Plan’s Level 3 inmesits as of December 31, 2012:

($ in thousands)

Commingled Fund

JPM Multi-Strat 1l C-A Ser 11-0®

Interest in Limited Partnershij

Morgan Stanley Institutional Caym

Fund LP (®)

MS IFHF SVP LP Cayma®)
MS IFHF SVP LP Alphe®
RIl World Timberfund, LLC©)
100 Comm Drive, LLC@)

100 CTE Drive, LLC@)

6430 Oakbrook Parkway LL ()

8001 West Jefferson, LL()

Total Interest in Limited Partnershi

Fair Redemption Redemption Liquidatior
Value Frequency Notice Perioc Period
$ 39,81« Quarterly 65 Days NA
33,53¢ Quarterly 60 Days NA
Through liquidation of underlying
4,64¢ investments None 2 years
Through liquidation of underlying
2,520 investmentt None 2 years
Through liquidation of underlying
5,56¢ investmentt None 10 years
Through liquidation of underlying
6,78 investments None NA
5,40¢ Through liquidation of underlying
investmentt None NA
20,10¢ Through liquidation of underlying
investmentt None NA
23,10¢ Through liquidation of underlying
investments None NA
$ 101,67¢
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(a) The fund’s investment objective is to genelategterm capital appreciation with relatively low val@y and a low correlation wit
traditional equity and fixedhicome markets. The fund seeks to accomplishathjisctive by allocating its assets primarily amengelect grot
of experienced portfolio managers that invest wadety of markets, either through the medium ofestment funds or through discretior
managed accounts.

(b) The partnershipshvestment objective is to seek capital appreampadncipally through investing in investment funes&naged by thi
party investment managers who employ a varietyitefraative investment strategies.

(c) The partnership’s objective is to realize sabsal longterm capital appreciation by investing in timbedgmoperties primarily in Sou
America, New Zealand and Australia.

(d) The partnerships invest in commercial readtesproperties that are leased to the Company.|leBses are triple net, whereby the Com|
is responsible for all expenses, including butlimited to, insurance, repairs and maintenancepaytnent of property taxes.

There have been no reclassifications of investmesitseen Level 1, 2 or 3 assets during the yeatedeBecember 31, 2012 or 2011.

The fair value of our OPEB plan assets, which #mneasured using Level 1 inputs, was $5.1 miléksnof December 31, 2012 and 2(
respectively.

The following table summarizes the carrying amowartd estimated fair values for lotgrm debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011
the other financial instruments, representing cashpunts receivables, lomgrm debt due within one year, accounts payablecdinel
accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approxaniair value due to the relatively short matustef those instruments. Other eq
method investments, for which market values are@adily available, are carried at cost, which agjnates fair value.

($ in thousands) 2012 2011

Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt $ 8,381,947 $ 9,091,41¢ $ 8,224,392 $ 7,958,87:

The fair value of our lor-term debt is estimated based upon quoted markegait the reporting date for those financial imagnts.

(19) Commitments and Contingenci:

We anticipate total capital expenditures for busieperations of approximately $625 million to $6w#lion for 2013. Although w
from time to time make shotérm purchasing commitments to vendors with resfetttese expenditures, we generally do not ente
firm, written contracts for such activities.

In connection with the Transaction, the Federal @omications Commission (FCC) and certain state leégty commissions,
connection with granting their approvals of the ngaction, specified certain capital expenditure apdrating requirements for 1
Acquired Territories for specified periods of tinp@stclosing. These requirements focus primarily ontager capital investme
commitments to expand broadband availability tdeast 85% of the households throughout the Acquirerditories with minimur
download speeds of 3 megabits per second (Mbp#)ebgnd of 2013 and 4 Mbps by the end of 20150fA3ecember 31, 2012, we t
expanded broadband availability in excess of 1 Mb6% of the households throughout the Acquiredifories, in excess of 3 Mb
to 84% of the households throughout the Acquireditbeies, and in excess of 4 Mbps to 78% of thadeholds throughout the Acqui
Territories.

To satisfy all or part of certain capital investrheammitments to three state regulatory commissiagsplaced an aggregate amour
$115.0 million in cash into escrow accounts andioletd a letter of credit for $190.0 million in 2018nother $72.4 million of cash in
escrow account (with a cash balance of $23.9 miléind an associated liability of $0.2 million asDeEcember 31, 2012 that is reflec
in Other liabilities) was acquired in connectiorttwihe Transaction to be used for service quatityatives in the state of West Virgini
As of December 31, 2012, $145.0 million had bedeased from escrow and the Company had a restrieteld balance in these esc
accounts in the aggregate amount of $42.7 millinduding interest earned. As of December 31, 2@k& letter of credit had be
reduced to $40.0 million. The aggregate amourihe$e escrow accounts and the letter of creditasifitinue to decrease over time
Frontier makes the required capital expenditurdghérrespective states.
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We are party to various legal proceedings (inclgdimdividual, class and putative class actions3iag in the normal course of (
business covering a wide range of matters and tgpetims including, but not limited to, generaintracts, billing disputes, rights
access, taxes and surcharges, consumer prote¢tamdemark and patent infringement, employment, leggry, tort, claims c
competitors and disputes with other carriers.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we accrue an expémrspending litigation when we determine that afeanrable outcome is proba
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably dstimdegal defense costs are expensed as incurede of our existing accruals
pending matters is material. We constantly mondtor pending litigation for the purpose of adjugtiour accruals and revising
disclosures accordingly, in accordance with U.S ABAwhen required. Litigation is, however, subjeruncertainty, and the outco
of any particular matter is not predictable. Wd wigorously defend our interests for pendinggétion, and as of this date, we beli
that the ultimate resolution of all such matteftgraconsidering insurance coverage or other indéesrto which we are entitled, will r
have a material adverse effect on our consolidft@ticial position, results of operations, or oasle flows.

We conduct certain of our operations in leased mesnand also lease certain equipment and othetsgssrsuant to operating lea:
The lease arrangements have terms ranging from9b tgears and several contain rent escalation etapsoviding for increases
monthly rent at specific intervals. When rent eatiah clauses exist, we record annual rental expéased on the total expected
payments on a straiglite basis over the lease term. Certain leasestese renewal options. Renewal options that arsoresbl
assured are included in determining the lease tEBature minimum rental commitments for all lotegm noncancelable operating le:
as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(% in thousands Operating

Leases

Year ending December

2013 $ 95,32¢
2014 20,09¢
2015 10,31¢
2016 8,157
2017 6,52¢
Thereafter 41,75
Total minimueake payments $ 182,17:

The Company has entered into an agreement to upgrathnificant portion of its existing vehicledte As of December 31, 2012,

Company has accepted delivery of 2,150 new vehigtes expects to accept delivery of 1,614 additiovel vehicles by March &
2013. The new vehicles expected to be leased uhideprogram will represent approximately 50% of wehicle fleet. The minimu
lease commitment for each vehicle is 1 year andethges are renewable at the Compsimgtion. The total annual lease expense f
of the new vehicles is expected to be approxima80.0 million on an annualized basis upon the ptecee of the remaining vehicles.

Total rental expense included in our consolidatatements of operations for the years ended Decedihe2012, 2011 and 2010 v
$79.3 million, $70.2 million and $48.5 million, yexctively.

In our normal course of business we have obligatiomder certain nonancelable arrangements for services. Duringttind tuarter c

2012, we entered into a take or pay arrangementh®rpurchase of future long distance and careeviees. Our total remainin
commitments under the arrangement are as follows:
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($ in thousands

Year Amount

2013 $ 132,00(
2014 141,80(
2015 140,80(
Total $ 414,60(

As of December 31, 2012, we expect to utilize tvises included within the arrangement and nalitglfor the take or pay provisic
has been recorded.

We are a party to contracts with several unreldted distance carriers. The contracts provide feesed on traffic they carry for
subject to minimum monthly fees.

At December 31, 2012, the estimated future paymémtobligations under our noncancelable long diséacontracts and serv
agreements are as follows:

($ in thousands

Year Amount
2013 $ 48,33¢
2014 21,357
2015 15,44:
2016 4,59¢
2017 427"
Thereafter 1,20(
Total $ 95,20¢

We sold all of our utility businesses as of April2D04. However, we have retained a potential matrobligation associated with «
previous electric utility activities in the Staté \dermont. The Vermont Joint Owners (VJO), a catism of 14 Vermont utilities
including us, entered into a purchase power agraemigh Hydro-Quebec in 1987. The agreement costéstep-up”provisions the
state that if any VJO member defaults on its pusehabligation under the contract to purchase pdren Hydro-Quebec, then the ott
VJO participants will assume responsibility for thefaulting party’s share on a pro-rata basis. @awata share of the purchase pao
obligation is 10%. If any member of the VJO defawin its obligations under the Hyd@uebec agreement, then the remaining mer
of the VJO, including us, may be required to paydosubstantially larger share of the Vd@otal purchase power obligation for
remainder of the agreement (which runs through P016S. GAAP rules require that we discloghe’ maximum potential amount
future payments (undiscounted) the guarantor cbaldequired to make under the guarantdé.5. GAAP rules also state that we n
make such disclosure “... even if the likelihood loé tguarantor's having to make any payments undegtlarantee is remote.. As
noted above, our obligation only arises as a redudefault by another VJO member, such as upofkrogitcy. Therefore, to satisfy t
“maximum potential amounttiisclosure requirement we must assume that all mesntif the VJO simultaneously default, an unli
scenario given that all VJO members are regulatiity yproviders with regulated cost recovery. dpée the remote chance that suc
event could occur, or that the State of Vermontict@n would allow such an event, assuming thathel members of the VJO defaul
on January 1, 2013 and remained in default fodtration of the contract (another 3 years), warest#é that our undiscounted purct
obligation for 2013 through 2015 would be approxeha$431.1 million. In such a scenario, the Compevould then own the pow
and could seek to recover its costs. We wouldhitoliy seeking to recover our costs from the défagiimembers and/or reselling
power to other utility providers or the northeastver grid. There is an active market for the sdlpower. We could potentially lo
money if we were unable to sell the power at cd%e caution that we cannot predict with any degfeeertainty any potential outcome.
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At December 31, 2012, we have outstanding perfooméetters of credit as follows:

($ in thousands

Public Service Commission of West Virgir $ 40,00(
CNA 45,65¢
All other 1,18¢

Total $ 86,84!

CNA serves as our agent with respect to genetailitiaclaims (auto, workers compensation and ofinsured perils of the Compan
As our agent, they administer all claims and malgnments for claims on our behalf. We reimburse CMAsuch services up
presentation of their invoice. To serve as our agad make payments on our behalf, CNA requires\igaestablish a letter of credil
their favor. CNA could potentially draw againststhetter of credit if we failed to reimburse CNA accordance with the terms of
agreement. The amount of the letter of creditserged annually and adjusted based on claims lyistor

None of the above letters of credit restrict owstchalances.

(20) Subsequent Even:

On January 15, 2013, the Company retired the $58@libn of its 6.25% Senior Notes that maturedsuth date. The repayment \
made with cash available on hand.
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Communications

Exhibit 10.2:
December 18, 2012

Mr. John M. Jureller
150 Brite Avenue
Scarsdale, NY 10583

Dear John,

On behalf of the senior leadership team, it is feagure to confirm our offer of employment for thasition of Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer (you will join as Chief Famcial Officer “Elect” until February 26, 2013 whBon Shassian steps down as Chief
Financial Officer for Frontier Communications). &tork location for this position will be StamfodT and you will be reporting to Maggie
Wilderotter, Chairman and Chief Executive Offic&four start date will be Monday, January 7, 2013.

Your executive compensation program inclufteg principle components:

1) Annual base salaryof $500,00((less applicable taxes) paid on a s-monthly basis

2) Cash bonusunder the Frontier Bonus Plan (“FBP”) with an arirtaeget incentive 000% of your annual base salary $500,000,
which will be paid out based on company and pelgoediormance

3) Restricted stock awards, which are generally granted in the first quadteach year. Restricted shares vest in four egoala
installments (25% per year), commencing one yeamfthe date of grant, with ompsarter of the restricted shares vesting
becoming unrestricted upon each annual anniverdaty. The annual target for your position is aottye$1,312,500. You will
receive dividends, to the extent dividends are ated by the Board of Directors, on all shares, tmievested or unvested. 1
companys current annual dividend policy (which is subjectthange at the discretion of the Board of Diresjtas $0.40 per sha
declared quarterly in an amount of $0.10 per sharguarter

4) Performance Sharesunder the Frontier Long Term Incentive Plan (LTWth an annual performance share target valuemethird
of your annual target for restricted stock award$437,500. The LTIP target is an annual grant that will fedd out based «
company performance over a three year period dlhiti20132015). The performance metrics (which are suligechange for futul
grants) are currently Operating Cash Flow and T8tareholder Return. You will earn performancerehat the end of each th
year period based on the comp’s performance over the thrgear measurement period on the metrics for thatcdiwRividends the
would have been payable on any earned shares duthmge year period will be paid at the end oftkinee year perioc




You will be eligible for a cash bonus and restidcttock award for 2013 with awards paid in thet fipgarter of 2014. You will be eligible for
an award under the LTIP commencing with the 201B528erformance period. Frontier reserves the tglithplement or discontinue
executive compensation plans at its own discretigligibility for any given plan does not guaranteeard values since Frontier's Executive
Compensation Program is based on performance afotimpany and the executive. Further, awards djestto the terms and conditions of
Frontier's compensation plans.

As a sign-on bonus, you will be grant&s0,000 restricted sharegsubject to the approval of the Compensation Cotesiitas part of your ne
hire compensation. These shares will vest in &mual annual installments (25% per year), commenairte year from your start date.

If, within one year following & Change in Control’ (as defined below) of the Company, you have a “8#jmn from Service” (as defined
below) either because (a) your employment is teaeith by the Company without “Cause” (as definedwibr (b) you terminate your
employment as a result of (i) a material decreas®ur base salary, target bonus or long term iveeompensation target from those in el
immediately prior to the Change in Control for aegson other than Cause; (ii) a material relocatfoyour principal office location (for this
purpose, a relocation more than 50 miles from tbmgany’s Stamford, Connecticut headquarters withbmatically deemed material) or
(iif) a material decrease in your responsibilitiesauthority for any reason other than Cause (aiwd fo your terminating your employment y
provide the Company with notice of the decreaselocation within 90 days of the occurrence of soohdition, the Company does not
remedy the condition within 30 days of such notarad you Separate from Service within two yearthefinitial occurrence of one or more
such conditions), you shall be entitled to a lumm$ayment equal to two yeatsise salary and bonus target (based on the theentievel o
salary and bonus target or, if greater, that inaffimmediately prior to the Change in Control) rastrictions on restricted shares held by you
shall immediately lapse and such restricted stetral become fully-vested and néarfeitable and all performance shares grantedtoynde!
the LTIP or other performance incentive plan punsta a performance -based vesting schedule shalkeidiately be earned by you and non-
forfeitable, with the number of shares earned etjutlie target level of shares granted. The luomp payment will be made on the Expiration
Date, as defined below.

A “Change in Control” shall be deemed to have oczlir

(A) When any “person” as defined in Section 3(pj{Pthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ameéifthe “Exchange Act”), and as used in
Section 13(d) and 14(d) thereof, including a “groag defined in Section 13(d) of the Exchange Actt @xcluding the Company and any
subsidiary and any employee benefit plan sponsoredaintained by the Company or any subsidiaryiiiag any trustee of such plan acting
as trustee)), directly or indirectly, becomes therfeficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 undhe Exchange Act), of securities of the
Company representing 50% or more of the combingidg@ower of the Company’s then outstanding séestior

(B) Upon the consummation of any merger or othusiriess combination involving the Company, a shkubstantially all of the Company's
assets, liquidation or dissolution of the Companyg ocombination of the foregoing transactions (fh@nsactions”) other than a Transaction
immediately following which the shareholders of empany immediately prior to the Transaction oimrthe same proportion, at least 51%
of the voting power, directly or indirectly, of tfie surviving corporation in any such merger tieotbusiness combination; (ii) the purchase
or successor to the Company’s assets; (iii) battstirviving corporation and the purchaser in theneef any combination of Transactions; or
(iv) the parent company owning 100% of such sungviorporation, purchaser or both the survivingpoeation and the purchaser, as the case
may be.




“Cause” shall mean your (a) willful and continueddre (other than as a result of physical or miahiteess or injury) to perform your material
duties in effect immediately prior to the Chang&€iontrol which continues beyond 10 days after datemidemand for substantial performance
is delivered to you by the Company, which demaradl sthentify and describe each failure with sufict specificity to allow you to respond,
(b) willful or intentional conduct that causes mi@kand demonstrable injury, monetary or otherwisghe Company or (c) conviction of, or a
plea of nolo contendere to, a crime constituting (ielony under the laws of the United Statesnyr &tate thereof, or (ii) a misdemeanor
involving moral turpitude. For these purposesanbor failure to act on your part shall be consgde'willful” or “intentional” unless it is doni
or omitted to be done by you in bad faith and with@asonable belief that your action or inactiaswn the best interests of the

Company. Any act or failure to act based upon@uitthgiven pursuant to a resolution duly adoptgdhe Board of Directors or based upon
the advice of counsel for the Company shall be lkesneely presumed to be done, or omitted to be dbye/ou in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company.

If it is determined (as hereafter provided) that ppyment or distribution by the Company to oryour benefit, whether paid or payable or
distributed or distributable pursuant to the teohthis letter agreement or otherwise pursuant toyareason of any other agreement, policy,
plan, program or arrangement, including withoutitéition any stock option, restricted stock awatdck appreciation right or similar right, or
the lapse or termination of any restriction onha Yesting or exercisability of any of the foregp{ia “Severance Payment”), would be subject
to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of théeGor any successor provision thereto) by reagteiog “contingent on a change in
ownership or control” of the Company, within theanag of Section 280G of the Code (or any succgzsauision thereto) or to any similar
tax imposed by state or local law, or any intecegienalties with respect to such excise tax ($axlor taxes, together with any such interest
and penalties, are hereafter collectively refeteeds the “Excise Tax"then the Severance Payment shall be payable ¢ithierfull or (i) as tc
such lesser amount which would result in no portibthe Severance Payment being subject to thesExXicax (“Capped Payment”), whichever
of the foregoing amounts, taking into account thgligable federal, state and local income taxesthadExcise Tax, results in your receipt on
an after-tax basis, of the greatest amount of enimbenefits to you, notwithstanding that all oms&portion of such benefits may be taxable
under Section 4999 of the Code.

Subject to the provisions of immediately precediagagraph, all determinations required to be manleuyant to this letter agreement, incluc
whether an Excise Tax is payable by you and theuatnaf such Excise Tax, shall be made by the nalipmecognized firm of certified public
accountants (the “Accounting Firm”) used by the @amy prior to the Change in Control (or, if suchcéanting Firm declines to serve, the
Accounting Firm shall be a nationally recognizedhfiof certified public accountants selected by yotiie Accounting Firm shall be directed
by the Company or you, as applicable, to submprigdiminary determination and detailed supportatgulations to both the Company and
within 15 calendar days after the date of your teation of employment, if applicable, and any othech time or times as may be requeste
the Company or you. If the Accounting Firm detares that any Excise Tax is payable by you, the Gomghall either (x) make payment of
the Severance Payment, or (y) reduce the SeveRmgaent by the amount which, based on the Accogifitirm’s determination and
calculations, would provide you with the CappedrRagt (except that any portion of the Severance Raythat constitutes deferred
compensation that is subject to Section 409A st@lbe reduced, and its time and form of paymeall slot be altered as a result of this
process), and pay to you such reduced amountcimasse, less any Excise Taxes, federal, statdpaakincome and employment withholdi
taxes and any other amounts required to be dedocteithheld by the Company under applicable statwtregulation. If the Accounting Firm
determines that no Excise Tax is payable by yoghall, at the same time as it makes such detetimmdurnish you with an opinion that you
have substantial authority not to report any Ex@iae on your federal, state, local income or otagrreturn. All fees and expenses of the
Accounting Firm and opinion letter shall be paidtbg Company in connection with the calculatiortuieed by this letter.




The provisions in this letter regarding lapsingestrictions on restricted stock and the earningesformance shares in certain circumstanc
the event of a Change in Control will remain ineeffas long as you are a member of the Senior kslasigeTeam (“SLT"). If at any time you
are no longer a member of the SLT, such provisiwitisiot apply.

You shall not receive any payments or benefitsh@ivyou may be entitled hereunder unless you agregecute a release of all then existing
claims against the Company, its subsidiaries,iafffis, shareholders, directors, officers, employegksagents in relation to claims relating to or
arising out of your employment or the busineshef@ompany; provided, however, that any such relshall not bar or prevent you from
responding to any litigation or other proceedingated by a released party and asserting any atainounterclaim you have in such litigation
or other proceeding as if no such release had gien as to such party, nor shall it bar you frdaining rights that arise under, or that are
preserved by, this letter agreement. To complh Wits paragraph, you must sign and return theaselevithin 45 days of the termination of
your employment, and you must not revoke it duarggve-day revocation period that begins when the releasigned and returned to the
Company. Then following the expiration of this oeation period, there shall occur the “Expiratioat®” which is the 53rd day following the
date of termination of your employment.

To the extent that a payment of Section 409A corsgiéon under this letter agreement is based upanhaving a termination of employment,
“termination of employment” shall have the same niggas “Separation from Service” under Sectiond@32)(A)(i) of the Code. In
addition, to avoid having such a separation fromise occur after your termination of employmerduyshall not have (after your termination
of employment) any duties or responsibilities ta inconsistent with the termination of employmieging treated as such a separation from
service as of the date of such termination.

Please be advised that your health and welfarefitemnéll begin on your 90th day of employment aamsla Frontier employee, you will be
eligible to participate in a full range of benefitlease bring all of the original paperwork wjithu on your first day of work.

This offer and subsequent employment is contingpoh Frontier’s receipt of acceptable results bédekground check and reference checks
including, criminal record check, drug screenimy &erification of education, employment and prefesal references. Certain positions will
also require a motor vehicle or credit check. dklig screens must be completed within 48 hoursea#iving this package. The drug test will
be registered by Frontier.

Federal law requires that you provide documentgtle®) confirming your eligibility to work in the klted States. A list of documents that you
may use to establish your identity and employmégibdity can be found in your New Hire Kit. Plea bring the appropriate documents with
you when you report to work on your first di

Assuming the contingencies noted above are meyamdommence employment with Frontier, as a coonlitif accepting this offer of
employment with Frontier you agree that should gave employment with Frontier at any time in thiufe for any reason, you will not
solicit, either directly or indirectly, any Frontiemployee for employment with any other employerd period of one (1) year after you leave
employment with Frontier.

This offer is not an express or implied contracomise or guarantee of employment, of any particptssition, or of any particular term or
condition of employment. Your employment by Freniis at will and is subject to the conditionsfeeth in Frontiers Code of Conduct as w
as all other Frontier policies and applicable FafjState and local laws.




On behalf of Frontier, | welcome you to our teaRiease do not hesitate to contact me with any mumsstegarding this offer. To acknowlec
your acceptance of this offer, please sign theobottf this offer letter and email a scanned copsklia me directly or fax it to me at 2-614-
4661. Please return the original signed offeetettith your original new hire paperwork as soorc@asvenient.

Sincerely,

/sl Cecilia K. McKenney

Cecilia K. McKenney

EVP, Human Resources and Sales Operations

Frontier Communications Corporation

Acceptance of Offer

By signing below, | hereby accept the Fronserbntingent offer of employment. | understand thaill not have a contract of employment w
Frontier for a specified period of time. | furthesgree to abide by policies and procedures estaoliby Frontier.

/s/ John M. Jureller 18 DecemB6éi 2
John M. Jureller Date




Exhibit 10.2°
Separation Agreement
December 17, 2012

Donald R. Shassian (“Mr. Shassian”) is the Exeautfice President and Chief Financial Officer of fifer Communications Corporation
(“Frontier”). Mr. Shassian has decided to end nipkyyment at Frontier. It is in the interest of Rtier that Mr. Shassian remain employed
through March 31, 2013, to supervise the preparaia filing of Frontier's 2012 financial reports.

Frontier and Mr. Shassian agree as follows:

Mr. Shassian agrees to remain as Executive VicsidRnat and Chief Financial Officer of Frontier iliReébruary 27, 2013 to oversee the
preparation, execution and filing of the comparB04.2 financial statements with the United StatesuB&es and Exchange
Commission. Thereafter Mr. Shassian will be aldddo help the new Chief Financial Officer traiwitthrough March 31, 2013.

Frontier intends to hire a new Executive Vice Ritest and CFO “Elect” who will join Frontier in tmear future and who will replace Mr.
Shassian as Chief Financial Officer on February?®23 coincident with the filing of the company®12 financial statements. Frontier agree:
that when the new Executive Vice President and GHEct” is hired, this person will assume many of. ldhassian’s responsibilities, other
than overseeing the preparation and filing of Hesigt 2012 financial statements.

Frontier agrees that while he remains employedrptier through March 31, 2013, Mr. Shassian wilhtinue to receive the normal periodic
payments of his current annual salary of five heddsixty thousand dollars ($560,000), along withdmployment benefits. Frontier agrees
that Mr. Shassian will receive his 2012 bonus H#b@ percent individual payout level, at the comppesformance level payout as declared by
the Frontier Board of Directors.

Frontier agrees that the following awards to Mra&tan of Frontier restricted stock will vest dsestuled in February 2013:

« 27,367 shares with an award date of February 6,200
« 26,683 shares with an award date of February 18),20
« 40,340 shares with an award date of February 1] ,28nhd
e 72,242 shares with an award date of February 18.20

Frontier agrees that upon successful completidrisofluties on March 31, 2013, the 21,603 sharesstficted Frontier stock awarded to Mr.
Shassian with an award date of July 29, 2010 tleaseheduled to vest in July 2013 will vest on Nta28, 2013.




Frontier agrees that upon successful completidrisofluties on March 31, 2013, Mr. Shassian’s Fodadgrant of 100 shares of restricted
stock will vest on March 29, 2013.

Frontier agrees that upon successful completidvirofShassian’s duties by March 31, 2013, it wilygam on April 15, 2013, the cash value of
39,542 shares of Frontier stock valued at the aeecofithe high and low price of Frontier stock oartgh 29, 2013. This payment is the cash
equivalent of accelerated vesting to March 29, 26fl@ne third of the 118,624 shares in Frontieldsg-Term Incentive Plan awarded to Mr.
Shassian with an award date of February 15, 2012.

Frontier agrees that upon successful completidrisofluties on March 31, 2013, it will pay to Mr.&&sian on April 15, 2013 one fourth of his
bonus target for 2013 at a 100% company and indaligayout level, which equals $140,000.

Mr. Shassian will not be eligible for any new awsaad restricted stock or stock under Frontier's g drerm Incentive Plan that may be awar
before March 31, 2013.

Mr. Shassian agrees that the acceleration of cestristock awards to March 31, 2013 and the paysresfiteduled for April 15, 2013 are
contingent upon his execution of Frontier's custoseverance agreements, including their non-dégganent, confidentiality, and release of
claims provisions.

Mr. Shassian will have flexibility for time off i1 2013 and will coordinate that in advance withh @EO.

All other agreements and employment terms and tiondibetween Frontier and Mr. Shassian will noabended by this agreement and shal
remain in full force and effect.

So agreed on this 18th day of December, 2012:

Donald R. Shassian:

/s/ Donald R. Shassian
Donald R. Shassian
Executive Vice President & CFO

Frontier Communications Corporation:

/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter
Mary Agnes Wilderotter
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board




Exhibit 10.32
FORM OF LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN STOCK AGREEMENT
This Agreement is made as of t€'Dh Award”) between Frontier Communications Corporation, a WDate

corporation (the “Company”) and Mary Agnes Wildeéeot(the “Grantee”).In consideration of the agreements set forth betbe,Compan
and the Grantee agree as follows:

1. Grant A performance share award (“Award”) with a targé shares (“Target LTIP Shares”) of the Company’
common stock (“Common Stock”) and a maximum of namiif shares equal to 162.5% times the Target ISH&res (LTIP
Shares”)of Common Stock is hereby granted by the CompartheéoGrantee subject to: (i) the terms and conuftiof tha
certain Amended and Restated Employment Agreendatéd March 31, 2010, between the Grantee and dingp@ny (th
“Employment Agreement”);ii) the following terms and conditions; and (ii)etlprovisions of the Frontier Communicati
Corporation 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plaritie terms of which are incorporated by referenceihe In the event
a conflict between the Employment Agreement andtéines and conditions stated herein, the terms fiaesirable to th
Grantee shall contra

2. Transfer Restrictions None of the LTIP Shares shall be sold, assigpétjged or otherwise transferred, voluntaril
involuntarily, by the Grantee until such time as tiTIP Shares have been earr

3. Performance Criteria Except as otherwise provided in the Employmegteg&ment, the number of LTIP Shares acti
earned (the “Earned LTIP Sharesi)ll range from 0% to 162.5% of the Target LTIP 8w as determined by -
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directofse (tCompensation Committee”) after the end of theedyeal
measurement period ending December 31, 20__ (tleasSMrement Period”) based on the Compmapgrformance against
annual operating cash flow goals, and (ii) a threar relative total return to stockholders perfanoegoal, as reviewed ¢
approved by the Compensation Committee within 4 ddter the end of the Measurement Period. NdPLShares will k
earned if performance is below minimum levels. Télative total return to stockholders performaleels are set forth in
separate document and will be communicated to th@t€e. The operating cash flow goals will beldisthed during the fir.
90 days of each year in the Measurement PerioidoZbmpensation Committee and communicated to thet& annually

4. Forfeiture Subject to the terms of the Employment Agreemamy LTIP Shares not earned as determined in@e8tabov
shall be immediately forfeited. In addition, th&lP Shares shall be subject to forfeiture to thenfany upon the Grantee’
termination of employment with the Company priorthe date the restrictions lapse as provided ini@e8 above or in tt
event the Company notifies Grantee in writing tBatmpany has determined that Grantee has breachddrths of Section
below.




Misconduct The LTIP Shares shall be forfeited to the Comypidthe Compensation Committee of the Compargbard a
Directors (the “Committee”) determines that the iGea has engaged in “Misconduess defined below. The Committee r
in its sole discretion require the Grantee to retait Earned LTIP Shares that were earned withinttlelve month peric
immediately preceding a date on which the Grantemged in such Misconduct, as determined by theritige, or if n
longer held by the Grantee, to pay to the Companyyamd all gains realized from such Earned LTIPr&haFor purposes
this Section 5, gains realized shall mean the greait (i) the number of net shares retained bydalivered to, the Grant
upon earning the Earned LTIP Shares multipbgdhe closing price of Common Stock on the date siehies were earned
(ii) the amount realized by Grantee upon the digjposof the number of net shares delivered upomiag of the Earne
LTIP Shares. The Company shall be entitled tooffegainst the amount of any such gains realizgdeanount owed to tl
Grantee by the Company, to the extent that suebféét not inconsistent with Section 409A of thédmal Revenue Code
1986, as amende

“Misconduct” means any of the following, as determined by then@dtee in good faith: (i) violating any agreeméstweel
the Company and the Grantee, including but nottéichto a violation relating to the disclosure ohfidential information ¢
trade secrets, the solicitation of employees, custs, suppliers, licensors or contractors, or teigopmance of competiti
services; (i) competing with the company by workiior, managing, operating, controlling or partatipng in the ownershi
operation or control of, any company or entity whjgrovides telephone, Internet or video productsesvices, (iii) violatin
the Companys Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (iv) makargcausing or attempting to cause any other pets
make, any statement (whether written, oral or ebedt), or conveying any information about the Camp which i
disparaging or which in any way reflects negativepon the Company, unless required by law or pust@a Compar
policy; (v) improperly disclosing or otherwise mésng any confidential information regarding the Quamy; (vi) unlawfu
trading in the Company’s securities or of anothempany based on information gained as a resulthef Grantees
employment or other relationship with the Compai) engaging in any act which is considered tocbatrary to the be
interests of the Company, including but not limitedecruiting or soliciting employees of the Compgaor (viii) commissio
of a felony or other serious crime or engagingrig activity which constitutes gross misconduct.

This Section 5 shall also apply if the Grantee casmMisconduct after his or her employment with @@mpany terminates.




10.

Adjustment of Shares Notwithstanding anything contained herein to thentrary, in the event of any change in
outstanding Common Stock resulting from a subdivisor consolidation of shares, whether through gawoization
recapitalization, share split, reverse share sghidyre distribution or combination of shares orghgment of a share divide
the LTIP Shares shall be treated in the same manray such transaction as other Common Stocky @emmon Stock ¢
other securities received by the Grantee with retspe the LTIP Shares in any such transaction shallsubject to tt
restrictions and conditions set forth herein toéltent such restrictions and conditions are nobrisistent with the terms
the Employment Agreemer

Rights as a StockholdefThe Grantee shall be not be entitled to anytsigli a stockholder with respect to the LTIP Sh
unless and until such time as the LTIP Shares amed, as set forth in Section 3 above. The Geasitall have no right
vote such shares or to receive dividends and adisributions payable with respect to such shaiesesthe Date ¢
Award. However, dividends and other distributidghat would have been payable with respect to arpegaL TIP Share
during the period from the Date of Award until tete the shares are earned as provided in Sectibov& will be paid to tt
Grantee within 28 days after the date such shaeededermined (the “Determination Datéd)be earned by the Compensa
Committee. The Grantee shall be entitled to eleatceive any such dividends payable pursuanhéoirhmediately pric
sentence in cash or in shares of common stock, thtimumber of shares of common stock determinedyube Fair Marke
Value (the closing price) of a share of the Compsuimpmmon stock on the Determination Date. Dividelsdtions shall &
in writing and irrevocably submitted prior to thetrmination Date. Dividends shall be paid in calsbent a valid election
the contrary

Government ReqgulationsNotwithstanding anything contained herein to doatrary, the Compang’obligation to issue
deliver certificates evidencing the LTIP Shareslisha subject to all applicable laws, rules andutagjons and to su
approvals by any governmental agencies or nateealrities exchanges as may be requ

Withholding Taxes The Company shall have the right to require@mantee to remit to the Company, or to withholdri
other amounts payable to the Grantee, as compensatiotherwise, an amount sufficient to satisfyfederal, state and loc
withholding tax requirements. The Company willesfiGrantee the right to have withholding requiretaesatisfied by tt
Compan’s withholding of shares upon the timely writtenctiten of Grantee to utilize shares for withholdiag purposes

Employment Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon Gegnany right to continue in the employ of Compamy
shall it interfere in any way with the right of t@mpany to terminate Grantseemployment at any time consistent with
terms of the Employment Agreeme




11. Plant Grantee acknowledges receipt of a copy of tlam,Phgrees to be bound by the terms and provisibtize Plan an
agrees to acknowledge, upon request of Compangipteaf any prospectus or prospectus amendmentdadvo Grantee t

Company.

12. Securities Laws Grantee agrees to comply with all applicableuséies laws upon sale or disposition of sharesuaeq
hereunder

13. Notices Notices to Company shall be addressed to it at:

3 High Ridge Park
Stamford, CT 06905

and to Grantee at:

Company or Grantee may from time to time desigmateriting different addresses for receipt of neticdNotice shall k
deemed given when properly addressed and sentltist or express mail.

14, Governing Law The terms of this Agreement shall be bindingru@mmpany, Grantee and their respective succeasa
assigns. This Agreement shall be performed undédatermined in accordance with the laws of tlaéeSéf Connecticu

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused thiséteabe granted on the date first above written.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
CORPORATION

By:

Mary Agnes Wilderotter



Exhibit 10.33

FORM OF LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN STOCK AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of t€'Dh Award”) between Frontier Communications Corporation, a WDate
corporation (the “Company”) and (the “Grantee”).In consideration of the agreements set forth betbe,Compan

and the Grantee agree as follows:

1. Grant A performance share award (“Award”) with a targé shares (“Target LTIP Shares”) of the Company’
common stock (“Common Stock”) and a maximum of namiif shares equal to 162.5% times the Target ISH&res (LTIP
Shares”)of Common Stock is hereby granted by the CompanyéoGrantee subject to: (i) the terms and conuitiof the
Grantee’s Offer Letter dated (the “Offfetter”); (i) the following terms and conditions; and (ii)etiprovision
of the Frontier Communications Corporation 2009 iBguncentive Plan (the “Plan"the terms of which are incorporated
reference herein. In the event of a conflict betwthe Offer Letter and the terms and conditioatestherein, the terms of
Offer Letter shall contro

2. Transfer Restrictions None of the LTIP Shares shall be sold, assigpégetiged or otherwise transferred, voluntaril
involuntarily, by the Grantee until such time as tiTIP Shares have been earr

3. Performance Criteria Except as otherwise provided in the Offer Lettte number of LTIP Shares actually earned
“Earned LTIP Shares"will range from 0% to 162.5% of the Target LTIP 8w as determined by the Compensi
Committee of the Board of Directors (the “CompeimsaCommittee”) after the end of the thrgear measurement per
ending December 31, 20__ (the “Measurement Peribd®ed on the Comparyperformance against (i) annual opere
cash flow goals, and (ii) a thrgear relative total return to stockholders perfonoeagoal, as reviewed and approved b
Compensation Committee within 45 days after the ehdhe Measurement Period. No LTIP Shares will dagned |
performance is below minimum levels. The relato&l return to stockholders performance levelssateforth in a separ:
document and will be communicated to the Granfée operating cash flow goals will be establishedrd) the first 90 day
of each year in the Measurement Period by the Casgimn Committee and communicated to the Granteealy.

4. Forfeiture: Subject to the terms of the Offer Letter, anyilR Shares not earned as determined in Section Beadiall b
immediately forfeited. In addition, the LTIP Sharshall be subject to forfeiture to the Company ruploe Grantee’
termination of employment with the Company priorthe date the restrictions lapse as provided ini@e8 above or in tt
event the Company notifies Grantee in writing Batnpany has determined that Grantee has breackddrths of Section
below.




Misconduct The LTIP Shares shall be forfeited to the Comypidthe Compensation Committee of the Compargbard a
Directors (the “Committee”) determines that the iGea has engaged in “Misconduess defined below. The Committee r
in its sole discretion require the Grantee to retait Earned LTIP Shares that were earned withinttlelve month peric
immediately preceding a date on which the Grantemged in such Misconduct, as determined by theritige, or if n
longer held by the Grantee, to pay to the Companyyamd all gains realized from such Earned LTIPr&haFor purposes
this Section 5, gains realized shall mean the greait (i) the number of net shares retained bydalivered to, the Grant
upon earning the Earned LTIP Shares multipbgdhe closing price of Common Stock on the date siehies were earned
(ii) the amount realized by Grantee upon the digjposof the number of net shares delivered upomiag of the Earne
LTIP Shares. The Company shall be entitled tooffegainst the amount of any such gains realizgdeanount owed to tl
Grantee by the Company, to the extent that suebféét not inconsistent with Section 409A of thédmal Revenue Code
1986, as amende

“Misconduct” means any of the following, as determined by then@dtee in good faith: (i) violating any agreeméstweel
the Company and the Grantee, including but nottéichto a violation relating to the disclosure ohfidential information ¢
trade secrets, the solicitation of employees, custs, suppliers, licensors or contractors, or teigopmance of competiti
services; (i) competing with the company by workiior, managing, operating, controlling or partatipng in the ownershi
operation or control of, any company or entity whjgrovides telephone, Internet or video productsesvices, (iii) violatin
the Companys Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (iv) makargcausing or attempting to cause any other pets
make, any statement (whether written, oral or ebedt), or conveying any information about the Camp which i
disparaging or which in any way reflects negativepon the Company, unless required by law or pust@a Compar
policy; (v) improperly disclosing or otherwise mésng any confidential information regarding the Quamy; (vi) unlawfu
trading in the Company’s securities or of anothempany based on information gained as a resulthef Grantees
employment or other relationship with the Compai) engaging in any act which is considered tocbatrary to the be
interests of the Company, including but not limitedecruiting or soliciting employees of the Compgaor (viii) commissio
of a felony or other serious crime or engagingrig activity which constitutes gross misconduct.

This Section 5 shall also apply if the Grantee casmMisconduct after his or her employment with @@mpany terminates.




10.

Adjustment of Shares Notwithstanding anything contained herein to thentrary, in the event of any change in
outstanding Common Stock resulting from a subdivisor consolidation of shares, whether through gawoization
recapitalization, share split, reverse share sghidyre distribution or combination of shares orghgment of a share divide
the LTIP Shares shall be treated in the same manray such transaction as other Common Stocky @emmon Stock ¢
other securities received by the Grantee with retspe the LTIP Shares in any such transaction shallsubject to tt
restrictions and conditions set forth here

Rights as a StockholdefThe Grantee shall be not be entitled to anytsigli a stockholder with respect to the LTIP Sh
unless and until such time as the LTIP Shares amed, as set forth in Section 3 above. The Geasitall have no right
vote such shares or to receive dividends and adistributions payable with respect to such shairsesthe Date (
Award. However, dividends and other distributidghat would have been payable with respect to arpegaL TIP Share
during the period from the Date of Award until tete the shares are earned as provided in Sectibov& will be paid to tt
Grantee within 28 days after the date such shaeededermined (the “Determination Datéd)be earned by the Compensa
Committee. The Grantee shall be entitled to eleatceive any such dividends payable pursuanhdéoirhmediately pric
sentence in cash or in shares of common stock, thtimumber of shares of common stock determinedube Fair Marke
Value (the closing price) of a share of the Compsuimpmmon stock on the Determination Date. Dividelsdtions shall &
in writing and irrevocably submitted prior to thetrmination Date. Dividends shall be paid in calsbent a valid election
the contrary

Government RegulationsNotwithstanding anything contained herein to tloatrary, the Compang’obligation to issue
deliver certificates evidencing the LTIP Shareslisha subject to all applicable laws, rules andutagjons and to su
approvals by any governmental agencies or nateealrities exchanges as may be requ

Withholding Taxes The Company shall have the right to require@rantee to remit to the Company, or to withholdri
other amounts payable to the Grantee, as compensatiotherwise, an amount sufficient to satisfyfederal, state and loc
withholding tax requirements. The Company willesfiGrantee the right to have withholding requiretaesatisfied by tt
Compan’s withholding of shares upon the timely writtenctiten of Grantee to utilize shares for withholdiiag purposes

Employment Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon Geanany right to continue in the employ of Compamy
shall it interfere in any way with the right of t@®™mpany to terminate Gran’s employment at any tim




11. Plant Grantee acknowledges receipt of a copy of tlam,Phgrees to be bound by the terms and provisibtize Plan an
agrees to acknowledge, upon request of Compangipteaf any prospectus or prospectus amendmentdadvo Grantee t

Company.

12. Securities Laws Grantee agrees to comply with all applicableuséies laws upon sale or disposition of sharesuaeq
hereunder

13. Notices Notices to Company shall be addressed to it at:

3 High Ridge Park
Stamford, CT 06905

and to Grantee at:

Company or Grantee may from time to time desigmateriting different addresses for receipt of neticdNotice shall k
deemed given when properly addressed and sentltist or express mail.

14, Governing Law The terms of this Agreement shall be binding up@m@any, Grantee and their respective successo
assigns. This Agreement shall be performed undédatermined in accordance with the laws of tlaéeSéf Connecticu

In Witness Whereof, the Company has caused thiséteabe granted on the date first above written.

FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS
CORPORATION

By:

Grantee’s Name



Pre-tax income from continuing operatio
(Income) or loss from equity investees

Pre-tax income from continuing operations before (inepror
loss from equity invester

Fixed charge

Distributed income of equity investe

Interest capitalize

Preference security dividend requirements of cadated subsidiarie
Income attributable to the noncontrolling interiesa partnership

Total earnings

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Frontier Communications Corporation

Statements of the Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charge

(Dollars in Thousands)

Exhibit 12.1

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December &
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$ 228,95, % 24595. $ 270,71t $ 193,10¢ 290,77
522 864 (367) (9949 (4,667)
229,47: 246,81! 270,34¢ 192,11! 286,10:
716,61 697,00t 541,75( 388,55« 373,51
- - 78C 1,532 3,93t
(2,209 (8,419 (3,749 (1,719 (2,796
- - - - (214
(16,67¢) (7,999 (3,049 (2,399 (1,619
$ 927,21. $ 927,410  $ 806,08t $ 578,08 658,93
1.2¢ 1.3¢ 1.4¢ 1.4¢ 1.7¢€

NOTE: The above calculation was performed in accordariteRegulation -K 229.503(d) Ratio of earnings to fixed charg



Entity Name

C-DON Partnershij

Citizens Capital Ventures Cot

Citizens Directory Services Company L.L

Citizens Louisiana Accounting Compa

Citizens NEWCOM Compan

Citizens NEWTEL, LLC

Citizens Pennsylvania Company LI

Citizens SERP Administration Compa

Citizens Telecom Services Company L.L

Citizens Telecommunications Company of Califormie.
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Id;
Citizens Telecommunications Company of lllin
Citizens Telecommunications Company of MinnesotaC |
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Mont
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Nebre
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Nebraska
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Nev
Citizens Telecommunications Company of New York,
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Ore
Citizens Telecommunications Company of Tennesse&€L
Citizens Telecommunications Company of the Volun&tate LLC
Citizens Telecommunications Company of the Whitauktains, Inc
Citizens Telecommunications Company of U
Citizens Telecommunications Company of West Virg
Citizens Utilities Capital L.F

Citizens Utilities Rural Company, In

Commonwealth Communication, LL

Commonwealth Telephone Company L
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises L
Commonwealth Telephone Enterprises, L
Commonwealth Telephone Management Services
CTE Holdings, Inc

CTE Services, Inc

CTE Telecom, LLC

CTSI, LLC

CU Capital LLC

CU Wireless Company LL!

Electric Lightwave NY, LLC

Evans Telephone Holdings, Ir

Fairmount Cellular LLC

Frontier Communication- Midland, Inc.

Frontier Communication- Prairie, Inc.

Frontier Communication- Schuyler, Inc

Frontier Communication- St. Croix LLC

Frontier Communications Corporate Services
Frontier Communications Corporati

Frontier Communications ILEC Holdings Ir

Frontier Communications Northwest Ir

Frontier Communications of Alabama, Ll

Frontier Communications of America, Ir

Frontier Communications of AuSable Valley, |
Frontier Communications of Breezewood, L

Frontier Communications of Canton, Ll

Frontier Communications of DePue, |i

Frontier Communications of Fairmount LL

Frontier Communications of Georgia Ll

Frontier Communications of lllinois, In

Frontier Communications of Indiana LL

Frontier Communications of lowa, LL

Frontier Communications of Lakeside, I

Frontier Communications of Lakewood, L1l

Frontier Communications of Lamar County, L!
Frontier Communications of Michigan, Ir

Frontier Communications of Minnesota, |

Frontier Communications of Mississippi LL

Domestic Jurisdiction

Exhibit 21.1

Pennsylvani:
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Illinois
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevada

New York
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
West Virginia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Delaware
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Illinois
Illinois
Illinois
Wisconsin
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Washingtor
Alabama
Delaware
New York
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Illinois
Georgia
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana

lowa

Illinois
Pennsylvani:
Alabama
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi



Frontier Communications of Mondovi LL
Frontier Communications of Mt. Pulaski, Ir
Frontier Communications of New York, Ir
Frontier Communications of Orion, In
Frontier Communications of Oswayo River LI
Frontier Communications of Pennsylvania, L
Frontier Communications of Rochester, |
Frontier Communications of Sen-Gorham, Inc
Frontier Communications of Sylvan Lake, I
Frontier Communications of the Carolinas |
Frontier Communications of the South, LI
Frontier Communications of the Southwest |
Frontier Communications of Thorntown LL
Frontier Communications of Virginia, In
Frontier Communications of Viroqua LL
Frontier Communications of Wisconsin L1
Frontier Communications Online and Long Distanae
Frontier Communications Services i
Frontier Communications West Coast |
Frontier Directory Services Company, LI
Frontier InfoServices Inc

Frontier Midstates Inc

Frontier Mobile LLC

Frontier North Inc

Frontier Security Compar

Frontier Subsidiary Telco LL!

Frontier TechServ, In

Frontier Telephone of Rochester, |

Frontier West Virginia Inc

GVN Services

Mohave Cellular Limited Partnersh

Navajo Communications Company, h

NCC Systems, Inc

Ogden Telephone Compa

Phone Trends, Ini

Rhinelander Telecommunications, LI
Rhinelander Telephone LL

Rib Lake Cellular for Wisconsin RSA#3, Ir
Rib Lake Telecom, Inc

Wisconsin
Illinois

New York
Illinois
Pennsylvani:
Pennsylvani:
Delaware
New York
New York
Delaware
Alabama
Delaware
Indiana
Virginia
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Delaware
Arizona
California
Delaware
Delaware
Georgia
Delaware
Wisconsin
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New York
West Virginia
California
Delaware
New Mexico
Texas

New York
New York
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Frontier Communications Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-981233-158391 and 338044), an
on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-167932, 333-159508, 333-181383-151246, 333-151245, 333-142636, 333-91033;73821, 333-71597, 333-
71029, 333-61432, 33-48683 and &3972), of Frontier Communications Corporation anbsidiaries of our reports dated February 27, ;
with respect to the consolidated balance sheet&raiftier Communications Corporation as of Decen®igr2012 and 2011, and the rel:
consolidated statements of operations, comprehemsoome (loss), equity and cash flows for eacthefyears in the thregear period ende
December 31, 2012, and the effectiveness of intexoatrol over financial reporting as of Decembér 2012, which reports appear in
December 31, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K ohfi@o Communications Corporation.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Stamford, Connecticut

February 27, 2013



Exhibit 31.
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Mary Agnes Wilderotter, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual repant orm 10-K of Frontier Communications Corpaat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does montain any untrue statement of a material fawt omit to stat
a material fact necessary to make the statemeatle, in light of the circumstances under wiisth statements were made, not mislee
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial estents, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of agiens and cash flows of the registrant as of,fandhe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officand | are responsible for establishing and tamiimg disclosure controls and procedure:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportif@s defined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls pratedures, or caused such disclosure contmolspeocedures to be designed ui
our supervision, to ensure that material informmatielating to the registrant, including its condaled subsidiaries, is made knc
to us by others within those entities, particiyl during the period in which this reporbising prepared;

b) Designed such internal control ovaeaficial reporting, or caused such internal cdowmiver financial reporting to be desigt
under our supervision, to provide reasonable rasse regarding the reliability
financial reporting and the preparation afaficial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the istegnt's disclosure controls and procedures pmsented in this rep
our conclusions about the effectiveness of tiseldsure controls and procedures, as of the &tidegoeriod covered by this rep
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changethie registrant's internal control over finahai@porting that occurred during
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the temis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of amumh report) that has materic
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallffeat, the registrant's internal control ovieahcial reporting; and




5. The registrant's other certifying officandal have disclosed, based on our most recent ataiu of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and diéit committee of the registrant's board a&ctors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and Nddé weaknesses in the des
or operation of internal control over finagicireporting which are reasonably likely to acedy affect the registrant's ability
record, process, summarize and report financiarinétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materialattfinvolves management or other employees who lawsignificant role in tt
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Mary Agnes Wilderotte

Mary Agnes Wilderotte
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.:

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Donald R. Shassian, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual repant orm 10-K of Frontier Communications Corpaat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does montain any untrue statement of a material fawt omit to stat
a material fact necessary to make the statenmeatle, in light of the circumstances under wiigbh statements were made, not mislez
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial estegnts, and other financial information includedhis report, fairly present in all matel
respects the financial condition, results of aiens and cash flows of the registrant as of,fandhe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officand | are responsible for establishing and tamiimg disclosure controls and procedure:
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%(nd internal control over financial reportif@s defined in Exchange Act Rules 13¢
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls prmtedures, or caused such disclosure cordralsprocedures to be designed u
our supervision, to ensure that material informmatielating to the registrant, including its condaled subsidiaries, is made knc
to us by others within those entities, particiyl during the period in which this reporbising prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control oveaficial reporting, or caused such internal cdwiver financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reaisien assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation afaficial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generabcepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the istegnt's disclosure controls and procedures pmsented in this rep
our conclusions about the effectiveness of tiseldsure controls and procedures, as of the &msegperiod covered by this rep
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changethe registrant's internal control over finahai@porting that occurred during
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the temis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of amumh report) that has materic
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallffeat, the registrant's internal control ovieahcial reporting; and




5. The registrant's other certifying officandal have disclosed, based on our most recent ataiu of internal control over financ
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and diéit committee of the registrant's board a&ctors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and Nddé weaknesses in the des
or operation of internal control over finagicireporting which are reasonably likely to acedy affect the registrant's ability
record, process, summarize and report financiarinétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not materialattfinvolves management or other employees who lawsignificant role in tt
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: February 27, 2013 /s/ Donald R. Shassi:
Donald R. Shassie
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi




Exhibit 32,

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Front€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") onfrdi0K for the year ended Decem
31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Excha@mnmission on the date hereof (the "Report"Wary Agnes Wilderotter, Chairman ¢
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted potta Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the reaaritents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securlieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Retpfairly presents, in all material respectise financial condition and results of operatiof
the Company.

/s/ Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Mary Agnes Wilderotter

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2013

This certification is made solely for purpose of U8.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstath contained therein, and not for
other purpose.

A signed original of this written statement rizgd by Section 906, or other document authentigatacknowledging, or otherwise adop
the signature that appears in typed form within éhectronic version of this written statemerguieed by Section 906, has been provide
Frontier Communications Corporation and will ained by Frontier Communications Corporationl darnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Fronti€ommunications Corporation (the "Company") onnrdi0K for the year ended Decem
31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on the date hereof (the "Report")Pdnald R. Shassian, Chief Finan
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18WLC. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@€6rof the Sarbane@xley Act of 2002
that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the reaaritents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securlieshange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repfairly presents, in all material respedtse financial condition and results of operaticof
the Company.

/s/ Donald R. Shassian

Donald R. Shassian

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 27, 2013

This certification is made solely for purpose of U8.C. Section 1350, subject to the knowledgedstath contained therein, and not for
other purpose.

A signed original of this written statement ri&égd by Section 906, or other document authentigatacknowledging, or otherwise adop
the signature that appears in typed form within éhectronic version of this written statemerguieed by Section 906, has been provide
Frontier Communications Corporation and will kained by Frontier Communications Corporationl darnished to the Securities
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



